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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE -

ComMirTEE Room 424,
House or CoMMONs,
I TrurspAY, May 4th, 1922.

The Select $/tanding Committee on Public Accounts met at 11.00 o’clock a.m.,
. Mr. A. R. McMg/ster, the Chairman, presiding.

| The commiftee proceeded to the consideration of the following:
i " “(A) The, accounts opened in our books in favour of thz British Government;
| (B) the apw)énts opened by the British Government, in favour of the Canadian
| Govermment; (C) the payment of those accounts; (D) the war material sent over to
. England at the opening of the war; (E) the war material sent over to Canada after
i the termi!}ation of the war; (F) the determination of the balances either in favour
. of Canadh or against it; (G) particulars of expenditure of $8,411,800 last year for
| Demobilization or adjustment of war claims.

. Th: CramMaN: We will ask General Fiset to come forward.
‘ /

A\

e

— T

\ /
i

/Major-General Sir E. flsm called and sworu.

By Mr, Vien: |
4 4 Q. General, you are Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence?—A. Yes, sir.

/" Q. At the opening of the war a certain amount of war material was sent from
Janada to England?—A. Yes sir.

Q. Which included artillery equipment, cannons, stores and the like?—A. I have
the full list here of the equipment, including guns and ammunition, and it was sent
overseas in 1914 by special request by cable from the War Office.

Q. Have you a copy of the War Office request?—A. I am afraid I have not. The
request was made by cable, and we will have to search numerous files to find it.

Q. Was there an agreement between the Canadian Government and the Imperial
Government in respect to that material%—A. None sir.

Q. No agreement?—A. No sir, a request came that the guns were badly needed at
the front as fast as they could come, and they asked Canada to send anything we could

i supply in thg shape of guns and ammunition.

Q. Was an inventory taken?—A. Yes sir, it is here. ;

l Q. Was there a descriptive inventory?—A. We have the complete inventories in
our possession, certified by the War Office, and the request.

Q. Was there any valuation?—A. No actual valuation. A valuation of the
Minister was based on the vocabulary prices of 1912; it amounted to $1,272,000.

Q. Canadian vocabulary prices?—A. There are no Canadian voeabulary prices,
Imperial. :

Q. Is that copy available for the committee ?—A. Certainly. I have no objection
whatever. I can make it available for the committee.

Q. That is a copy that you can leave with the committee?

The CHARMAN: We will produce it as exhibit No. 1 with the evidence of General
Fiset. 7 \ 3

Document filed as exhibit No. 1, '

By Mr. Vien: |,
Q. Did the War Office accept the valuation and undertake to pay or credit us

for such an amount of money?—A. All the negotiations that took place between the
40601—1%
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4 . SPECIAL COMMITTEE \~"

War Office and the Overseas Department were made not thm)ugh the Mllitla Depa
ment here in Ottawa but through the Overseas Mmlster w1th the War Office in

estabhshed what took place unless you have the evidence oi the officers who deals
with the War Office. T have taken the trouble to ask General MacBrien to be here
in order to explain exactly what took place over there. 1<

The CuairMan: I have to go to the Committee on Agricultu
the sub-committee which is presenting its report and I would as
the Chair in my absence.

Mr. MeIsaac took the Chair.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. Then General MacBrien is the proper authority to. give %&:ld\ence on the
agreement which took place in respect of the credits to be given to Canada for the #
material sent over?—A. That would be rather a tall order for Gemeral MeBrien [
himself. I think he can explain part of what took place but if the co
full information it will have to subpoena the ex-Deputy Minister of
Department, Col. Harrington, and their Auditor, Col. Dowie. These offig
be allowed to peruse the files which cover bushels and bushels of files and which at |
present are being assorted to give evidence before this committee.” Gen. Mac‘Bnenf
could give you a fair idea of what took place. {

Q. We do not want all the files of the Overseas B/IIIllth'y, we want sunp‘lg thosw
files which respect this shipment of war material—A. We hawe th()be files hetf an’
Gen. McBrien will be able to explain that, sir.

Q. At a certain given momeént, if T understand rightly, we sent on request o
War Office a certain amount of material which is contained in your list, and
war material was valued from the vocabulary price list?—A. So far as munitio
are concerned.

Q. And so far as guns are concerned?—A. So far as guns are concerned we can-
not give a proper valuation because they had been in this country for years. We
started buying guns in 1906, and we bought guns every year after that up to 1914.
Therefore the valuation of those guns had depreciated to a very great extent when 4
they were shipped to the War Office in 1914. Taking these vocabulary prices I am ‘ba
afraid would not give the exact valuation. : i

Q. I do not contend that we should take the vocabulary prices; my contention is /|
that the guns were material given to England. Outside of the munitions which were
listed under the vocabulary prices, what valuation was put on the rest?—A. We will
have to establish it. I do not remember it. I do not know exactly. The War:
Office probably made a valuation of those guns. Perhaps Gen. McBrien will be
able to tell you. j :

{

General McBriex: I do not think a valuation was made. A large proportion of
the guns were obsolete and others were obsolescent.

Wirxess: 1 may say that the number of guns sent overseas was not very large.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. No sir, but the war material sent from Canada must have been listed and
valued —A. The war material that was sent from Canada formed part of the first
contingent that left Canada, and that was the only list sent to the War Office.

Q. Can you tell us the date of that cable that requested Canada to ship all the
cannons that we had available?—A. I cannot tell you exactly the date, it was some-
time in August, 1914, August or September, one or the other I think, because those
guns were shipped on hoard the same ships that transported the first Lontmgent over-
seas.

Q. Tt was understood at that time that the Canadian Militia went over with their
small arms?—A. Small arms, and all the guns we had.

[General Fiset.] ‘




‘PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 5
N ,.'Q The glms were not part of their equipment; they were sent for a special
 purpose to the War Office ?—A. Part of the artillery units that went overseas had
 guns with them. Those were the’ guns that went with them, 42 eighteen pounders,
~ and we had 82 in this country. |
’ Q. If I understand you rightly, our field artillery batteries went equipped with
~ their own guns, partleularly the 'R'oyal \Canadian Horse Artillery and the Royal
~ Field Artﬂlery?n—A Yes, sir. ol

Q. And in addition thereto there was a certain amount of war materials, guns
and other equipment, which we sent in a special shipment to the War Office at their
particular request?—A. It all depends on what you mean by a special shipment. Do
~ you mean on the same ship?

Q. I mean distincet from the equipment which went with the artillery%—A. Yes,
sir. j . g 5
Q. So that as a matter of fact, this surplus equipment which was not part of
"the equipment of the first division was sent as a loan or as a sale to the War Office?
—A. Well, you may call it a sale if you like. It was sent at the request of the War
Office because of the emergency of 1914. Part of this equipment was used .then for
the training of our own troops on Salisbury Plain.

Mr. Vien: We do not mean that part.

Mr. Lewis: What is the objeet of all this? I would like to get at the object of
all this inquiry. :
" Mr. Viex: The reference to the Public Accounts Committee is here, and it is
within its jurisdiction to investigate all public expenditures.

Mr. Lewis: No matter how far back?

Mr. Hanson: I would question that statement. There must be some limit, and
I believe there is some limit. :

Mr. Lewis: It is eight years ago that he is speaking of now.

Mr. Viex: It is not eight years.

Mr. Lewis: Nearly.

Mr. Viex: If my hon. friends will listen for a minute they will understand my
object. On the 16th February, 1921, by an Order in Council, P.C. 408 of that date,
a settlement took place between the Overseas Department of the Militia and Defence
and the Imperial Government. This settlement covered not only the last operations

_ of the war, but covered the whole operations as between the Imperial Government and

. the Canadian Government in respect. of our dealings, whether advances from the
Canadian Government or from the Imperial Government or from the Overseas
Department. This is contained in documents which were tabled by the Prime Minis-
ter the other day in the table of the House and the questions I am putting to the
witness now are in relation thereto. They form part of the statements which were
ratified by an Order in Council on the 16th of February, 1921.

Mr. LEwis: In regard to the accounting that took place in 1921, is it possible to
get all that on file without asking these questions in regard to matters going back
nearly eight years. If the transaction has been made, there must have been an
accounting ‘which has-been verified somewhere by an auditor, and it would facilitate
matters if they could be brought forward.

Mr. Viex: My questions were purely preliminary as to how we could deal with
the situation and my honourable friend will see by the answers of the witness that
he is not himself able to discuss some of the questions which mwe are putting to him,

~ which are relevant to the questions involved by P.C. 408 of the 16th of February.

‘Mr. Bovs: I understand all vou can investigate is the Auditor General’s report.

The CrLerk: Four witnesses were requested to appear this morning.

Mr. Bovs: By whom?

[General Fiset.]




6 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

The Crerk: Major Fiset was requested to appear; the Auditor General, the
Deputy Minister of Finance, and another whose name I uow forget. The lt.amg
supposed to be considered are ;

(a) The accounts opened in our books in favour of the British Govemment,

(b) The accounts opened by the British Government in favour of the Canadian
Government ; ‘ ’

(¢) The payment of those accounts;

(d) The war material sent over to England at the opening of the war;

(e) The war material sent over to Canada after the termination of the war;

(f) The determination of the balances either in favour of Canada or against it;

(g) Particulars of expenditure of $8,411,400, last year for demobilization or
adjustment of war claims. ¥

Mr. Bovs: Those items appear where? Do they cover a period of years? = .
The CLerg: They are not mentioned. '

Myr. Bovs: May I just make my point clear and I will sit down. I well reecall
that this very feature has been discussed many times in this Committee during the
last year or nine years, during which time I have been a member of the Committee.
It has always been common for this Committee to investigate the items of the Audi-
tor General’s report for the last year unless there is a further extension authorized

by the House. If there is such an extension I am unaware of it. So I can only say .

if I am right in my surmise, this investigation at this stage at all events, must be
confined to all items appearing in the Auditor General’s accounts of last year.

Mr. Vies: If my honourable friend will allow me a few minutes, I viill bring
that under that item.

Sir HENrY Dravyton: What item in the account now?

Mr. Vien: I will put a few questions to the witness which will elucidate the
matter.

Sir HeNry Drayron: What item?

Mr. Viex: I will take one item, General Fiset. A settlement took place between
the Departments. ’

Sir Hexry Drayron: Surely we should know what we are here for. = Surely we
should know what items we are called upon to consider. I am asking the Colonel
to tell us what particular item he wants. It seems to me so far, the only peint that
is raised by the questions is the advisability and propriety of this country sending over
to England at the time England wanted munitions.

Mr. Viex: The other day in the House, the Prime Minister laid down an Order
in Council, P.C. 408, for the settlement of all our accounts, the settlement of accounts
between the Imperial Governmment and Canada which were authorized by an Order
in'Council of February 16, 1921. This settlement of accounts showed that we were
indebted to the Imperial Government in an item of £391,000 as the full settlement of
all our claims against the Imperial Government or of the claims of the Imperial Gov-
ernment against Canada. I am now asking General Fiset from what appropriation
that item has been paid and 1 want to investigate the settlement of aceounts between
the Imperial Government and the Dominion Government in respect to the Order in
Council which was laid on the table attached to the settlement of accounts authorized
thereby, and I say I am fully justified in putting the question to the witness as to

from what appropriation that item of £391,000 which represented the balance owing by =

Canada to England in respect of all adjustments of war claims came under.

Mr. MarteLn: It is_a part of a. continuous transaction and I submit that the
evidence would be relevant to show the system by which this was arrived at.
fGeneral Fiset,)
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”

. My, Vien: If the Deputy Miniister can tell us from what vote or appropriation
the item of £391,000 came under in the settlement between England and Canada we will
then elucidate the matter before the committee.

f . Sir Henxry Drayron: Are we really not gettmg away from the questlon? Mr.
Boys has raised a point of order and the question is what we can do. Now Colonel
Vien is either right or wrong in it. There has been no answer made whatever to the

B statements. As I understand it, we are here to consider the Public Accounts of 1921

¥ and to ascertain if possible if anything is wrong in eonnection with them. E

Mr. Viey: T will withdraw my question.

Sir Henry DravroN: Surely we ‘can make some progress. The honourable gen-
tleman, I suppose, knows something of his brief here.

Mr. Viex: To make a further step, I will put another question to the witness.

Sir Hexry DrayroN: An appropriation of $8,411 000 was voted last year for de-
mobilization and adjustment of war claims, that is at page what of the estimate?

Mr. ViEn: You might see it in the Public Accounts.

Sir Hexgy Drayrton: Can you give me the item?

Mr. ViEn: $8,411,800 was voted last year for demoblhzatlon or adjustment of war
claims.

Sir HENRY DRAYTON Where does it appear in this account?

Mr. Vien: You can look for yourself.

Sir HeNry Dravron: I am told it is not here.

Mr. Vien: It is surely in the Public Accounts. I have a right to inyestigate the
public accounts. {

Sir Hexry DrayTon: It is in part two. If my recollection is at all correct, the item
he is referring to is an item in this year’s estimate, something which is not before us
at all. Tt is the public accounts of last year we are interested in just at the moment.

Mzr. Vien: I am not talking of the item voted for this year. T am talking of the
item voted last year.

Sir He¥ry DravroN: Perhaps you can give me the reference. The items you
have mentioned are voted for this year. It is not the same vote at all.

Mr. Vien: Last year’s appropriation for demobilization. ;

& Wirness: It is $8.000,000.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. What was last year’s appropriation for demobilization and adjustment of war
claims%—A. There was no adjustment of war claims. It was demobilization,
$9,302,769. That is what we have spent. §

Q. Referring to page 101 of the Public Accounts for the fiscal year ending March
ni 31, 1921, I see an expenditure of $16,229,764, giving the total demobilization expendi-
A ture of the Department of Militia and Defence in Canada and overseas for the fiscal
b year ending March 31, 1921. Will you tell us if the item of £391,000 covered by the
8 Order in Qouncil 408 of the 16th of February, 1921, is included in that item.

\ Sir HENRY DraYTON: I wonder if we now have the Public Accounts, distributed so
> the members will know something of what is going on. We have to have them.

: : *  My. Vien: That is in the Public Accounts, page 101. In the Auditor General’s
, . report there is an expenditure for demobilization, page 4097

! Wirness: Before being able to answer this question, I must explain that the
(| e demobilization appropriations were divided in two parts; one part came direetly under
' the administration of the Militia Department in Canada, and the second part came
under the administration of the overseas Ministry. It is not included in my own
statement at all.

[General Fiset.]
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Q Weuld you hndly remain w1thm “the seape of themesﬁm,

appendlx No, 8 of the Public Accounts, 1921. 4y
Sir-Henry Drayron: How can the lesser mclude the greater? GG o

Mr. Viex: My honourable friend is totally in error.  The itlem is £391,000 u.nd
the total is $16,000,000.  If my honourable friend, who has been Minister of Finance,
will take his pencil, he will find out the smaller is included in the greater. I am
putting a questlon to the witness as to whether the item of £391,000 should cover the
balance owing by Canada to England and which was authorized by Order in Council
of February 16, 1921, was included in the details of the demobilization expenditure of
the Department of Militia and Defence ending March 31, 1921. Was it included
or not?—A. I say as far as the Department of Militia and Defence is concemed, in
the active demobilization it was not, but I do not know if it was included in the over-'
seas Ministry. I can only answer for one Department for which I am responsible.

Q. You are not prepared to say it was included %—A. I am prepared to say’it was
not included in our own, as far as the Department of Militia and Defence was con-
cerned.

. Q. We will make more headway in taking the Auditor General as a witness, and
when we have that information, General Fiset will be heard again. I move that
the Auditor General be asked. to take the chair

i

"Mr. WiLniaa KEeArNs, called, sworn and examined.

By Mr. Vien: y BT

Q. You are the Auditor General of Canada?—A. No, the Auditor General is on
leave of absence. 1 am the Assistant Auditor General. ;

Q. Will you take cognizance of the dethils of the demabilization account in
respect of the Department of Militia and Defence in Canada and Overseas for the -
year ending March 21, 1921 %—A. Yes.

Q. Did you take cognizance of the item of £391,497 17s. 5d., representing 'the
balance owing England by Canada and which was covered by Order in Council of the
16th February, 1921 %—A. Yes

Q. Will you tell us th’le, in your report, this item is shown?—A. Of course I
will have to look up the report to see whether that item is included.

Q. Yes, do.—A. Mr. Chairman, the overseas expenditure of the Militia Depart-
ment for the year 1920-21 will be found on page P-180, Volume 2, of the Auditor
General’s Report, under Militia and Defence, Overseas Services. ;

By Mr. Vien: -

Q. Will you tell ds 'if the item I referred to is included therein?—A. It is not
epecially included. There is an item “Pay and Allowances, $451,025 " there. Then
there ie “ Separation Allowances,” and there is another item “ High Commissioner’s
expenditure in full liquidation of Imperial War Office claims for maintenance, ete.,
of Canadian troops, $1,905,289.” ;

Q. Would that fall under this item%—A. T do not think so. That item covers
the expenditures that were incurred under an 'Ordér in Council which at the request,
I think, of the Wdr Office, fixed a certain rate per day per man. I am speaking of
this $1,000,000 item. I think that that payment was made in accordance with an
Order in Council. By agreement with the War Office, the Canadian Government
consented to pay a certain proportion of the expense, that would be for the expense
incurred by the British Government in regard to Canadian troops. They could not
very well detail them separately, so the Canadian Government agreed to pay a certain = '
proportion and that is moluded in an Order in Council which I did not bring w1th g
me. +But I know it exists. y

{Mr. Wm. Kearns.]

St g i




P‘UBLIC ACCOUNTS Sl s O 9

’

Q On 4th June, 1920, the Deputy Minister of Overseas Militia and Defence
for Canada received a letter from the Assistant Financial Secretary of the War

B Office acknowledging receipt of the amount of £391,000 in payment of a claim they

~ had against Canada for the full settlement of accounts pendmg between the two
-governments Would you tell us under what item that payment is covered in your
report ?
Sir HeNry DrAYTON : What date would that be?
Mr. Viexs J une, 1920.

‘ By Mr. Hanson
Q How long prior to the passmg of this Order in Council ~—A. T cannot tell you
where it is, if it is not reported separately, I will have to look this up.

Mr. Viexn: My purpose this morning in calling the various witnesses was simply
to get information as to who would be the proper party to give us full evidence in
that respect.” I took the trouble of going to the Militia Department, of going to the
Auditor General’s Department, of going to the Finance Department. I was travelling
from Charybdis to Sceylla and from Ossa to Pelion, and no one seemed to know.
Some hon. MeMBERs: Oh, oh! :

Mr. Viex: I am very serious. If my hon. friends would keep quiet for a few
minutes, I think it would be much better for the committee. My purpose this morn-
ing was to put these questions, and I think that the committee will appreciate that
it would save time if the witness would tell us who are the proper parties, and
then we will tell them what we want, and they will be prepared at the next sitting
‘of the committee to give their evidence. This will save the time of the members
of the committee, and we will be able to make more progress next time. So my first
" question to the Auditor General is, where is the detail of that item to be found?

The Witxess: It does not seem to be reported specially, but I may say that you
asked me about different things, and you did not ask me about this particular question.
If you had I would have found it. If it was paid in June, 1920, than it is reported
here, and if it is not reported epecially I would certainly be able to find out within
a few houre as to what particular amount is is included in.

Mr. Vien: Take a few notes’ as to what we want.

Mr. Parext: What is the amount of the item?

Mr. Vien: £391,497 17s and 5d paid on 4th June, 1920, to the Financial Secretary
of the War Office by the Overseas Deputy Minister of Militia. o

The WirNess: I wonder if the Deputy Minister of Militia paid it under his
“letter of credit, or did he make application to the Auditor General to pay it?

By Mr. Vien:

Q. That is ‘what we want to investigate, where he got the authority, and what
the matter covered.

By Mr. Macdonald: ! j
Q. Who was the Deputy Minister overseas?—A. I do not think it Would be the
Deputy Minister overseas; I think it would be the Deputy Minister here.

General MoBriex : Col. Harrington.

Mr. Parent: Where is he located?

General McBriex: Sydney, N.S. i

Mr. Viexns. I suppose that somebody else would be in a position to advise us.

General MoBrien: Col. Dowie, the Overseas Auditor, is I understand in
England at the present tlme and Capt. Ross, another officer concerned, has been
[Mr. Wm. Kearns.]

SRS
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demobilized and is living in Scotland. The nea'rest witness ‘who w% intimately

associated with this question is Col. Harrington, Sydney, N.S.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. Who was representing the Auditor General with the Department of Mlhtlra_
and Defence overseas?—A. Mr. Fraser himself went over there on one occasion,
that is the late Auditor General, and Mr. Sutherland went over twice.

Q. These gentlemen went over only to get a general idea of the system, buf
who supervised the details?—A. There was nobody in London.

- Q. From your department?—A. No.

General McBrien: 1 think that Col. Dowie was representmg the Audltor

General.

The Wirxess: He was not an officer of the Auditor General’s office.

General McBrien: No, but he was specially appointed Auditor of the ov'erseas
forces.

The Wirvess: There was on Order in Council passed after Mr. Fraser had
been over to London in which a detailed audit of the overseas expenditures was
practically taken out of the hands of the Auditor General by, agreement with Mr.
Fraser. Owing to the delay that it would cause and the dlﬁiculty of examining those
accounts and of getting details during the war time, he agreed it was not practicable,
and it was agreed that the audit of the overseas expenditures would be accepted
by the Auditor General.

By -Mr, Macdonald:

Q. In 1920 the war had been over for a year and a half.—A. I am speaking of
the general war expenditure. s

Q. This item was paid in 1920%—A. That would be paid in the ordinary way if
we paid it in 1920. It appears there is a receipt from the Financial Seecretary
and it must have been paid; it must be here in this report.

By Mr. Manion:

Q. Might it possibly be mixed up there with another item?—A. I can, easily
find that out.

Mr. Viex: Mr. Kearns will investigate that point.

Mr. Hanson: It might expedite matters if we hear Sir Edward Kemp, who was
Overseas Minister. He is here, and perhaps he could give the ;nformatlon that
it is now sought, although he is not a member of the committee.

Mr. Viex: I wanted to ask a few more questions of the Auditor General, and
then I would be delighted to hear Sir Edward.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. You say there was an agreement between the Auditor General and—?—A.
The Auditor General consented to the Order in Council and the overseas expenditures
practically were not audited in the Auditor General’s office here.

Q. Can you quote ‘the Order in Council?—A. I did not bring it with me. I did
not think it would be wanted here.

Q. Will you take a note to produce it at the next sitting?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us what was the system which was established under that Order
in Council?%—A. No, I cannot, I was not in touch with that at all. Mr. Fraser
and Mr. Sutherland practically looked after that, themselves after their wvisit to
London.

Q. Will you 1n\e:t10‘ate that question, and at the next sitting tell us all the
particulars about that item?—A. Alright, sir.

The witness retired. 3
[Mr. Wm, Kearns.l

Siaand. o
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- Sir Ewarp Kemp: Mr. Chairman, I am not a member of the committee, and
it is only by the courtesy of yourself and the members of the committee that I can

say anything at all. But in view of the fact that I was Overseas Minister of the

\Mﬂltary Forces, which was a separate department from the Department of Militia

and Defence, and had an orgamzatlon qulte separate and distinet from any other
department of the Government; and in view of the fact that you desire to investigate
an item which appears in the Auditor General’s Report, or which should appear there,
for the year ending 31st March, 1921, I think that to facilitate matters for this 4
committee it would be better to bring here the officers who had to do with those
matters. They will be able to give you a most intelligent explanation, and will clear
up everything that it is desired to clear up. Without them, I do not see how it is
possible for officers who had nothing to do with this transaction to clear it up.
Mr. Vien: Can you make a statement yourself as to the general details of the
operations of your Department overseas in respect to this account?
Sir Epwarp Keump: There was an independent auditor over there, Col. Dowie;

there was a Deputy Minister and an Assistant Deputy Minister. It is a wery very
long story. I presented it to Parliament in a report, covering 500 pages, in 1920, I
think, and besides I made a statement to the House which I am sorry to say took up
three and a half hours, and which pretty nearly covered every branch of the service.
At ‘the same time, I welcome the most exhaustive inquiry, if it is thought desirable,
into the final settlement with the Imperial Government. We were desirous of cleaning
those matters up and not leaving them hanging over for many years after the people .
concerned have passed away, and we arrived at a final settlement which I think is
covered by the statement which my hon. friend has before him. But it is a matter
of tremendous detail, and the Deputy Minister, Col. Harrington, Col. Dowie, and
some other officers whose names I do not recall at the moment, should be subpensd, it
seems to me, before this committee if you are going to have an investigation into this
case, because there is nobody else who can do it in a way that would be satisfactory
to the Committes. I am most desirous of having a very full enquiry into all those
details, which aré very considerable, which cover all kinds of documents of a very
voluminous character and would fill two or three rooms of this size.

Mr. Viex: Call General McBrien.

~

' Major-General J. H. MoBriex called and sworn.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. General you were connected with the admlnlstratlou of the Department of

Militia-overseas sometime in 1919-207
Mr. MarTELL: May I be permitted to say that I think it would be well if ‘we
could get the full names of the people whom we call as witnesses so that the committee

will know with whom they are dealing, their official capacity and so on?

By Mr. Vien:
Q. Will you give us your official capacity?—A. I was appointed Chief of the
general staff of the Overseas Military Forces on 1st August, 1919.

By Mr. Hanson:
Q. And you continued, how long?—A. Until the forces were demobilized.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. What date?—A. I think the actual date that T ceased to be chief of the
general staff was in November, 1920. I would not be quite certain. 1 acted in a

dual capacity here for a year or more.
[General MacBrien.]
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Mllltla
¢ Q. What was your capacity at the opening of the war ?—A At. the opemng of
war I was stationed at the Staff College at Camberley, Surrey.

Q You took service when —A. On the first day of the _war, in the Wu

Canadlan Government and the Impenal Government as to the war materxal w}nc.
was sent?—A. No. v
Q. Did you have anything to do in the capacity of chief of General Staﬁ w1th e
settlement of these cases?’—A. Not actually with the settlement. I had certain
things to do with the actual prehmmary arrangements towards settlement. :
Q. Will you tell us your activities in that regard?—A. I was not connected in
any way with the actual task of settlement. When T took over my duties of Chief of ;
the General Staff of the Overseas Forces, my chief work was in connection with the
closing up of the camps and the returning of the Canadian personnel to this country.
In the course of those duties I became familiar with certain work which was being-;f;
performed, chiefly by the Overseas Ministry, Sir Edward Kemp, and his Deputy.
regarding getting the troops home and the disposition of any material which the
Canadian Government owned overseas. I then became aware of the actual arrange-
. ments that had been made whilst I was still in France, regarding the disposal of the
Canadian owned war material. I knew that this had been turned into depots im
France, but I was not aware until I actually took c¢harge at Argyle House as to
what the definite arrangements had been, but as far as I understood the arrange-
ment, it was this— :

Q. Have you got any documents relating thereto?—A. There are documenba
in existence, yes. :

Q. Can they be had?%—A. They can be produced, yes.

Q. Are they under your control’—A. Yes, I have extracts here which I could
read if you wished. -

Q. Yes. What are they? I would not. like them to be too voluminous, antt
would not like to limit the production to the point in question. Have you got a copy
of that telegram from the War Office asking us to send all surplus equ1pment we
had?%—A. No, I was in England, in the War Office at that time.

Q. Can that be found in the documents of which you haweseharge?—A. No, not
any documents' I would have. Now what you originally asked me was if I could
give you a copy of the original letter to the War Office. /

Mr. Taursrox: Would it be in order to ask the witness to stand up while he is
answering those questions? We cannot hear him very well, and it would be an
advantage if we could see his face’—A. On the 11th of November, 1918, the Deputy
Minister sent to the Secretary of the War Office the following letter. Some of the

arrangements were made as early as that, Armistice Day (reads) :(— y

“As you are aware, under the financial agreement between the Canadian
and Imperial Government, the Canadian Government paid for the initial
equipment for all Canadian units in France, and the same has been maintained
by the Imperial Government under the capitation agreement. The equipment
of Canadian troops: remains the property of the Canadian Government at the
end of the war.

“It is apparent that it would cause great difficulty to keep Canadlan
equipment segregated for return to this country or to Canada. It would also
be very difficult for the Imperial authorities to take this equipment over at a

valuataion of each different type. It is therefore suggested for your considera-
tion :— 3
[General \IwBrlen]
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Sy e That fhe eqmpment in possessmn of Canadian troops in France be
v ‘_,‘handed over to the TImperial authorities in France, with the exception of the
special articles above mentmned, and any further artlcles that the Canadian
Government should in the future desire to retain.
9. That the Canadian Government be credited with 50 per cent of the
- initial cost of this equipment, less the equipment retained by them.”

Q What are you.readmg from ?—A T am reading from extract from these files.
Q. That was on the 11th of November. It says here “said to the Secretary of
the War Office.” T cannot say offhand whether that was the account confirming the
- verbal conversations or mot.
. Q. Have you any reference to tell us the document?—A. I thmk the actual
- document ean be got from the files. 7
Q. You ha » reference to it? You could not say “it is a letter from Mr. so-
: f anﬂ so to Mr. so-and-s0?—A. No, it is to the Secretary of the War Office, to the Deputy
ister of the (hg'seas Military Forces Then the War Officer’s reply to that was
th (reads) :— ..
f“The %mml cannot, however, commit themselves at this stage in the

matter of the credit to be given in pespect of those stores. Your Ministry
will understand that in view of the vast quantities of equipment of all kinds
which. the Tmperial Government will: have left for disposal, and the present
‘uncertainty. as to the scale of the future army, the value of the stores of which
Canada desires to dispose is necessarily problematical, and the credit to be
“given must be determined by the proceeds of sale or by the value to the
JImperial Government. The Council would be happy to have the matter
discussed between the two Departments.”

~ Then it goes on (reads) ¢ The Deputy Minister; O.M.F.C., wrote to the Secretary,
War Office on December 27th, 1918, and stated in part—

“Tt is assumed that the Canadian Units in France are all complete with
serviceable equipment, according to Mobilization Store Tables for the different
Canadian Units. This equipment is the property of the Canadian Government,

“Tt is now suggested that the total equipment of the Canadian Units in
France, including those Articles mentioned in our letter of the 11th November,

" excepting' the personal equipment of the men, and rifles, be turned in to the
Imperial Ordnance Department in France, and that Canada should receive
serviceable equipment in lieu of such quantities and at such time as Canada

~ requests the same to be issued. G

“ The above does not apply to the Canadian Forestery Corps or Railway
Troops, nor to horses in possession of Canadian Units, as these horses are not
included in the capitation agreement.”

Mr. Haxsex: Are these extracts for the information of the members of the
. Committee? I would like to have that?

The CLERK: Yes.

My. Haxsex: That is understood.

Mr. Martenn: I submit that the extracts cannot be evidence. They are only
- extracts made from copies, and they are certainly not evidence. The extracts can
be taken from the standpoint of the witness, but if you read those extracts in the
" light of the witnesses, they may have a vastly different meaning.

Mr. Viex: The files are available.

Mr. Hansex: I think these should be marked by the Stenographer.

il ~Mr. Viex: I would like to have you refer to the documents from which the
.| extracts were taken if at all possible.

N SR ' Nk S o [General MacBrien.]
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Wirxess: It is very difficult. There is not a complete file on any one subject.
That is the difficulty. You will find it in the various files, but it is a great deal of
work searching them through, but I can produce without difficulty, cestified copies
of everything I have read, giving the exact number of the file, either' the overseas

number or the Militia Department number. 2
Mr. Hansex: That is all that is necessary. 1

By Mr. Vien:
Q. Will you do that at the next sitting?—A. Yes. In a letter dated January
30th. 1919, the Assistant Financial Secretary stated in part (reads):

“If again, Canada desired the Unit equipment of certain Units to be
handed in to Imperial Stores in order to be disposed of without replacement,
then the situation referred to in the last paragraph of our letter of the 9th
instant would arise, namely—Canada would be entitled to a cash credit on the
basis of the full unit equipment of those units in a serviceable condition, but
that value would have to be determined by either the value of such equipment.
to the Imperial Government, or by the current disposal value of such equipment.” 3

L4

-

“The QM.G., O.M.F.C., on December 18th, 1918, in letter to the Deputy Min-
ister, O.M.F.C., stated that he had discussed the matter of equipment with General
Elliott of the Wiar Office, and that it would appear to be best to allow the Imperial
Authorities to take all our equipment, and then to give us what we require.

“ When Canada has received all that she desires, the matter of .the financial
transaction can then be taken up with the Imperial Government and a settle- {
ment come to between the two Governments. 1

“ This scheme is on the lines of the one which has been agreed to by the ‘
Tmperial and Australian Authorities, with the exception that it is the Austral-
ian intention to take complete equipment for a Corps.”

Q. This covers the actual settlement in respect of the equipment which was in
the hands of the Forces when the Armistice was signed?—A. Yes.

Q. Did you have further dealings in respect of the settlement of our claims for.
the material which was sent to England at the request of the War Office at the opening
of the war %—A. No, I had personally none. That was sent from Canada to England.

Q. Yes.—A. No, I had personally nothing to do with that. ;

Q. In the dettlement was that war maverial which was sent at the opening of

the war taken into account?—A. I believe so. There is an item in that Order in e
Council, in the financial statement, where Canada obtained a credit for £372,000.
Q. At the opening of the war?—A. For the material which was sent over. : 1

Q. In the Order in Council?—A. In the financial statement. This is the item
here * Stores received from Canada, £374,6564 12s. 6d.”

My, MarteLL: Don’t you think it would expedite the matter a whole lot if we 3
had subpenaed Colonel Harrington who was the Chief Executive officer over theref
He would know how to get at his filee and how to explain all these thinge.

By Mr. Vien: .

Q. Who is Colonel Harrington?—A, He is a barrister, practising in ‘Sydney,
Nova Scotia. j .

Q. And Colonel Dowie?—A. He is a member of a firm of chartered accountants.
He is in England at the present time. v

Q. He is in England now?—A. I understand so. He wae a short time ago.

Q. As to the valuation of the war material which wae left in the hands of our
Canadian Militia, I understand that the first proposal was to value it at 50 per cent
of ite initial cost, as you read in the letter, but that was not admitted at the time

[General MacBrien.]
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by the War Office?—A. No. The War Office at the commencement was, I understand,
disinclined to allow it or to take over any equipment from us.
/" Q. Do you know on what basis it was finally arranged?—A I do, regarding
specific items-in partxcular, that I personally carried on negotlatlons with the War
Office for.
Q. Do you remember what it was ?—A. The first item was mechanical transport.
It was decided by the authorities in Canada that no mechanical transport would be
brought back to Canada; therefore, we either had to sell it on the public market in
‘England and transport it from France. It had been turnéd into the Army Service
Corps Depots in France. It had to be brought to England and sold there, or some
arrangement made for taking it over. 1 personally paid two visits to the War Office
regarding that settlement, regarding the agreement which eventuated from that. They
were not disposed to take it over at all to start with, but by explaining to them we
would sell it without reserve and compete with them in the English markets, they
* finally agreed to take over the whole of the mechanical transport, at the average
price, according to the type of vehicle that they had obtained during the months of
July and August, 1919, and you will see a credit in the financial statement of around
£350,000, for the mechanical transport, which is nearly a million dollars more or one-
half anyway of the total amount more than it cost the Canadian Government, for the
reason that mechanical transport more than doubled in price from the beginning of
' the war when this had been purchased.

Q. Did the Imperial JGovernment allow us a credit for all the balance of the
equipment which was left on' their hands?—A. Eventually, yes.

Q. Eventually they did?—A. Yes.

Q. Outside of the mechanical transport, you would not be ready to say on what
basis?—A. Yes. It was on the basis of 50 per cent.

Q. Fifty per cent of the initial cost?—A. Yes, with thig stipulation, whlch I
also have personal knowledge of, that we drew the bulk of what we were entitled to.
They would not have anything to do with taking over the bulk of our equipment,
but provided we would take the bulk, they were willing to take it off our hands.

oy By the Chairman:

Q. What is vocabulary price’—A. It is a price placed by the Ordnance Depart-
ment on the manufacturing value.

Q. Is it a price corresponding to the book value on manufacturers’ books?—A. It
i§ a price corresponding to manufacture. It would be the cost of manufacture.

Q. Tt is the cost to the Government?—A. Yes.

Q. There is a book published vontaining a price list of articles of equipment and
armament, and that is the cost to the Government. If anybody in charge of any
stores is deficient of any article he is charged so much, according to the vocabulary
list, the vocabulary price.

Sir Hexry DravroN: Government cost?

By Mr. Manion:
Q. Supposing it went up in value would that have any effect on the vocabulary
price’—A. No. They would fix it according to the year it was manufactured in.
If it was manufactured in 1919 it would be taken at that.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. But the vocabulary list is amended from time to time?

By the Chairman:
Q. That is the price at which the articles are carried in the books of the country?
Mr. Viex: Carried by the Government.

[General MacBrien.]



the book value and the 1n1t1a1 cost. It may be more br lese. i :
 Wirsess: I think Mr. McMaster ie right in this way, because som@times’
ordnance they do add to the actual cfost of production, eemm o ;
‘which would bring it slightly higher. : . : R
By the Chairman: o 8
Q Supposing you manufactured a gun carnage 1et us say, and 11;

A. T have a record af whatever vocabulary prices were avallable in 1918-19 regar&mg* -a
this equipment. : B & &

By Mr. Manion: e '

Q. S‘upposmo' these things cost you $1OO in 1918 and in 1921 you had that sﬁﬂ‘
you went after the general vocabulary price for that. I suppose "the same thing
might cost you $200 in 1921. What would be your vocabulary price in 1921 of tha
thing you had bought for $100 in 1918%—A. You have to take the vaTuatlon bas
Q. Less depreciation?
Mr: Viex:  The deprematlon was valued at 50 per cent because they pa!

50 per cent of. the price.

By Mr. Martell: : iy

Q. In the sale you say you got 50 per cent of the value of the vocabulary prioe n_" s
at the time it was purchased by the Government, now supposing it was $100 whm'
it was purchased, three years after you only get 50 per cent—A. We actually worked on
vocabulary prices in 1918-19. There was a good deal of confusion about it ‘at. that
time, as to what we should work on, and we had not complete vocabulary\ pnees
for all the articles.

Q. As a matter of fact, what you did get was 50 per cent of the vocabulary pnca %
at which you had purshased. e S,

Sir Hexry Dravron: But not the vocabulary prices of 19192 ’

The Cramaan: Order. Tt is very hard when a member bursts in on the witness
or on the member examining the witness. Will you ask your question again, Mr.
Martell ? : ‘ b !

By Mr. Martell: g 3

Q. T will probably make myself clearer if I take an illustration. Supposmg agun
carriage were bought in 1916 for $100; in 1918 a similar gun carriage would cost
$200. You stated at the outset that yeu sold or disposed of them at 50 per cent ef
their vocabulary price?%—A. I would like to amend that. ;

Q. That would be 50 per cent of the 1916 price of $100, not 50 per cen(; of
the $200, which would mean that you got the same amount as you had paid ?—A. I >am
sorry if I conveyed a wrong 1mpress1on 13001

Mr, Mewsury: The witness did not say that.

The Cuamyvax: Give the witness an opportumty to answer.

[General MacBrien.] ;
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The Wm'ums. I think T wﬂl put it thas way: To the best of my belief the
were con'ipnmd from the moblhzatmn store tables and the vocabulary pnces ;

; By Mr. Martell .
Q. Do you mean to say then that you absolutely ignored the pnce at whlch
I i% was pm'chased and that you sold 1t at the price for that particular year, 19197—A.

f .' es.
A By Mr. Lewis:

) Q Was this material new, or had it been used ?—A. The matemal had been in use
by the Canadian troops in France, the bulk of it, or by Canadian troops in England.

Q. Fifty per cent would seem good value and far more than it Would be worth
1f it had been used.
~ Mr. Maxton: A lot of it must have been used.

‘ . ', 'The_ CuamyaN: Let the witness answer.
- The Wirsess: In my opinion it was a most generous price that the War
Oftice gave us for the balance of the equipment which Canada had.

By Myr. Lewis:

Q If Canada had brought that material home and tried to sell it there would
“have been a material less?—A. I would not like to say that. T did not come back
to Canada until the middle of 1920, and as T do not know what the conditions were
. I cannot' say.
3 Q. Was there a market in - Canada for it?—A. I cannot say.

By Mr. Vien: !
Q. Was any part of that material that was left over and sold new?%—A. Practi-
cally none new.

By Mr. Martell

i Q. Are you in a p051t10n to give a statement as to what amount was new and what
was 0ld?%—A. No, I do not think that any man would have that knowledge.

. Mr. Bovs: The question of vocabulary prices has been mentioned freely, and
there is a feature of it that I do not quite understand, but it is important. I
understand that when an article was purchased, the vocabulary price was fixed
for it and it was listed. Now, are these vocabulary prices changed once a year?—A.
The vocabulary prices are revised usually yearly.

Q. Very much as a store-keeper would take his inventory?—A. Yes.

" Q. So it is a varying price from year to year, either appreciating or depreciating

as the case may be?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Martell:

Q. Was there no inventory taken with the description of the things you were

. gelling?—A. Yes, the inventory was really done in this way: We had so many units

~in the Canadian forces and each unit had a mobilization store table which shows to
the last article what that unit is supposed to be in possession of, and we worked

- on the store tables yearly. We assumed that every unit was complete after the armis-
tice came because we had paid an amount per capita per soldier in France to keep him
complete and the equipment complete. Therefore, we assumed that they were
actually complete. Now, what they possessed was turned over into the big depots
in France, and then when we wanted to draw them out again we worked on those
‘mobilization store tables which are really huge inventories of what each unit is

“supposed to have in its possession.

Q. Those inventories are non-existent?—A. No, they could be turned up.

B [General MacBrien.]
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Q. They would show what were the B,l‘tl(ﬂ% and what you so
3 took quite a large staff quite a number of months to make out ths 11% ﬂﬁ@
out what the balance would be. That staff worked under my orders in Arg

By Mr. Lewis: . N B 7
" Q. Did Canada reserve. anythmg of that for her own use? Fi

Mr. MEWBqRN The mechanical transport.
The Wirness: No, the mechanical transport of the Canadl.an Corp3'

By Mr. Vien:
Q. Can you tell us what the result will show?—A. Yon mean the mac“h i}
transport ?

Q. Yes: CUACT oantell you in thls way: I will give one or two apemﬁ 'i ]
The Cadillac car, which was perhaps the thing most in use with the forces ove
cost, I have been informed, the Canadian Government, somewhere about $1,90
wholesale price, and they were sold under this agreement to the war oﬂice ai: fl h
as £800. \y i

Mr. Hanson: 1 thmk we had better refund them somethmg

The Wirnxess: I am mentioning both the minimum and the mammum The
usual price was from £500 to £600 for that type of vehicle, and ta.kmg the same vehicle
all the way through the Canadian Government made a very large profit and had
use of the vehicles in addition.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Were they worn?—A. Very much worn. A

By Mr. Vien:

Q. If I understand rightly your statement it i3 that in respect to the mechanwaI -
transport the Govérnment got from the Imperial Government more than what theq 2
had paid for it?—A. Yes. LY

Q. And made a profiti—A. Yes.

Sir Hexry Dravron: Fifty per cent? : Ny et ‘ -

By Mr. Vien: Honk fidsh
Q. Not on the mechanical transport. The 50 per cent does not apply to the
mechanieal transport?—A. No. g ; % i

Q. Tt applies only to the balance?—A. ¥Yes. e

Q. Was all the mechanical transport equ1pment sold to the Impenal Govern
ment*—A. Not all. That portion which was in France was sold; what was actually
in our possession with the tro’ops in’ England was sold on the public market at auc-
tion sale. A purchasing commission was established there by Sir Edward Kemp and
it carried out public sales. '

Q. None was sold by private sales?—A. None was sold at private sales.

By Sir Henry Drayton: ; : ~fv i 3

5

Q. What was the result of that? Was it advantageous ov not?—A. Yes, it wa& i [ Al
sold in 1919-1920 as it could be dispensed with when the market for rgechamcil‘ i
transport was high, and we realized very high prices on all those vehicles that we 3

sold.
By an Hon: Member:

ing a proﬁt on the whole transactlon
[General MacBrien.]
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£ = By Mr. Vien: Ik
¥ Q. Where are the details of this transaction to be obtained in respect to the
I mechamcal transport ~—A. We have a complete statement showing every vehicle that
was handed over to the War Office. y
Q. In the mechanical transport t—A. Yes. '
Q. Have you the same in respect to that sold by auction?—A. Yes, I thmk
~ that could be all worked out too. ;
- Q. Would it be a long work?—A. Tt would I may tell the Committee that if
all those things are to be dug out it will be necessary to have a special staff to go into
+if. Unless you have been associated with those files, you have no idea as to the
amount of work entailed. T feel certain that I can get you without much difficulty a
summarized statement in regard to the mechanical transport. But, for instance,
the mechanical transport sold in England—that would be most difficult to get because
' you would have to go through all the different dockets for the sales. It would take
a week’s work.
Q. Would it be passible to have a statement showing, first, what the mechanical
transport has cost, the total cost to Canada of the mechanical transport equipment;
b + secondly, the result of the various sales, a summary of the various sales to the British
j Government by auction, in France by auct1on and in England?—A. T thmk probably

that could be worked out in time.
B Mr. Hanson: And the wear and tear?

T The CuamrMAN: Order. In order to have a clean record, if remarks however
interesting and valuable are going to be interjected when a witness is being examined
it is very hard to get them on the record; so I would ask that when one member is
_examining a witness he be given a fair chance, and that will apply to all members
of the Committee.

v P Mr. Bovs: May I interrupt at this stage to ask whether any of the reports of
g this Committee are going to be printed?

E " The Crerk: If you move that they be printed they will be printed.

The CualrMAN: Tt is apparently within the discretion - of the Committee.

My, Vien: Wonld it not be wiser to wait until the next sitting to determine
whether it should be printed or not?

Mzr. Manton: It depends on who sees the advantage.

[ Mr. Bovs: The investigation will not be very long and will not be too costly.
& I take the liberty of making a motion that the proceedings of this committee be
printed and distributed to the members of the Committee’in the usual way.

My, Vien: I move as an amendment that the question stand over till the mext
sitting of the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Any discussion on the motion and amendment?

8 & Mr. Lewis: How can we ask intelligent questions unless we know what has gone
i\ -+ before? We eannot carry in our minds the statements of witnesses for future examina-
- tion.
Mr. Vien: I will withdraw my amendment for the reason given by the hon.
member.

Mr. Hanson: I second the motion.

. The CHARMAN: It is moved by Mr. Boys, seconded by Mr. Hanson that the
1 proceedings of this Committee be printed and distributed to the members of the
‘Committee.

¥ [General MacBrien.]
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An Hon. Memsr: In your statement, Mr! Chalrman, you spoke of havrng n:!l“"
the proceedings of this Committee printed. A

The CHAIRMAN I saxd g The proceedings.” That would mean all the procee«hngs
Motion agreed to. 1 ‘

By Mr. Vien: it AN i

Q. Would you kindly file as an exhibit in thls mvestlgatlon the Bummary of j
operations in respect to the mechanical transport?—A. Yes. il

Q. Was there any part of that equipment sold in France?—A. No. ; e

Q. Everything was brought back to England?—A. T presgme that the War i
Office eventually brought it back. Are you speaking of the mechanical transport?
We had nothing further to do with it after it was turned into the Army Ordnance
depots in France. What the War Office did with it I do not know, whether they Tl
brought it back to England and sold it there. When I last visited France in Novem- SRER P a
ber, 1919, it was still there rotting in the depots. ‘ . 2t

Q. What proportlon of the total mechanical transport equipment that was sold
to the War Office was in your hands at the conclusion of the war?—A. T think— :
speaking roughly—I cannot do better than give rough estimates—I should think
three-fourths, 75 per cent. PR

Q. So you had the best part of it?—A. I did not have a chance of com.plhng x
the actual state because T was serving in France, and I did not see the equipment in #
England until after the war. It was the same sort of equipment but I cannot give X
any useful evidence as to the relative value of that in France over that in England. o
: Q. So that in your estimation, not more than 25 per cent of the equipment was L |
sold by auction %—A. Not more than 25 per cent, I do not think. All the mechanical
transport was in possession of the Canadian troops in England and sold there. I
think that would be it._

Q. You say “in possession of the troops in England?’—A. Yes.

Q. Would that not include the equipment in France?—A. No.

Q. In possession of the Canadian troops?—A. The equipment that was in France
was turned into the depots. - The mechanical transport for the Canadian Corps in SNty
France was turned into the depots in France and there taken cver by the War ‘Office,
and it is the inventory of it taken that I hope to produce here showing every vehicle
that was handed over. The credit is shown in that statement there for those vehicles
which we eventually got. Now, the mechanical transport which the Canadian troops
had in England in all the various depots - there was sold by public auction in the
various parts where they happened to be. That is going to be the most difficult thing :
to get, the actual figures regarding that. The sales went over a long period of time 1
but T think it can be all eventually dug out.

Q. The mechanical transport in France was turned over to the ordnance there? -
—A. Yes.

Q. Were they valued separately, or did they come under the general statement
of 50 per cent?—A. No, they were valued separately. There is a separate item in
that financial statement of mechanical transport, because as I stated earlier, they :
were' sold on the basis that Canada was to receive the average price realized by the
British Government for the sales which they had carried out during July and August, |
1919. We accepted the average price for similar vehicles which had been obtained
in London.

Q. So that the whole mechanical transport which was in France at the time of the
armistice was handed over to thé British Government?—A. Yes.

Q. In respect to the equipment of the mechanical transport in England, part of it,

75 per cent of it, was sold to the War Office?—A. No, none of what was in England
was sold to the War Office. G g

[General MacBrien.]
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~ Mr. Mewsugx: I think the witness made that very clear. The mechanical trans-
port may be divided into two parts: The mechanical transport used by the Canadian
“troops in France, an inventory of which was taken aceording to what each unit
would be in possession of at that time. The mechanical transport was under an
: arrangexnent 'thh the War Office turned over to the Imperial authorities, and they
~allowed us a certa*n price for it. v
Y Mr. Vien: 1 would prefer to have the witness answer.
~ Mr. Mewsurx: Is that statement not correct.
' Sir Henry Drayron: He has said it several times.

M. Viex: I am sorry if T am so dense.

By Mr. Mewburn:

Q With regard to the mechanical transport equipment whlch the Canadian
troops had in England, there was no arrangement with the War Office, but the
Overseas Ministery sold that equipment in the open market in England?%—A. Yes.
You asked me, Mr, Vien, as to what proportion of the Canadian mechanical transport

T

£
FV A -

E- had been disposed of in England. T grduped the two together, and I gave an estimate
g which I think was 25 per cent.

[k " By Mr. Vien: ‘

B, Q. That part was not handed over to the War Oﬂ‘ice?—A No.

—71

2 By Mr. Martell:

" Q. A ' action would be under: Col. Harrington %—A. Yes.

y Q. He ‘pro‘hamy"‘bﬁff more about the whole details than anybody else?—
45 AL TYER

';_~ B MM rositnad e Chais.
; Mr. Haxson: Would it be in order to-meverthat at this stage Col. Harrmgton be

- subpoenaed and also Col. Dodds.

The Cuamman: Yes. Let us find out where these gentlemen are.

Mr. Hanson: Col. Harrington can be be here in 24 hours, I believe, or 48 at the
" outside.

Mr. Vien: We are trymg to simply go into the general dispoSition of the whole
of the material.

The CHAIRMAN: As a matter of fact, this Comimittee’s raison d’étre is to examme

E whatever the members think is wise to examine. {

Sir Hexry DrayroN: Anything with regard to publie accounts tabled.

‘It was moved by Mr. Hanson, seconded by Mr. Martell, that Col. Gordon F.
Harrington of Sydney, C.B., N.S., be asked to attend.

Mr. Hanson: When? Next seesion ? Next Wednesday. Mr. Chairman, you
better leave it until Friday, beeause Col. Harrington wants to have an opportunity of
going over the files in relation to it, in order to allow him to refresh his memory.

The CuarMAN: I think that is right.

Mr. Hanson: Friday of next week.

Hon. Mr. Mewsurx: It is hardly fair to ask Col Harrington to give evidenow
the day he gets here, because he has no documents in his possession, and he will
- probably have to go over some of the records.

4 ,L The CuarMAN: He will be advised of what point he will be expected to give
evidence on, and he will be told by the Clerk who writes the letter that it ‘should be

for Friday, in order to give him an opportunity of geting here a day or so in advance,
[General MacBrién. ]
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that he mlght refresh his memory regarding the point on whick he w1il be exammed
I think Col. Vien or General McBrien betwéen them could probably well indicate what 1
points the Colonel can give evidence on, with the help of' Mr. Martell, too. y

Mr. MarTELL: My chief object was, I was under Col. Harrmgton and T know ‘
him well and I would like to see him here in order that he might give an account of
his administration. I have every faith in Col. Harrington.

Mr. Vien: With that object in view might we not summon him for Wednesdsy
and he will be advised what he is going to be asked; and on Frlda3 he will be exammed

»

Sir HeNrY DrayTon: All r1ght send him a wire. v 3
The CHAIRMAN: The motion is amended accordingly, and we will proceed. ’ )

(Motion agreed to.) : 4 5 A

By Mr*Vien: : EOR
Q. Outside of the mechanical transport, in respect of the rest of the equlpment L
on hand, Canada gave to the War Office a statement of all their requnements-?—A

Yes. =
Q. And these requirements were ﬁlled and the war materlal was takeu over to _
Canada by Canada at Canada’s expense?—A. Yes. it e N
Q. The balance of it, if T understood you rightly, was sold to the War Office at R ‘

50 per cent of the cost price?—A. Yes.

Q. Valued on the vocabulary list of 1918°19%—A. Yes, correct.

Q. Could you table before this Committee the list which was ordered from the
War Office, that is the statement of our requirements?—A..T can give you a_list of
the units. Tt was roughly the equipment for four divisions and the cavalry brigade. . |

Q. Have you got a detailed statement?—A. I can give you a statement of every . b
unit, the equipment which we asked for, that Canada asked for.

Q. Hiave you got it ready? ‘ 3 g 5

(Detailed statement of equipment required was produced before the Commlttee) ; o,

Q. You will be able to go ‘over that and see if you want it in. This might be
left with the Secretary until the next sitting? Then you determined what your g
requirements were?%—A. Personally I did not know.. They were determined here in !
Canada.

Q. They were determined here in Canada ?2—A. Yes, but théy were informed here f
that we had to draw the bulk of the equipment. The War Office was not agreqable 1
to taking over the bulk of our equipment from us at all. _

Q. Did T not understand you to say—A. I mean they took it over from us, holding !
it, but they were not agreeable to purchase from us the bulk of our equipment. ‘We % :
had to take the larger proportion of it. 4

i R ; FX Lt :
Sur Henry Drayton: 4

Q. Just at that point, to clear up what you are saying;:did this equlpment e ¥ i
clude shells, ammunition and military equipment?—A. Sometimes the term is used: il
loosely. If you wanted to include a thing you would mclude war material. 3

Q. Sometimes equipment covers everythmg. but your expression is “ War material.” .
—A. Yes. it F

Q. In speaking of war equipment, what'are you referring to ?—A. Actnal vehlcles 3
and rifles in possession of the troops proper. : g

Q. Are you including in that, shells and ammunition ¢—A. No, sir.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Those are war-like stores *—A. Yes.
[General MacBrien.] 7
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bl st ByMr Vien: -
Q. Was it the same agreement— in respect to war-like stores, or was it a different
agree'ment altogether ?—A. The first agreement was general, I think probably could
be ut down as war-like stores. I think it could be comprehenSWe enough to include
.. war-hke stores.
; Q. But were the war-like stores covered ulmmately by the same ‘agreement?
‘ —A. No. We had to take up speclal negotiations regarding certain articles, the
mechamcal ‘transport, the horse transport; we had to have special negotiations for

& ~that. ; .
! Q. Then you had special negotiations yegarding ammunition. What was the
- agreement in respect to ammunition’—A. You mean about sending it out here?
Q No. You said that you made several agreements, one in respect of horses,
- one in respect of mechanical transport, one in respect of mechanical equipment, and
. one in respect of ammunition.—A. Yes. The final agreement regarding the ammuni-
.tio'n was this: that if Canada would drop her claims to ammunition or for ammunition,
. _the War Office would supply us with 500 rounds per gun, for all the guns which we
iz were shipping back to this country, provided Canada would drop any financial claims
f she might have against the War Office for ammunition. :
: Q. What do yeu mean by that? What claims could Canada have against the
War Office for ammunition %—A. She could have several claims, and there was great
! difficulty about establishing them definitely. First, she had a claim with respect to
; . ammunition sent from this country at the beginning of the war; secondly, she had
a claim for ammunition purchased in Enkgland by the Canadian Government for the
Canadian Units that went from England to France.
+ Q. Prior to 1917%—A. Up to the end of the war,

came over in 1918, for instance.
Q. After 1917 the arrangement was a per head basis?—A. The third claim which

(Canada might have had and would have been able to submit probably would be
~ the capitation agreement which they originally started at 5s. per soldier and 1s. for
' ammunition. That continued for a time when they raised the ammunition charge
10 4s. 4d. for a soldier in France, and later in 1918 the actual cost of ammunition was
charged against the Canadian Government according to the expenditures of different
army fronts. Supposing a Canadian Corps was in the second army for a certain
month of the war, and 2,000,000 rounds of ammunition was expended during that
£ time, there were ﬁve corps in that army; the Canadian Government would then be
& charged with one-fifth of the cost of this 2,000,000 rounds of ammunition. That was
i, the basis of the ammunition. It is not really the way we were paying for the ammuni-
’E_ tion which was used. An accurate account could not be kept, and the faulty part of
‘ some of the bases of that claim are these: first, we had not paid for all the ammunition
L which had been taken by the Canadian TlO()[)s in France.
: Q. We had been paid?—A. Had not. I failed to find evidence or proof that
b * ‘we had actually paid for that initial ammunition which the Canadian Units took to
B o France, but T found evidence we had paid for the five divisional artillery Units but
. none of the others we dropped. We found difficulty in establishing that claim.
. The second part was, on payment according to the cost of the ammunition. Weyonly
 paid for that on expenditure returns at the end of each month, and we had roughly
“R00 rounﬂs per gun with the guns when the Armistice came, and we based our claim
to 500 rounds of ammunition for the reason we had it in®our po>see%10n, but on
searching we found—
Q. What do you mean by saying you had it in your pos‘session?——A. They were
either in ammunition wagons, or dumped beside the guns when the Armistice came.
‘We turned that 500 rounds into the various Depots, but at the same time, the Cana-
dian Government had not paid for all that ammunition. First, we had not paid for
the regimental reserves, We could find no trace of ‘that, which amounts to 200 rounds

per gun then there was the dump ammunition which we were going to pay for on
[General MacBrien.]
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expenditure returns. It had not been expended, therefore Canada was nevgr aslmd
to pay for it and our claim for ammunition as far as I have been able to trace it, was
a very weak one indeed, and in consideration ‘of our droppmg this claim, the War
Office said “we will issue you 500 rounds per gun, for the guns you are takmg back-
Canada, and you will drop your claim.”

Q. What would be our claim in respect of thé first item you mention. You smd ,
orr first elaim would be the ammunition that was sent from Canada to England?—'
A. Yes.

Q. What would that be?—A. That is enumerated in the statement of General
Fiset.

General Fiser: $1,270,000. That i8 in that statement there.

By Mr. Vien: X
Q). That'is the total cost of the ammunition ?

Mr. Lewis: The 500 rounds you are speaking of for the guns, is that the ammum-
tior which was returnéd to Canada?—A. Yes. It is not all here yet. i

Mr. Viex: If I understand you—I would not like to be mixed up, even at the
expense of being eriticised for putting the question twice—on account of my density
in such matters, I would like you to explain again if the $1,272,000 mentioned in the -
statement covers all the ammunition we sent to England, and for which Canada had
a claim against England%—A. T believe so. I believe it is the same item.

Q. Have you actually verified that?—A. Yes, I can assume it is the same item. '

Q. You say when the Armistice was signed we had in France what was estimated
at 500 rounds per gun?—A, About 200 rounds, I should say, or 175 possibly, what is
known as regimental reserve, what is carried actually in the ammunition wagons.

Q. Now these 500 rounds were the property of Canada?—A. No. I said it was
doubtful as to whether it was the property of Canada, and I tried to explain that even
the regimental reserve, as far as we have been able to find out in the overseas accounts,
had not been paid for with the exception of the Fifth Division Artillery.

Q. Was it not understood we paid to the War Office 9s. 4d. a day, 5s. of which -
covered the soldier and 4s. 4d. covered ammunition supplied to our soldiers?—A. Yes,
but not in 1918. : b e

Q. Then in 1918 instead of charging 4s. 4d. a day in respect of ammumtlon, we !
were alloted a certain pro rata total charged for amimunition to the Corps.—A. Accord-
ing to the expenditure returns.

Q. So that in the final settlement an item was charged to us in respeet of our pro
rata of ammunition returns?—A. No, because for this-reason that the ammunition,
roughly 300 rounds per gun, had not been expended.

Q. T beg your pardon %—A. Roughly 300 rounds per gun had not been expended,
and therefore was not charged against the Canadian Government. May I explain this
matter. When a battery of six guns goes into action, it has a regimental reserve of
ammunition of roughly, 200 rounds per gun, carried in the ammunition wagon. That.
was brought from England to France with that battery, and we were chargeable with
that. As a matter of faet, I dont think that the Canadian Government has ever paid
for it. Then after we got into aection, an extra supply of ammunition was brought =
from the reserves, the divisional and corps reserves, and dumped at the guns for
immediate use, and we would often fire away 500 rounds per diem per gun, and we
were charged with the extra 300 rounds per gun that was dumped there, on expenditure
returns, monthly expenditure returns, so that when the Armistice came, we had our
dumps there, but we had not expended the ammunition. Therefore I am of opinion
we were never charged with those 300 rounds.

Q. Was it ascertained whether we were chhrged for it or not?—A. Not deﬁmtely,
because we came to the agreement that if we would drop all ammunition claims, they

[General MacBrien.] { -
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CoanivmiTTee Roow, 424,
House or CoMMONS,

Fripay, May 12, 1922.

The Select Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11.00 o’clock am,
Mr. A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding. :

The Committee proceeded to the further consideration of the following:

(A) ' The accounts opened in our books in favour of the British Government ;

" (B) the accounts opened by the British Government, in favour of the (Canadian

Government; (C) the payment of those accounts; (D) the war material sent over
to England at the opening of the war; (E) the war material sent over fo Canda after
the termination of the war; (F) the determination of the balances either in
favour of Canada or against it; (G) particulars of expenditure of $8,411,800 last
year for Demobilization or adjustment of war claims.

‘The CuAIRMAN: Mr. McIsaac, I have to go to the Agricultural Committee this
morning and I will be very glad if you will take the Chair.

Mr. Mclsaac took the Chair. : i

Col. G. [S. HarringTON called and sworn.
The Wirness: Mr. Chairman, may I make a_general statement before I am
examined for the information of the committee?
Mr. Viex: I think it would be better to make a statement to the committee.
The Wirness: I just wish to say this: It is two years ago since the settlements
were made with the War Office upon which I am to be examined. According to the
summons I got I am to give evidence regarding the settlements made with the
War Office on behalf of the Department of the Overseas Ministry of Military
Affairs of Canada. These settlements were made two years ago by me in London
where I went upon the instructions of Sir Edward Kemp, the Minister at that

_time. The Privy Council order that approved of those settlements has attached

to it the correspondence that passed between our Department, at that time repre-
sented by myself, and the War Office officials. A reference to that correspondence
will show that on the payment of the balance found due by Canada to the War
office for our tradings, we called upon them and they agreed to consider all transac-
tions that had taken place between our Department and the War Office up to that
time, the 31st May, 1920, as closed and incapable of being raised again by either
side against either side. That correspondence was confirmed by Privy Council
order. When I brought it over here in June or July, 1920, T handed it over with
my report to Sir Edward Kemp, and then T left to go to my native province where
I have been ever since. Now, considering that the matter was closed, I have been
diligently attempting to forget it ever since; and when I got this summons to appear
here on Wednesday to give evidence re settlements of accounts of Overseas Ministry
of Militia and Defence, it at first seemed to me that I would be of no use whatever to you
But I came here on Tuesday afternoon in obedience to this summons, and your
committee was unable to meet on Wednesday, the time set. But I had the advantage
of being examined by Col. Vien in his office quite lengthily in regard to it, and
I found that my memory is fairly complete, as I think the Colonel will bear me
out. So that in all likelihood I am able to give you such evidence as you require in
this examination. But I wish to make this statement so that I will not continually
have to say “This is to the best of my recollection,” or “this is the best of my
[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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Q. What are your Christian names Col. Harrmgton?——A Gordon Su!my
Q. You are a barrister, I understand?—A. Kings Counsel at the bar of :
Scotia. ‘ ot

Q. And you practlse in Sydney?—A. I practise in Sydney.

Q. You enlisted in the Canadian Expeditionary Forces?—A. In the 851;11
Battalion, in 1915.

Q. When were you summoned to the staff of the Overseas: Department?—-A.
Some time in the summer of 1917 I was summoned to act as Assistant Deput
Minister to Col. Gow who was then Deputy Minister of the Department of Overseas
Military Forces of Canada of which Sir George Perley was Minister.

Q. Prior to that date what were your duties?—A. I was serving on reglmental b
and staff duties in both France and Dngland

Q. What were your staff duties in England prior to your appomtment asr
Assistant Deputy Minister?—A. What you call staff duties in England were in the‘ ;
nature of attachment to the staff of the General Officer Commanding the Canadian
Forces in the British Isles for special investigations regarding the Minister’s
interests ;in military affairs. I cannot remember the particular ma'ttets, but T was
attached specially to his staff.

Q. What was your appellation?—A. I merely went by my rank as an army»'
officer at that time.

Q. You had no particularly definite staff appointment?—A. There was mno
particular appointment on the establishment that I filled.

Q. What did you do prior to being Assistant Deputy Minister? How could
you describe your activities? My question is,purely to establish whether you had
anything to do, prior to becoming Assistant Deputy Minister with the settlement
of claims as between the Imperial Government and the Canadian Government?—A.
I can safely say that I had nothing whatever to do with it before my appointment at
that time.

Q. In 1917%—A. In 1917.

Q. When did you take charge?—A. As Deputy Minister?

Q. As Assistant Deputy Minister—A. It would be through the summer of 1917,
and I acted in that capacity for a short time when ICol. Gow of Toronto, who was then
Deputy Minister, became ill and hadjto go to Toronto. I then acted as Deputy
Minister for the months, I think, of September, October and November, under Sir
George Perley until Sir Edward Kemp came from Canada and Col. Gow came back
with him, I believe about the end of December, 1917.

Q. And then?—A. Then I left the Mmlbtry again and went back to army
employment of some kind or another.

Q. For how long?—A. Until, I believe, March 1918, when Sir Edward Kemp
asked that I be brought back to assist Col. Gow again, who had become very heavily
burdened with his office and was, not very well.

Q. And you acted in that capacity until?%—A. I acted then as Assistant Deputy
M:nister to Colonel Gow, who was Sir Edward Kemp’s Deputy Minister, until Colonel
Gow again had to retire.

Q. If you could give us the dates, it would be more useful?—A. Colonel Gow
had to retire in October, 1918, and I was appointed Deputy Minister in his place
by Order in Council.

Q. And you acted until?>—A. I acted until the Ministry eprred by operatlon
of the Act, or Order in Council which brought it into effect -

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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Q W}.uch was?—A I think about the time that these settlements were made,
17 the session of Parliament immediately subsequent.to that or prior to it; I am
not quite clear on that, Colonel Vien. ’

- Q. You went over the accounts between the Imperial Government and the
Canadian Government, to come to the settlement which was covered and ratified by
- the Order in Council of the 16th February, 1921; you have had to go over all the
 accounts*—A. In my settlement with the War Office?

D Q. Yes?—A. Only such as were then outstanding. Many had been settled
~  before that, and closed. (

AR Q. That is true; but all the outstanding accounts had to be taken 'into account
for the settlement?—A. Absolutely; all the outstanding matters were collected
together and I took them over and settled the whole lot.

Q. And I understand that the final settlement as revealed by the Order in Counecil g
- and the documents attached thereto was that we were indebted to the Imperial Gov-
~ ernment, to the War Office, in £391,497, 17s, 5d%—A. That is correct.

i Q. When you discussed this item did you take into account the war-like stores,

. equipment, armament, etc., which was sent to England on special request at the
- opening of the war%—A. I remember that we had one or two items of that character
that we took into the settlement of these accounts and obtained credit for. I am
unable at the present moment to give you particulars of it, but I remember that we
had either one or two credits, of which I am sure in that connection.

Q. Did you notice that at the opening of the war a request came by cable
from the War Office asking the Canadian Government to send over all the cannons,
guns, and equipment available in Canada?—A. I have no personal knowledge of that
- request, though I believe it existed; I have no personal knowledge of it. p

Q. Then did you also take notice that when this shipment was made an inven-
tory was taken of all that war material’—A. No; I have no personal knowledge of
that, also.

Q. When your final settlement took place were these stores or any credit for them
in the books of the War Office taken into account?—A. I believe so, on claims con-
struected by the Militia Department in Canada.

- - Q. But you went thoroughly into these claims, did you?—A. Not so thoroughly
‘ as I would have gone into claims arising immediately out of our own department,
- but my recollection of it‘ais that I received from the Militia Department the general
' claims that they made in this behalf, presented them to the War Office and in return
’ received a credit to our sales for them.

4 . Q. Did you receive from the Militia Department an inventory or a detailed
account of the war-like stores which were sent, as I mentioned a minute ago?—

i A. No.

; Q. While you are on that point, I Would}like to ask a question. These guI;s and
this equlpment which the British Government asked to have sent over, were they used
exclusively for British forces? That would make all the difference in the world as to
whether there should be a credit or not.—A. I cannot tell you that, but it is very
likely that some of these stores were used amongst our own troops—

M]- Vrsnn.mnﬁwmmm%am The‘*wﬂ‘ness‘“ﬁ‘oionel
mgton, just says that he has no perspnal knowledge of it.

. Hanson: Then I would submit, IMr. Chairman, that he woul
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Q. Have you any personal knowledge of it ?—A No personal knowledge what-

‘ever.

Q. Can you tell me, with regard to guns or equipment that Canada used, whie'h__, ’
‘came from Great Britain, at, the time of the war, whether there would be an inven-
tory of every small item that came along to the front, or in the case of a rush would
any equipment from the British Army be used by the Canadian forces of ’which" 5

no account might be taken at all?—A. I believe there are numerous occasions of
kind.

Q. In a great war of that description, where the fronts comclded, where t]wy
were contiguous, it would/be almost impossible to diseriminate?—A. It was out

of the question; in the areas of operations we made no attempt to account for stores 3 Py

drawn.

/

Q. But, Colonel, with the First Contingent we sent guns to equip the Royal :
Horse Artillery and the Royal Canadian Field Artillery?—A. I believe that is so,

but I have no personal knowledge of it.

Q. Then you know that after these were sent over we purchased from the War
Office all the guns and equipment which we required for our troops in France and
in England, and they were charged in the books of the Wary Office for same?—A. I
will have to answer that in’ this way, that we obtained full initial equipment for our
troops that took the field in going from England to France, but I am unable to say
that we purchased absolutely every item from the British War Office. I believe that
some of them were supplied gratuitously to us.

Q. But I submit that the guns that went to France with jour troops were part
of their equipment?—A. Absolutely.

Q. And were purchased from the British Government and were charged in their
books against Canada?—A. Theoretically that is quite correct, Colonel, but prac-
tically I think it did not work out that way, because the British were extending their
ordnance organization at that time, and from my subsequent knowledge I am able
to say that they did not have it sufficiently complete at the time to make all charges
of issues that they did make.

Q. If T understand rightly, that was the basis of our operations, but in the
carrying out of the transactions between both Governments they, could not trace all
the articles to the minutest details?—A. Absolutely; I will say that is correct.

Q. In that case, Colonel Harrington, would you say that the benefit would be
on the Canadian side or the British side? Would you say that we over-supplied them,
or that the advantage was to us in the transaction that took place at that time?—

A. It invariably worked to our benefit. KL
i . AT ERRAARE
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t“the Chairman-to.say that.

?bhe other that & a}ll Taking all
a little gratuity on the Canadian
a greater gratuity on fthe other
e fairness of the situation.

“of the opinion that I am trying to fish for scandals or {o fish for anything detrimental
either tol the staff or the previous administration. § hat is mot my intention at

Mr. HansoN: Why are we here then?

An Hon. MemBER: It is your hope |

Mr. Hansox: It is your hope, then

Mr. Vien: It is not my hope.

Mr. Lewss: I call the attention of %t.he Chairman—

j, y Mr. ;u ~: If my honourable friend will allow me, ¥ will put my point. We
want some information about the transaction. I may say Elght now, after my con-

versation with the Colonel I was extretnely pleased with the information I got, not

LF from the point of view of scandalous ‘transactions, but on account of the volume
51 of information he gave me in connection with the admini%ration overseas.

i - Mr. Boys: We want to get that to the public. %

L V%w’ Absolutely, yes, and I haVe no objection whatever.

Hon Mr. Maxion: Mr. Chalrman, ometlmes when Colonel Vien asks a question,
someone in %hls audience who is just as much a member ‘@s Mr. Vien wishes to
elucidate sonfe point, and T think it is the!privilege of any member of the Committee
to do so. I 40 not think Colone’l Vien should object to questlons by my friend on
the left. y

Mr. Vien: I was not raiding a point of order. The pofxpt that I raised was
simply to see whether we could adopt some way of proceedmg which would let us
get along and get a clearer result of the investigation. 3

Hon. Mr. Maxiox: Mr. Chairman, with all due respect to ‘the legal fraternity,
once in a while a gentleman like myself or the gentleman on the left—mneither of us
i are lawyers—sees a point that is worth elucidating, and which 1s not being brought
' out. I think it is quite in order to ask these questious.

Mr. Viex: My honounable friend knows that it is not a prof-essional point which

. I raise. It is omnly a question of getting along and getting proper information.
"f Mr. Lewis: Mr. Chairman, I do not know that he has any more right to ask a
( | question than I hav

Mr. Haxsox: I submit Colonel Vien is not appointed as a prosecuting attorney
by this Committee, and I think I have just as much right to ask questmns as he has,
and until I am restrained I am going to e}iermse that right.

Mr. ParenT: At the same time, Mr. Chairman, we must realize ‘that the member
takes upon himself to summon before this Committee certain gentlemen to be
heard. He is supposed to have made a sp‘emal study of the case @nd to be better
prepared than anybody else, and no one should object to this gentleman having charge ¢
of the case. That dees not, of course, prevent anybody else from putting questions.

Mr. Hansox: I do not propose to be muzzled; nobody has done it yet.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: The members§ of this Committee will understand, of
course, that if this were a Court the lawyer who was directing the examination

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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would have the floor, and no one she
on thefother side puts any questionsthe likes. i That can be done Tere, but 0
the rule is not construed so strictlyfas ‘that in this Committee. That has be

ion, the same as he could in fthe House. At the same time I think |

4 T ‘think thet he ought in |
. Hansox: That ds hardly fair. If I recollect we asked that this v
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' uld interrupt him; when he ﬁms’hes i P
any honourable member can at any stag

nding in the past. I think

general way to have the right of way

g Q. You don’t know anything then in respect of the inventories which were
taken at the opening of the war for war material which was sent over to England?

—A. Nothing regarding the inventories for them, but I find eredits in a document

which I think is yours.

Q. Do they include the war material to which I have referred?—A. Will you
refer to statement A that is attached to the Privy Council Order under “Miscellaneons
Accounts”, statement A.

Q. Yes—A. Under “Miscellaneous Accounts” in the debit column, the third
last, you will see “ Ordance Stores received from Canada £374,654 12s. 6d”. That
is the credit we have in our account for Ordnance Stores shipped from Canada to
Great Britain.

Q. Are there any trucks in there?—A. The guns and warlike stores shipped from
Canada at the beginning of the war. It is impossible without the files for me to
state what that is, as ‘that is not within my knowledge.

ment

missio

1915.

Q.

that
Briti
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i

er aceeptmg the clalm ‘
A For the stores sent'ovel ¢

L Q. Can we have that item?—A. I think undoubtedly the Militia Department
'\(? could ﬁnd thdt M

éf

By Mr. Clark:
Does that include the shells?%—A. That includes everything. Then I
count as first presented by the Militia Department was presented
authorities through the Canadian High Commissioner?
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By Mr. Vum. : -
Q. A credit was given in money by them?—A. Yes, in the figures you see there

“in that statement. In the second one, if you look at statement B, the third last

item. in the debit side “Artillery Vehicles £131,395”,—those were artllbery vehicles

shipped from Canada, for which we got eredit. There may be other items but I remem-
‘ber that those were two and I am not able to find others at the present time.

Q. When the settlement took place, if I understand well what was said in the
Committee the other day by General MacBrien, that the equipment and ammuni-
tion which we had in France, were turned into: the Ordnance Stores there?—A. That

~ is correct. They were turned into collecting depots in France and Belgium, all

our equipment, together with the British equipment; no distinction made between

_them, and in return we got an undertaking from the British Government that we

could draw similar quantities of like equipment, of serviceable material from their
surpluses in England as we desired or required them

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. Did the British Government bring this stuff from France back to Britain,
or is it still there?—A. I know some of their stuff was left there, but whether it has
been brought back or is of any commercial value, I don’t know.

By Mr. Parent:
Q. As a matter of fact was not a large quantity of stores sold in France?—
A. You are asking me about matters on which I have no personal information.
Q. Can you tell us who can give us that informiation?—A. Nobody outside the
War Office. i
Q. Any Canadian oﬂicers?—A Except those who were there.

By Mr. Clark:

Q. It is British property?—A. Yes, we handed it over and it became British
property and in return we got the right to draw like equipment from British surplus
stations in England.

Q. Do you know whether we drew any?%—A. Yes.

Q. What condition was it in%—A. A good deal of it was new. The rest of it
was all serviceable. Their undertaking was to give us serviceable equipment, in
lieu of the serviceable equipment we turned in to the service stations in.France and
Belgium. When we came to take it over, they had new stocks in their service and
they issued quite a lot of new stock to us.

By Mr. Vien: ‘
Q. Is it your personal knowledge what mew stock they issued?—A. Not fromn

what I have seen. Some of it I have seen in transit.
Q. My information is to the effect—and that point I would elucidate also later
on, but I don’t think you are able to give us very much information.—A. No, not

. much.

Q. Is it not a fact that much of it was not serviceable?—A. If you will request
the Militia Department to give you information regarding it, they can produce it
at_once. v ' .

By Mr. Parent:

Q. Do you know anything about the number of motor-trucks, bicycles, ambu-
lances and that sort of thing which had been sold in France. No one in the Militia
Department can give us that information.

Mr. Vies: I think General McBrien the other day gave it.

GENERAL MACBRIEN: You mean by the Canadian Government?

Mr. PARENT: Yes.
[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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GENERAL MACBRIEN: As far as my knowledge goes, none ggxe sold in France by

the Canadian Government.
Q. Was it sold anywhere?

GenErAL McBrien: Not the Canadian owned equipment at the end of the war,

except what had been in the possession of the Canadian troops in Great Bnta,m.

That was sold in England.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. And the Canadian owned stuff in France was turned into the collecting
depot and credit for the same as serviceable equ1pment was given to Canada, and
when final settlemént took place, this was put in the vocabulary list at, we will say
roughly speaking, fifty per cent of the valuation as an adjustment. :

WiTNESS Everythmg except the mechanical transports. In that respect there
was a special price list based upon the sales of June and July, 1919, and that price
list T have with me this morning, showing the prices the Canadian Government
obtained for the vehicles.

Q. If I remember what you said in respect of mechanical transport, it is that
we obtained the best prices prevailing in 1918 and 1919 at the sales by the War
Office of their own equipment?—A. Yes, for similar vehicles.

Q. And we got more than they cost the Canadian Government?—A. I believe so,
yes. RS £ 4 ‘ ]

Hon. Mr. Gurarie: Our most important witness is here now. He has to go away
at one o’clock. He is here at great inconvenience to himself, and I think the examin-
ation should be proceeded with as rapidly as possible.

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. Did the Canadian troops draw this new equipment before the troops left for
Canada, or was it subsequent?—A. We drew serviceable equipment.
Q. Before the troops left for Canada, or after%—A. I don’t think any of it was
drawn before they left for 'Canada. It has all been drawn subsequent to the time
when I fancy, demobilization of the troops was on.

By Mr. Hanson: :

Q. Under what circumstances was it drawn?—A. You realize the agreement I
have mentioned, with the War Office, allowed us to turn this equipment, including
the stocks of ammunition, all artillery equipment, cavalry equipment, everything
* we had into the British collecting station in France and Belgium, and draw like
quantities of similar ammunition in a serviceable condition from their surpluses in

England.

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. Was there any extra cost to 'Canada?%—A. The question of costs did not enter

into it. When we came to the stage where we were going to draw some, we con-

sulted Canada through the Militia Department, and they informed us of what their
requirements in equipment were. They required so many guns, so many artillery
vehicles, if any; I am not sure. That can all be produced from the Militia Depart-
ment, because it is a matter of record from the Militia Council, of what they
required.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. Did you get that requisition7 A. We got that requisition and delivered it
to the War Office and said “here is the equipment warrant.”

Q. Have you got that requisition with you now, a copy of it%—A. No, I have
not, but I fancy it can be produced from the Militia Department without any
difficulty.

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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‘' By Mr. Parent:
Q. Do you recall whether there were any Ross rifles to be sent back to ‘Canada ?—

A. T don’t know. Now, we made this demand from the War Office, that they supply

Oanada with this equipment in detail as they asked for it, and they pointed out to
us that they did not exhaust our entitlements under this heading over agreement.
They also left out entirely our entitlements for any munitions for the big guns that
we had left in the dumps in France. It was then we came to them again and said,
“ this surplus that we are leaving with you, we think, should be given credit for to us.”

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. In cash?—A. A cash credit in the account. No cash passed whatever.

Q. No. I understand that—A. At first they were loathe, but eventually they saw
our position that unless they gave us a credit that we were in an unfortunate
position, probably having to open stores of our own and put guards on them to take
care of them or dispose of these stores to the general public in England, wherever
we could, so they undertook to take them over and give us in return a credit based on
their disposal values of the same classes of material, notwithstanding that their first dis-
posals, generally speaking, were far more favourable than their later disposals, because
I presume there was only a limited market in the British Isles for these goods, and
for the most of them the market was very limited. I then suggested to them that
they give us a credit for our ammunition and contended that each one of our guns
were entitled to so much ammunition. According to the War Establishment Military
‘Stores’ tables, when a gun takes the field it has to be equipped with a certain amount
of ammunition, so much per gun, so much from the regimental reserve, so much
from the Divisional reserve, so much at the army dump, so much at railhead. These
experts can give you more definite information regarding that, if it is desired, but
having added all that up, I contended our guns were entitled at any rate to'a certain
amount of ammunition. They at once agreed that was so, but when I asked them to
give us a credit for it I found I was up against the only stone wall that I had run
against in my negotiatibns with the War Office. There was positively no give. They
pointed out that they had those surpluses of ammunition and ‘were cancelling
ammunition contracts which cost them £125,000,000, that they were looking for places
to dump their surpluses; some had been dumped in the North Sea and it cost more
to break down shells than it did to make a special class, so they could in no way
justify their position with the British public in allowing us a cash credit and they
refused to give me a cash credit, but they said, “ You can have all the ammunition
you are entitled to and really if you want more you can have it,” so then we deter-
mined with Canada how much we would demand from them on that basis.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. That is with the Militia Department?—A. That is with the Militia Depart-
ment. The Militia Department advised us what number of rounds per gun they
wished of the different calibres and different classes of ammunition. We made that
flemand on the War Office, and so far as my knowledge goes, it ends. But I believe
1t was being shipped ae often as opportunity occurred. That is the general condition
under which equipment was turned in in France, redrawn in England, and received
here in Canada. ’

3

By Mr. T;ien:

Q. How many troops had we in France at the time of the Armistice’—A. Tt is a
matter of record, Colonel Vien, and I would not like to say. My recollection is that
1t was about 250,000, including all reserves, but it is a matter of record.

Q. What became of the rifles the men had with them?

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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By Mr. Clark: i

. Q. Before we pass from the ehell questlon, might T ask a few questlons in regal
to that. During the progress of the war we paid for our shells on an aptual «expen‘
diture basis, did we not?—A. At one time we did. At another time we pﬂld—— Rod Ay

Q. Let us get the three periods. First of all, there was a period when we pald
for our shells at a cost of so much per head per day?—A. You probably have the
information, but I believe I could state it to you roughly thls way. When our troops
took the field, we agreed op two duplicate lines of communication and would draw
from British stores in France. It was impoesible to make any accounting at that
time. So that we initially equipped our troops in accordance with the Governor
General’s telegram of about the let August, 1914. We theoretically equipped them
fully, and paid for them. They took the field fully equipped, and they maintained
that equipment. They maintained themselves, with the exception of pay and allow-
ances, from British stores. That allowed us to maintain them there without the
establishment of depots for ourselves. To begin with, our arrangement with the
British Government was this, that everything other than big gun ammunition—

Q. Before you proceed, I want to be perfectly clear about your suggestion that
our five artillery divisions went to France fully equipped with ammunition?—A. T am
suggesting that.

Q. Are you further suggesting that the Canadian Government paid for the
ammunition which was taken by those five divisions?

By Mr. Vien: ;
Q. Initially%—A. Initially. I am suggesting that, and they admitted my claim.

By Mr. Clark:

Q. Can you state positively that the Canadian Government did pay for the
ammunition taken to France by those five artillery divisione? Have you any informa-
tion to the contrary?—A. No; I have no information to the contrary. -

Q. Is there any one you know who can give us the information as to whether
or not Canada paid for the artillery ammunition which was taken to France by those
five divisions’—A. I do not believe there is a soul in the world who can give you
that information.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. May I interject to say that at that time there were not five divisions at the front
in France?—A. General Clark is not limiting it to any partie\ilar time.
Mzr. Viex: May T point out to the committee—
Mr. Crark: Mr. Chairman, T submit that if Col. Vien desires to come before the
Committee and give evidence, he should wait until we have concluded the evidence of
this witness.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. Could you tell us about the various agreements which were made with respect
to the ammunition supplied to our troops in the field?—A. General Clark is dealing
with that now.
Mr. Crark: I have not 1nterrupted you, Mr. Vien, and I do not think you should
interrupt me. \
Mr. Vien: Very well.

By Mr. Clark:

Q. T just want to make this point clear, that there is nothing in our records
which would substantiate the suggestion that the Canadian Government paid for the
artillery ammunition taken to France by the five artillery divisions?—A. I do not

[Col. G. 8. Harrington.]
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: tlnnk you should state it 'so emphatically as that. = As far as I am aware there is
g "nothn:g in our records to substantiate the statement that we fully equipped our troops
~ in artillery formation taking the field in all particulars and in all instances with ammu-
‘mtlon. Some artillery formations we could establish.
_ Q. Which ones?—A. I think it was elther the third or the fifth, but I do not think
you should question me upon that, because it is a matter of great detail.
Q. It is quite possible that our artillery divisions, or at least some of our artlllery
. divisions, went to France fully equipped with ammunition which was never paid for
by the Canadian Government, and which was drawn from the Imperial Govérnment —
- A. Tt is quite posmble that that is the case. gl
Q. You ‘eannot give us any definite evidence upon that point?—A. No.

f Q. So that one of the points upon which you based your claim for a credit is not
H tenable at all?*-A. I do not admit that.
i Q. Tt is, at ieast questionable?—A. I admit I was probably not able to substantlate

Vi fully withi cuments

Q. A.nothvg ‘feature that was brought out before the Committee the other day
E when you were not here was that the Canadian Government was requested by the
i Imperial Government to send forward its ammunition that it had here; they were
anxious to get all the ammunition possible, and we sent that forward. You have
given us definite proof, and you hayve it available before you, that Canada was paid
for the ammunition which we sent over there at the outbreak of the war, by means
of a eredit?—A. No; the items I gave you did not specifically include ammunition.

Q. T understood you to say that we were given credit?—A. For ordnance stores.

Q. Do not ordnance stores include ammunition?—A. “Ordnance stores” might,
loosely used, include ammunition, but I do not think that “ordnance stores” as used
there, did include ammunition; I cannot tell you.

Q. TIs there anyone who can tell me?—A. I do not think there is anybody.

Q. Was that one of the points upon which you based your claim for a credit?—
A. Yes.

Q. And again you could not substantiate your claim 7—A No; in fact I may tell
you they controverted it most stoutly.

Q. The British Government controverted it?—A. Yes.

Q. And claimed that a credit had been given?—A. No; they claimed they had
not, received the ammunition because.they had no record of it, and the argument
with which I met that statement was merely this: We have positive record that the
ammunition wash shipped from Canada to you and nobody else got it, therefore you got
it. It was rather weak, but I had to use such arguments as I had at hand.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. And you believe it to be correct?—A. Yes.

Q. And you believed it to be correct at that time?—A. Yes.

Q. And you pressed it as a perfectly .proper argument although a little lacking
in evidence?—A. Quite so; because I knew their ordnance organizations were not
fully ecompleted, and that the Director of Ordnance at the Woolwich Arsenal might have
received quantities of ammunition concerning which he had been unable to keep satis-
factory records, and I took it for granted he had got this ammunition.

By Mr. Clark :

Q. It was a fact that the Canadian Artillery Divisions while in England drew prac-
tice ammunition from the Imperial authorities%—A. We drew it out of Imperial stores,
factory records, and I took it for granted he had got this ammunition.

Q. We drew it from the Imperial authorities?—A. Yes.

Q. Did we pay for it?—A. I am unable to answer that question. I have no
recollection of ever having passed any accounts for payment of ammunition for
practice purposes in England.
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Q. Let us pass on to the next phase of the matter: When our first artillery division
went to France there was an arrangement in existence under which our artillery
drew ammunition on a per capita basis, the cost being 1s. per day per man for:
artillery ammunition?—A. Yes. Our maintenance agreement in France was 6s. per
day. We paid that on the basis of strength returns compiled in the office of the
Adjutant General of the British Army at the base at Rouen, where we had a Canadian
section. That 6s. per day represented 5s. to cover everything that a soldier needs in
the field such as rations, clothing, personal equipment, rifles and small arms ammu- =
nition; everything that he needs in the field except pay and allowances and the artil-
lery ammunition used with his formation. The 1s. additional was left there t>
cover artillery ammunition. : i

Q. That is, for the first Canadian division there would be an allowance of approxi-
mately $6,000.00 per day for artillery ammunition?—A. I would say approximately
that, assuming their strength to have been—perhaps it would not be that much.

Q. That is the maximum?—A. You will have to ask some of the experts. I
have no recollection of the strength of the first Canadian Division, but I would say
that figure is not far out. .

Q. When did the 1s. per day period expire?—A. March 2, 1917.

Q. And a new arrangement was then made?—A. Yes.

Q. And we then paid the Imperial Government 4s. 4d. per man per day for the
artillery—is that right?—A. Not quite right. We did, for one quarter. I believe
the Auditor-General can give you better information than I can because he is very
familiar with this matter. I can give you general information upon it. From the
quarter April, 1917, to June, 1917, the per diem per capita rate was 4s. 4d.; from July,
1917, to September, 1917, it was 4s. 4d.; from Oectober, 1917, to December, 1917 it was
4s.; from January, 1918, to March, 1918 it was 2s. 3d.

Q. For big gun ammunition —A. Yes. All these figures I have given represent
a per diem per capita rate applied on strength returns of our troops in the field.

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:
Q. Charged against Canada?—A. Charged against Canada.

By Mr. Clark:

Q. Why were the rates varied?—A. On account of several things; probably prim-
arily the expenditure of ammunition in the field; secondly, very materially affected by
the improved methods of manufacture at the munition factories, costs were really
coming down. There may have been some other considerations; I believe the Audi-
tor General might give you information on that.

Q. You said subsequent?—A. Subsequent to that last date an entirely mew
system was inaugurated by which we paid for the actual ammunition consumed by our
guns. ;

Mr. SurHERLAND: Your statement about the per diem allowance of 4s and 4d
is not quite correct. It works out at that, but from the 2nd March to the com-
pletion of the war it was worked out dn a cost basis. It was for convenience, but
the 4s and 4d has no relation.

The Wirness: That is right, but while the figure I gave is mnot correct, that
figure is arrived at by their having found out the actual cost of ammunition expended
at the front, and they turned around and applied that so as to produce a per capita
figure—a really unnecessary procedure in my opinion. But that is the way it was
done.

By Mr. Clark:

Q. You say that from the 2nd March, 1917, we were actually charged—A. On the
cost.

Q. Of the ammunition expended?—A. Yes, but our accounts were not rendered
in that form.

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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Q. Is it not a fact that this cost which you have just referred to represents the
average cost of an army corps within a certain area, and not the actual cost of the
ammunition which was expended by the ‘Canadian Corps at all?%—A. It represents
in my recollection the real cost of the ammunition that was expended over the entire :
British front applied to be paid in the ratio that the Canadian guns at the British
front bore to the British guns in fhe Canadian front. For example, if the Canadian
forces had one-twelfth of all the guns that were firing on the British front for a period
of three months, their proportion of the total cost of ammunition expended in that
three months would be one-twelfth.

Q. That is irrespective of whether they fired less or more?—A. Irrespective of’
whether they fired less or more. ;

Q. And it is a well known fact that we fired a great deal more?—A. Yes, I think
we fired far more than most troops.

Q. And therefore we were charged less and paid less than we actually expended ?—
A. We paid for less than we actually expended.

Q. Probably by many millions of dollars?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Boys:
Q. This matter is all covered by a report?—A. Yes, by a report that was made
before the Minister would accept our memoranda.
Q. It is all down in black and white and available to the Committee?—A, That
is true. :

By Mr. Vien:

Q. Were the rifles which were turned in sold and a certain amount credited in
the books to Canada?—A. I really have no clear remembrance of the rifles. You
asked me that the other day and I was unable to answer then, and I have really
no recollection in regard to it; but I am quite sure you can get that information
definitely from Major-General MacBrien.

Q. But they would surely have given you credit for a certain percentage of their
value?—A. They were handed in to the British authorities under our general handing
over agreement of which I have outlined the character before. If in return we failed
to draw any rifles from their surplus in England, we would have got a credit in accord-
ance with my arrangement, but what it would be I do not know. Whether we did
not draw all our rifles, or otHerwise, I am unable to say.

By Mr. Hanson :

Q. That is a credit in kind not in cash?—A. No, if we got a credit in kind it
would either be a partial or a total one, and if it was a partial one it would still
leave a surplus in the possession of the British authorities in England that I would
have to take up in making this general settlement and demand a credit for.

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:
Q. We got the rifles. Gen. MacBrien is here and he will tell. you—A. That is
the case. ¢

By Mr. Vien:

Q. What would be the proportion of the cost which would be paid? Is that
covered by the 50 per cent agreement that Gen. MacBrien spoke of %—A. The cost of
what?

Q. On what basis would they be credited to us, I mean the surplus not drawn?
—A. Which surplus?

Q. The surplus in respect of rifles—A. I am unable to tell you because appar-
ently I had no negotiations regarding rifles. I cannot tell you what they would have
allowed us.

\
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Q. I understood that we had about 250,000 troops m France at tImt time
That is my recollection, although I cannot say whether it 13 reaily accurate,
Q. In England we had also several thousands of men in training?—A. Yes.
Q. And the Canadian troops which came back from England did not btmg tk

know.
Q. In adjusting the aceounts was no attention pald to the 1tems of nﬂes 'E‘:
the item of equipment?—A. I have no recollection of it, but those rifles that you
mentioned would not necessarily go to British stores; they would be turned in an
retained in Canadian stores in England. Those of them that did not accompany
men on the boat would still be retained in Canadian stores, and as appears, wer, ‘
shipped in Canadian stores back.
Q. At least part of them?—A. I cannot tell you how much or how few. .
Q. Could you find out by the documents which are attached to the final settle-
ment which took place whether the rifles were taken into account?—A. No, T cannot
tell from that; it is not'sufficiently detailed. b
Q. Who could tell us?—A. Gen. MacBrien could, T think, tell you. If they were
turned into Canadian stores they would not be in this settlement at all. ;
Q. All the rifles which were with our troops in France were turned into co]ﬂectmg T
depots ? "
Major-General MACBRI:EN All rifles were brought to England by the Canadlan e
troops, and personal equipment, and practically all, with very minor exceptions, were
brought back to Canada. You cannot work on the strength of Canadian troops in
France because a lot of Canadian medical troops did not carry rifles; so you have to .
make deductions for units of that sort. Apart from what the Canadian soldiers
brought back themselves, we shipped Canadian-owned rifles back to the number, I
think, of 140,000. General Ashton has the exact figures regarding the rifles.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. The only point I want to have mformatlon upon presently is if any rifles
were included, they were covered by the agreement in respect of equipment, and
I suppose they must have been covered by the item mentioned in the statement B which
sayse, seventh line before the end, on the debit side $320,0002—A. Statement B, the
seventh item, $320,0007

Q. Yes, equipment C.E.F. in Canada?—A. No, no; that is the equipment issued
to the Canadian Forestry Corps in Canada. In our agreement with the British
Government, regarding the Forestry troops it was a charge against British funds.

Q. Where is that item in respect of equipment in France and in England shown?
—A. T think perhaps you have in mind the item on the first page of the general
summary under “ Equipment for Canada.”

Q. T mean all the equipment which was turned into the collecting depots, and
for which we received credit to draw a certain amount in kind. The surplus that
was not drawn was covered by the agreement which General McBrien explained.
A. You will probably find it distributed in several items throughout the statements
both A and D and probably as well C and D and the general summary. For in-
stance, if you will look at the general summary that is before you on the first page
that is attached to the Privy Council order, you will see the third item in the debit
column is “ Medical equipment and stores £31,183 12s. 8d.” I think in all likeli-
hood that includes medical stores in the equipment that we turned in and that were
not drawn. The sixth item, “ Mechanical transport accounts £348,577 1bs. and
4d., if not exclusively our mechaniecal transport turned in in that way, certainly
includes some of it.

[Col. G S. Harrington.]
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Q. The only point I would like to elucidate is this: Any surplus in small arms
equipment—A. The next item that I know is part-of it is simply headed “ Undrawn
equipment and ammunition,” which is a general item.

. Q. What page is that?—A. That is on page 1, Colonel Vien. It is the third
last item on the debit side. It is just pitched in under a general heading.
. Q. Undrawn equipment and ammunition?—A. Yes.

Q. And the amount?—A. £403,894, a credit to us.

Q. What does it cover? That means, it covers the equipment which was turned
into the collecting depots?—A. Yes.

Q. And which was not drawn by Canada?—A. And which was not drawn by
Canada.

Q. That was covered and was paid and the basis of the agreement reached, and
we collected £403,0002—A. We got a credit with the British War Office of £403,894.

Q. And any surplus, rifles, which would have been left in England and not
drawn by Canada for their requirements would have come under that heading,

’

very likely%—A. If there were any.
By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:

Q. And any undrawn ammunition also?—A. Any undrawn ammunition? No,
I have told you that we were unable to get credit for undrawn ammunition, be-
cause that was my own instructions to the accountant who was preparing this item
for me, to show ammunition included, so that I might perhaps follow out what was
a hope with me, that I might get some credit for undrawn ammunition, in which
I have explained already I was unsuccessful.

Q. I would just like to ask one or two questions, because the ammunition ques-
tion is the crux of the whole proposition. At the time of the Armistice there were
certain quantities of ammunition reserved with our guns in France?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And we were chargeable, or had been charged, with the cost of that on the
basis that you have told the Commqttee?—A Yes; for keeping it up to current

expenditures.
Q. Consequently at the date of the Armistice that was our ammunition; it

belonged to Canada?—A. That is correct.

Q. The question after the Armistice was how to dispose of it?—A. Yes.

Q. And if I understand aright, Colonel Harrington, 'you endeavoured to get
credit for it from the War Office?—A. That ds correct.

Q. But the War Office, having such an enormous accumulation on hand,
absolutely refused to give you credit for it?—A. Yes, that is correet.

An Hon. MemBER: Cash credit.

Hon. Mr. GurHRIE: Any credit. .

The WirNess: Any credit. They said “ You can take what you want to draw
or get nothing.”

By Mr. Vien:
Q. In respect to ammunition alone?—A. In respect to ammunition alone.

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:

Q. I want to point clear that it was Oanada’s ammunition?—A. Yes; they
admitted that.

Q. But they would not buy further?—A. They would not give us any credit for
it. .

Q. And the question came of what to do with it, and after consultation with
the authorities overseas and in Canada a requisition was sent from Canada stating
how much we could use in Canada?—A. We overseas received that requisition, and
delivered it to the War Office.

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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Q. And you drew out ammunition from the general atore m aoeordanco mth 4
requisition #—A. Canada did; I believe they were drawing it after our dapartmem o,
ceased to function, but we supplied them with inspectors to inspect it and see thafr
it was shlpped and so- forth. ‘

Q. Now, in your whole accounting there is no charge for that ammunition, in ths‘ '
settlement%—A. No charge by the British Government against us?

Q. Yes?—A. None whatever.

Q. The only cost to Canada, then, would be the cost of s}npmenﬂ

Mr. HaxsoN: And inspection.

By the Hon. Mr. Guthrie:

Q. Shipment back to Canada?—A. Yes; inspection probably. :

Q. It has been suggested or stated that this ammunition, roughly, was of the
value of six million dollars, and if it had not been shipped back to Canada, Canada
would have obtained a eredit for six million dollars?—A. No, that is not correct; it
was not worth six million dollars, and the figures that the War Office gave me were
between six hundred thousand and seven hundred thousand pounds, at the time that
I was there, but whatever it was worth was a matter of indifference with me in settling
these accounts, where we could get nothing for it.

Q. From the War Office or from anybody else?—A. Well, we only tried the War
Office, but the market for big gun ammunition is very, very limited.

Q. It is a fact that the War Office was actually destroying ammunition, to get
rid of it?%—A. Absolutely; they had dumped some in the North Sea when I was
there, and that is what I was met with when I asked for a cash credit.

Q. Then there was no possibility whatever of getting a credit for it?—A. None
whatever.

Q. And the statement that by the shipment of ammunition to Canada we lost
eix million dollars or thereabomts is absolutely incorrect?®—A. Quite inaccurate, if
any such statement was made

Mr. Viens We could not have sold it to the Greeks or Turks or somebody else?:
Mr. Hanson:- We did not try, anyway.
The Wirrness: 1 cannot answer that question, Colonel Vien.

By Mr. Clark:

Q. Colonel Harrington, you say that you are quite certain that that ammunition
belonged to us?—A. Well, I have already said that the War Office admitted that lt
did. ]

Q. But you said to me that the claim was doubtful?—A. Yes, and I say again s
that I think the claim was doubtful, if they contested it in strictness; but I never had |
to go beyond the stage, where the 'War Office once admitted one of my claims then . :
I did not have to clinch it any further. i

Q. The point that I am making is this: that we are charged on an expendlture B |
basis; we were not actually charged with the ammunition which we had in our
reserves until we had our ammunition expenditure return, were we?—A. After |
the cost of ammunition in the field was put on' an actual expenditure basis there was
no calculation made of the ammunition expended until it was actually shot away and
the returns came in from the guns.

Q. That is, we were not charged with payment until the returns came in for
the guns?—A. We were never charged with what was in the dumps; we were never |
charged— (\

Q. You claimed the credit for what was in the dumps?%—A. I claimed the credit
for what was in the dumps, on the ground that we had theoretically, at least, initially

equipped ourselves to that extent. I based it on that, and they very kindly admitted
that.

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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: Q. There was no contest over that at all?—A. There was no contest over that at
at all; it was almost exclusively a matter of good feeling by the British War Office
towards the Canadian authorities, desiring to help us out in making a settlement.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. And they said, “ Take as much ammunition as you want?”—A That is about

the attitude they took.
By Mr. Boys:

Q. They said, “ Take all you want; it is of no use to us; if you want it, take it ?”
—A. Yes, that is about it.

Hon. Mr. Mantox: Mr. Chairman, I think the ammunition "question is settled.
It is settled abeolutely that we got more ammunition, practically, than we needed
for nothing or less than nothing. I would like to ask, however, about the other
eredits, the other goods, the other stores and so forth?

The Wirness: I understand what you mean.

By Hon. Mr. Manion:

Q. In short, is it or is it not your opinion that in the credits which we got
from Great Britain we were fairly treated or not? How were we treated? I would

* like you to tell the Committee what you think about the treatment we received, laying

aside, for the moment, the question of stores altogether?—A. There is no question
about that, that we were treated most generously, most generously; there is no ques-
tion about it. '

Q. If there was any error, it was made by the British in treating us too gener-
ously; we certainly did not have to treat them too generously?—A. We were treated
most generously in that settlement, because the British authorities were very fond
of us, they thought we had done well, and we were anxious to settle with them; they
got authority to close with me, really against their better judgment, and when they
once got the Treasury authority to settle with me, they settled most generously.

Q. One more question, and I am finished. Taking everything into account,
ammunition, stores and everything else in which we dealt with the British Govern-
ment on a credit system, crediting each other, the same statement applies—we were
treated most generously on them all%—A. Absolutely; and I will go further, and ray
that in our capitation agreement their charges against us for expenditure of ammu-
nition in the field in every particular that you like to take it, where figures ran to
four, five, 8ix or eight million pounds a quarter, they treated us with the same spirit
of generosity throughout.

Mr. Ryckman: I think, Mr. Chairman, that the witness has convinced the Com-
mittee that Canada in these negotiations had a very competent and courteous nego-
tiator, who eaw that our interests did not suffer.

" By Mr. Vien:

Q. Now, Colonel, ecould we have the vouchers for the undrawn equipment and
ammunition*—A. The vouchers that refer to the item of undrawn equipment and
ammunition in the general statement attached to the Privy Council Order. First, in
regard to that, I have already explained that ammunition was put in there.

Q. But no figures came in under that title’—A. It was put in there largely
because I was going to try to get a credit for it.

Q. That means, it was put in as a title?—A. But it was not earried out in actual
avcounting, Secondly, I would like to say that there is a vast quantity of material
in the nature of particulars and accounts in regard to that. '‘Only those that are
familiar, as these experts from the Militia Department will assure you, with the par-
ticulars of military equipment can realize what it means to ecarry out the totals
of our entitlements under this agreement in accordance with mobilization stores’

[Col. G. S. Harrington.]
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tables as applied to war establishments, because we had a diversity of trobﬁs; we
had horse artillery, we had infantry, we had engineers, we had signallers—we had a

regular army equipmenf in our corps, and each one of these units is entitled to a
{

certain amount of unit equipment, and very frequently that equipment is carried
out into details, into parts. I made an estimate when I was over there of the length
of time it would take, actually, to check all that with a qualified staﬁ of ordnance
officials, to earry out a complete checking and valuation of it, and with five men
working I got a minimum of three months’ solid work, so that when you ask me if
there are particulars regarding that account, I do not believe that full particulars
exist—that is, carried out in accordance with mobilization stores’ tables—but in
dealing with it— °*

Q. Can we have such a statement as how much small arms— A. There are ‘no

small arms, they tell me.
Q. In that item?%—A. There are no small arms they tell me; but you could get

a statement, I believe; probably the Ordnance Department or the Militia Department

could furnish you with a general statement quite easily, under general headings.
Q. Who is the proper official to apply to for it?—A. In the Militia Department?
Q. Yes—A. If you ask either the Deputy Minister or the Chief of the General
Staff to have it prepared they will have it prepared in their Ordnance Department for
you.
Mr. Vien: Well, Mr. Chairman, I am through with the witness.
The Acring CHAIRMAN: Does anybody else want to ask this witness any questions?

By the Acting Chairman:
Q. Do you want to get away to-day?—A. I would like to if I can.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Colonel Harrington, have you anything else to add to your statement?—A.
The last question that Colonel Vien asked me, raised something, but I do not think
that T have anything material to add. I think I have covered it sufficiently care-
fully.
Hon. Mr. Manion: Mr. Chairman, I do not know much about the rules of this
Committee, but I know that this witness has been brought quite a long distance. Do
I understand that all his expenses and witness fees are paid automatically, or has
this Committee to arrange that?

Mr. Viexn: Mr. Chairman, the witness has ecome from Sydney, and he was
very extensively engaged in investigation in respect to labour troubles. Your
summons came rather suddenly to him, and through courtesy to the Committee he
refrained from asking that the sittings of the Committee be delayed on his account,
and he came at once. I think it would be only fair and just that the witness be
indemnified for the time he has lost as well as for the expenses he has incurred
by reason of his attendance here. Of course, the Committee has no right to deal
with the matter except by way of recommendation to the Speaker that the thmg
be done, but I will move, if somebody will second me—

Hon. Mr. Manion: I will second you.
Mr. Vien: —That his expenses, as well as a fee for attending the Commxttee,
be given to the witness, in consideration of the valuable information he has given us.

Mr. Hanson: The amount of fee?

Mr. Vien: As to the amount of fee, he will state his loss, and it might be left
to the Speaker. I will move that in consideration of Colonel Harrington’s having
come to the Committee, an indemnity be given to him covering his expenses and
all losses incurred.

[Cel. G. S. Harrington.]
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Mr, Bovs: That he be paid his expenses, and indemnified for his loss of time.
- Mr. Viex: Ahd taking into account the special circumstances under which h'e

,had to come here.

The AcTiNG CHAIRMAN : Gentlemen you have heard the motlon
Motlon agreed to.

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:
(8 5 pd want to ask ont or two questions of General McBrlen
Mr. Viex: General McBrien will have to be examined much more lengthlly.
 Mr. HarriNgTox: The question you asked me that I was unable to answer was:
“were the stores shipped by the War Office to Canada under the handing over agree-
ment all serviceable, or were some of them new”

Major General J. H. McBriex recalled and examined.

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:
Q. The shells, General McBrien, which have been shipped out of Canada in

pursuance of the agreement related by the last witness are for use of the Canadian
Militia, I understand?—A. Yes.
Q. Are they in all cases suitable for our requirements in Canada?—A. Yes.
Q. There is a special shell known as an 18 pounder high explosive shell among

those shipped out?—A. Yes.
Q. Is such a shell as that used in the training of the Canadian artillery —A.

It is.
Q. Have these shells been used in the training of the Canadian artillery %—

A. They have.
Q. Will they be used in the future for the same purpose?—A. They will be,

Q. It has been stated that such shells are never used in military trainings, is that
correct %—A. No, that is not correct.

Q. The amount brought out, I believe, represents about 500 rounds per gun
for the guns we have in Canada?—A. That is the practical amount.

Q. Would you consider that an unusual reserve to have in this country?—A. It
is a small reserve.

Q. Under modern conditions of warfare, what size of a reserve would it be
having regard to the experiences in the late war in artillery fire?—A. It would be

" considered a very small reserve.

Q. How long would it last under modern war conditions in a real pitched battle?
‘—A. Eighteen pounder guns, we have fired 500 rounds per diem with an 18 pounder
gun. The heavier guns average from 200 to 300 rounds per diem.

Q. And that ammunition was selected for the requirements of the Canadian

- Militia%—A. It was.

Q. Not with any thought of immediate war, for training uprposes?—A. Yes,
the ‘actual request was forwarded from the Militia Department here and no doubt they
had the training of the active militia in view in sending that request.

Q. Has any artillery ammunition been purchased since the Armistice?—A. Not
to my knowledge.

Q. While you would not know, I assume, would the Deputy know?—A. I think
I would know. I have no knowledge of any purchases since the Armistice.

Q. I think that is all I want to ask.

By Mr. Vien:
Q Have you the statement of your requirements with you, General %—A, Which

requirefnents ¢ ,
[General MacBrien. 1
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Q. I understand that after the adjustment of the claim, you were to -sehd,l ,(.n"'.

before the adjustment of the claim, you were to send a statement of the Canadian

requirements ? the amount of equipment and warlike stores and that your Department }It A

gent a requisition to the War Office for those reqmrements —A. The actual demand
against our  credits on warlike material was made in this way. It came to the

Overseas Mmlstry with which T was associated, from the Militia Department, and
then we actually made out the detailed indents to these demands and su‘bmitﬁed them

to the War Office.

Q. Have you this demand?—A. Yes, we have the demand.

Q. Have you got it with you?—A. There was correspondence and cablee relating
to the demand made by Canada for equipment and ammunition to be forwarded to
Canada at the close of the war. This is prepared from originals of the rDepa.rt;ment
of Militia files.

Q. Hure you the cable of which you just spoke?—A. The cablegram respecting
that? I

Q. Yes.—A. Well, it combined letters and cablegrams, enumerating the units.

Q. If T understand well, you said that a cable came giving you the general lines

of requirements and that the details were worked out overseas by you or by the staff?
—A. You will find both cables and letters there. The demand came in two main
parts.

Q. Could you point them out?—A. They were not all submitted at any one time.
This is a cablegram to the Overseas Ministry from the Minister of the Militia Depart-
ment, dated August 5th, 1919 (reads):

“H Q 88-72-180 Vol. 1 .142, 143,
Ottawa, 5th August 1919.
Cominister
Wesdo. London.
“No. 888. Your Z1502 if after all you find it impossible to induce War
Office to give effect to proposals contained in my letter May 28th I withdraw
them and agree that serviceable equipment on unit basis for four divisions

and one cavalry brigade be sent to Canada. But (1) do not send any mechani-

cal transport (2) having regard to contract with Ottawa Car Comipany artillery
vehicles in excess of those on the list which accompanied my letter May 28th
would be surplus to requirements and (3) G.S. wagons if sent could not be
utilized or disposed of in the manner you suggest and would prove an incum-
brance. Please bear in mind that large number of vehicles practically useless
would occupy valuable shipping space and entail heavy expenditure connected
with transportation labour eare maintenance and storage accommodation which
latter is difficult to procure. Also deteriorations would be rapid and present
patterns are liable to change. Nevertheless T rely on your making best arrange-
ments possible with due regard to foregoing remarks. Cable.

Mewburn”

Q. That was sent to whom?—A. It was to the Overseas Ministry, addressed
“Cominister”.

Q. That is four divisions?—A. Four divisions and one cavalry brigade.

Q. Who decided that we should equip four divisions and one cavalry bigrade?
who suggested that?%—A. I presume it arose from this Council in Canada, because
it was practically the force which we had out in the field. Those units constituted
the Canadian Corps.

Q. Could you give us under general headings the quantities of material. Did
you prepare a statement of the quantity?—A. Yes, we have a statement of all the
material demanded.

Q. And received?—A. And received.

[General MacBrien.] :
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' By Mr. Lewss:
' Q. Did the artillery requirements of this country exceed in any instance that
which belonged to us%—A. I understood we practically owned in France and Britain
_ an amount of 500 rounds per gun. Did the Militia requirements of Canada which
~ were sent over, exceed that quantity which was sent back to Canada in any instance ?—
A. No. We drew from the War Office 500 rounds per gun so they were equal.
Q. They never exceeded that?—A. No,

By Mr. Vien:

" Q. Does the detail of equipment show the amount still due?—A. That still
due would be the balance that you are asking Colonel Harrington about, for which
we got a credit for £400,000 odd.

Q. Still due but not shipped?—A. Demanded but not received. That balance
of undrawn equipment would have to be checked up. We have that by units.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. Were you in England at the time the settlement was made?—A. No I left
there a month before the settlement.

Q. Were you familiar with the conditions prevailing in England at that time #—
A. Yes.

Q. What do you say regarding the sale value of the ammunition shipped to
Canada?—A. It had no market value.

Q. I understand the Department is confronted with one or two, ways of dis-
posing of it, either to bring it back here and put it to the best use possible, or let ‘it
go to waste over there. Is that a true statement of the situation?—A. That is a
correct statement of the situation.

By Mr. Stewart (Leeds):

Q. Had it not been brought here, would it be necessary for us to purchase in
Canada ammunition of that character for our militia?—A. Certainly, if it was the
intention of the Government to train the militia.

Q. Would the cost be greater than the cost of transportation. What would be
the cost to manufacture the ammunition we had asked for. The figure which Colonel
Harrington gave was over £600,000. What did it cost us to bring it over?—A. I
cannot say. It was brought over chiefly on Canadian-owned Government steamers.
I don’t know what the cost was, as the rate changed.

Q. That would be much less than the cost of the ammumtlon, would it not?—
A. 1 presume so.

By Mr, Vien:

Q. Did I understand you to say when our troops came back they brought their
rifles with them?—A. The majority of them did.

Q. What regulations governed that?—A. I believe all the competent units, those
who are normally armed with rifles according to orders, brought their rifies back
with them, that is those who came back with the units. The personnel of the units
who came back by units brought their rifles with them. Of course there were many
thousands not normally armed with rifles and they brought them. There were thou-
sands of casualties came back and they would bring no rifles with them. The Quar-
termaster General would be able tb produce a statement showing the number of rifles
we brought back to Canada with us?

Q. Have you got that?—A. No, I have not got it at hand, but it can be worked
out.

Q. When they reached demobilization centres, they turned in their rifles with
the rest of their equipment to the stores?—A. I believe in the first instance—this is

~only hearsay—I have been given to understand that some men were allowed to take

[General MacBrien.]
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their rifles home, some of the early arrivals, as a souvenir, but htet on ﬁm:nl B

stopped and the rifles turned into the Ordnance Depots. . o
Q. Was there any equipment, either small arm or other eqmpment covere& BS'

the agreement that you made with the War Office. in respect of the credit in ‘money d
to be given to Canada on their books?—A. All claims respecting ammunition on 'bot'h i
sides were dropped in consideration of their sending to the— 3t S

Q. But in respect of equlpment ?%—A. I don’t quite follow your meaning.

Q. Shown on the first page “settlment of equipment and ammunition.”—A. Yes.

Q. But I understand that there was no ammunition which came into that settle-
ment; the claims for such were dropped on both sides?—A. That is “what L under-
stand.

Q. In respect of the equipment, what was covered by the word equlpment” 3

for which we drew £420,000%—A. One of the largest items in it was general service
wagons, both limber and ordinary general service wagons. That was one of the
biggest items in it; watering carts, field ambulances, vehicles of all deseription. We
practically brought none back to this country.

Q. Were there any rifles?’—A. Not that T know of. None ever came to my
notice, of any rifles' being included in that, but we could find that out definitely I
think, by working out the tables.

Q. This item was covered by the agreement you mentioned at the last mttmg
of the Committee, that they gave you the best prices prevailing in 1918 and 1919
at their own sales?—A. At their own sales of June and July, 1919.

Q. That agreement covered any surplus equipment?—A. That covered only the
mechanical transport. 5t

Q. That covered only the mechanical transport?—A. Yes.

Q. And in respect of the rest of the equipment?—A. In respect of the rest of
the equipment, the final mnegotiations regarding that were carried out by Colonel
Harrington and I was given to understand that it was on a fifty per cent basis of
the vocabulary prices of 1918 and 1919.

Q. In respect of th@ rest of the equipment?—A. In respect of the rest of the
equipment.

Q. Outside of the mechamcal transport—I would like to make that point clear
—outside of the mec%xamcal transport, the agreement was for the surplus equipment
over and above oux requirements, to pay us on the basis of fifty per cent of their
vocabulary prlces?ﬁ;-A Yes.

Q. Will you be able to prepare as I said, a statement under large headmgs of what
was covered by €quipment in that first page?—A. That is undrawn?

Q. Yes.—AJT think we can get you that information.

Q. I don’t want all the details—A. We can give it to you in a short time, by
units, and that gives a very clear idea. There were certain units we did not draw
for at all. ; , ! Pl ]

Mr. Bovs: I missed part of this investigation the other day, but I would like if
po:cible to find out what in the world it is we are-driving at here. I understand there
is an item of $1,900,000. Is it the purpose of this Committee to verify all of that,
because if so, it is an endless job? If it is the purpose of the Committee to verify cer-
tain large items that go to make that up, we might direct our attention to it, but
what is the purpose of the inquiry? Is it suggested that the money has been dis-
bursed improperly, that that should be proven or is it to satisfy this Committee it
has been disbursed properly? Could we not have some idea of the purpose that is in
the mind of whoever is behind the inquiry so that perhaps we could prepare ourselves
as to the distinct items that are to be investigated, because we should not take the
time of the members of this Committee unnecessarily. If we are going to investi-
gate this matter of $1,900,000 to-day, to do it properly we must investigate every
item that goes to make it up. I think we onght as a Committee endeavour to save

[General MacBrien.]
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 the country this great expense and this inquiry should be limited to those certain

matters and not go ahead and investigate figures of years and years that have already
been studied. I do think Canada has been treated fairly by ‘Great Britain in con-
nection with the settlement to be made, and I am very glad to hear my friend Mr.
Vien state this. That seems to be pretty. well cleared up if there are no more wit-
nesses. What other items are we to investigate?

Mr. Vien: The only item which is under investigation by the Committee, Mr.
Chairman, is the item of £391,000.

* Mr. Bovs: That is what you referred to?

© Mr. Viex: Absolutely. It is to get some definite information as to how that
settlement took place which involved hundreds of millions of dollars. I went, just
‘as any member of the House of Commons and desired to obtain some information
with regard to public accounts generally might go, to the Militia Department, but
T had no definite brief to find fault with anybody. They told me they could not fur-
nish the information. General Fiset’s statement was that he was not in possession
of the facts; that they had been carried out under the authority of the Overseas
Ministry of Militia and Defence. I went to the Auditor General, and they furnished
me with this copy of the Order in Council and the documents attached thereto. .I do
not think any member of the Committee or of the House could make out by these
documents how this settlement was arrived at, but it can be clearly understood by
the evidence of the witnesses who have been heard on the points involved.

! Mr. Bovs: Then the purpose of the inquiry was to ascertain how the settlement
was arrived at, and also whether it was a fair settlement for Canada?

Mr. Vien: Yes. You understand that an investigation of this character carried
out in a court is governed by certain regulations, but I have tried in this committee to
limit my questions to the general principles which were guiding the witnesses
who were instrumental in finally arriving at the settlement mentioned.

Hon. Mr. Manio~N: I think Mr. Vien deserves the praise of the members of the
committee for having brought the question up, because there was some doubt throughout
this country, as the result of various public statements, that there was something not
quite right about this matter. It has been proven, certainly to my satisfaction and I
believe to the satisfaction of every member of this committee, that Canada was
treated well, that there was nothing underhanded about the matter but that every-
thing was fair and above-board. I think the inquiry has served a very good purpose,
and I personally hope that the people of this country will realize that fact. Now has
Mr. Vien any other item he is anxious to investigate?

Mr. Vien: There is one further point I desire to elucidate, and I may say frankly
to the committee that I have no particular purpose to serve in so doing. = We have ths
information that the requirements determined by the Department of Militia and
Defence were on the basis of four artillery divisions and one cavalry brigade; they
asked for the full equipment. In respect of the ammunition, it is quite clear that
we could get no cash payment or no cash credit for it, and I do not think anybody will
find fault with the War Office for determining their policy on that point. It was
only fair.

Mr. Boys: Then before we incur further expense in mvestlgatmg the require-
ments of the Militia of Canada, should we not ascertain whether or not it is costing
the country any money? If it is costing the country no money, what is the use of
this committee investigating it?

? Mr. Vien: I do not think much expense has been incurred with respeet to the
investigation.

Mzr, Boys: I mean in the future.

Mr. Vien: There is no extra expense incurred with the exception of the fees of the
reporters, because the witnesses to be heard are officials of the Department.
[General MacBrien.]
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Mr. Haxsox: Col. Vien said there was another point hﬂmred to eluexdata. Wlut
is that poxnt? :

the other day that they obtained the ammumtlon which was requn'ed for ca:rying ou
the training for a short time—500 rounds per gun. As a matter of fact, we could
have had, if we desired to go to the expense of transporting it to Canada 1,000 roundi 3
per gun.

Mr. Lewis: Do I understand Mr. Vien to say that the expense of the ammnmtion
was nil, and therefore does not enter intto this item at all?

Mr. Vien: I do not say that.

Mr. Haxson: That is the effect of what you have stated.

Mr. Lewis: Tt has already been stated that the ammunition was worthless in the
0ld Land and they would not give us any credit for it. In view of that, it does not
come into this statement at all, and I think it is irrelevant to the subject we are
discussing. %0

Mr. Vien: The statement covered by the order-in-Council covers settlements for
ammunition, and the questions put' in the investigation thus far were only to elucl-
date how they arrived at these figures.

Mr. Bovs: T am not attempting to eriticize Mr. Vien. I have no right to do so.
T merely want to learn what we are-going to do in the future. :

Mr. Viex: The only further information I personally require refers to those
figures which the witness has undertaken to prepare by statements, which will be
filed with the Committee at its next sitting.

Mr. Hanson: What are those statements? Are they in respect to the equipment
of those four artillery divisions and one cavalry division Whlch have been mentioned?

Mr. Vien: Yes.

Mr. Haxson: That is all? i i

Mr, Vien: Yes, with the exception of further information as to the general head- 3
ings of what was covered by “Equipment” in the final settlement. 3

st

Wirness: Undrawn equipment. _

Mr. Boys: Whom do you propose to bring before us in that connection at our 4
next meeting ?

Mr. Viex: The witness says they have that information in the Department and :
that he will prepare statements. ; ﬁ

Mr. Boys: Then the only witness will be General McBrien who will present the
statements ?

Mr. Viex: Yes. The Auditor General also may come.

Wirness: May I be permitted to hand in two statements now, one concerning
Mechanical Transport and also the price lists of vehicles which were allowed to us by

the War Office. I see the price for the Cadillac car was £807. The price for the Ford
car was £190. \

By My. Stewart: 7
Q. What was the cost?—A. £100 or less to the Canadian Government. That was
after being used for several years.
Mr. Bovs: Could we get a statement of what these cost us?
Mr. Vien: The witness has that statement. s
Mr. Ryckyman: I have been rather on the outside lookmg in on this whole
matter, and I am afraid—I do not know whether my fear is well founded or not—

that it will develop that we drove too hard a bargain, too favourable a bargain for

ourselves. If that is the manifest conclusion to be arrived at from these figures I do
[General MacBrien.]
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not think it should be emphasized. I, personally, would not care to give publicity to
it. I know something about the price of Ford cars, and if we got the price that has
just been intimated I think we were treated very well. I am quite prepared to
bargain with anybody outside of my own family to the best of my ability, but if T am
bargaining with my own family I do not want to drive a bargain which is unfair.
"Mr. Vien: I do not believe we can say the bargain was unfair. It was a ques-
tion of the adjustment of accounts between the Imperial Government and the Canadian
" Government, and in adjusting those accounts they tried to find the middle course
on many questions with regard to which they had no vouchers to substantiate the
claims by one side or the other. With respect to the Mechanical Transport which
was sold in England, in so far as I can view the situation by the evidence adduced, the
War Office gave us the prices which had prevailed at their sales in 1918 and 1919.

i
E' \ Wirness: They gave us those prices for our mechanical transport that we had
turned in in France.

|
I Mr. Hanson: 50 per cent.

Witness: Then we actually ourselves sold what we had in England and realized
much the same prices.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. So that the agreement was fair to both sides?—A. Yés.
k Q. But ultimately it turned out that the value of this material had been enhanced
by general conditions and it transpired that by the increased value of the Mechanical
Transport we obtained a better price than we had paid for it. I understand the point
¢ my hon. friend who says that we should not take advantage of England in a settle-
,ment of that kind; but I do not think that any publicity given by the information
.'/ brought out in thxs Committe should be regarded as of that character.

By Mr. Hanson :

Q. We got the market value?—A. We got the market value. I was also asked

to produce copies of the original letters from which I read extracts and I have them
here.

Mr. Haxsox: These will be printed.
The Crerk: These go into the record.
Mer. Viex: I do not think it would be advisable to print all that in the record.

Mr. Hansox: We have not had a chance to examine these documents. I hope
that this will be the last of this matter, but it may not be, and I want some
opportunity to examine these documents.

The CrErx: These are exhibits filed, and they are here, and the order of the
Committee is that these things be printed.

Mr. Vien: I would move that the exhibits filed should not be printed in the

T
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i record until such time as the Committee advises otherwise. Just imagine what
g- it would mean in printing costs. I would have the proceedings of the Committee
) printed for general information, but I would move that the exhibits be left out.
iﬁ They will always be available to any honourable member in the hands of the
E; Secretary.

/ Mr. Bovs: I second that motion. I think that though they contain valuable
ard interesting information it would be I will not say a waste of money to print
them but a very serious ependiture. The evidence will be printed pursuant to the
former motion, and the exhibits are available to the members of the Committee.

The motion agreed to.

|
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ComMIiTTEE Room 424,
House or CoMMoNs,
- WebpNESDAY, May 17th 1922.

: 4

The Select Standing Committee on Public ‘Accounts met at 11 o’clock a.m.,
Mr. A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding.

The Committee proceeded to the further consideration of the following:

(A) The accounts opened in our books in favour of the British® Government;
(B) the accounts opened by the British Government, in favour of the Canadian
Government; (C) the payment of those accounts; (D) the war material sent over
to England at the opening of the war; (E) the war material sent over to Canada
after the termination of the war; (F) the determination of the balances either in
favour of Canada or against it; (G) particulars of expenditure of $8,411,800 last
year for demobilization or adjustment of war claims.

The CukirMan: It is moved by Mr. Macdonald:

“ That all accounts, vouchers, correspondence and other papers relating to a
payment of $2,429,984.08 to 'Canadian Northern Railway System in connection with
coal, errors in calculation, freight and duty as follows:—

Coal, 3,027-35 tons at $3.29, 1,938-85 at $3.70, 1,398.4 at $3.80,
2,699-17 at $4.60, error in calculation, $3.13, 244.4 at .$5.25,
13,270-75 at $5.50, 8,059-7 at $5.65, 2/119.-95 at $5.75, 1,383-1
at $6,°1,770-95 at $6.25, less error in calculation, 50 cents,
32,868-8 at $6.40, 10,437.01 at $6.46, 8,513.8 at $6.50, 1,489-05
at $6.60, 2.307-9 at $6.75, 5,061-9 at $6.80, 10,186 at $7.38,
224.05 at $7.50, 32.887 at $7.55, 3,184.1 at $7.67, 12,486 at
$7.95, 831-65 at $8.20, 2,531-85 at $8.40, 489-05 at $8.75,
12,927-85 at $8.95, 5,739-65 at $9.413, 590 at $9.53, 241.45 at
$10.65, 10,803-75 at $11.53%, 5,553-85 at $11.56%, 69,543-355>
at $12, 492.95 tons, $4,334.97; freight, $217,887.14; duty,
$11,712.26. . LS A AT o P B R T el
as set out at Page W-189, Volume III of Report of '‘Auditor General for fiscal year
ended 31st March, 1921, be forthwith produced for the use of the Public Accounts
Committee of the House of Commons of Canada.” :
Motion agreed to.

Mr. MacpoNarp: T would like to have this so arranged as to facilitate matters
because next week will be a broken week owing to the holidays. I wish to have two
witnesses summoned, officials of the Canadian Northern Railway, who had to do
with the purchiase of this coal. They are R. C. Vaughan and A. L. Graburn, both
from Toronto.

The CramMAN: For what date shall we summon them?

’ Mr. Macpoxarn: T would like to have the papers first. I think that the Clerk
might be instructed to motify these two witnesses to attend as soon as we get the
papers on file, and perhaps the matter could be left that way.

The Crammman: Your suggestion is that we get the papers and then that we
wire for those people. '

Mr. MacpoNarp: I think that used to be the way in former years. The next
thing would be the fixing of a date for examination of the witnesses.

41914—1%
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The CralRMAN: We can adjourn and meet again at the call of the Chair. Next
week we have the Budget on the 23rd, and the 24th and 25th are hohdays. That
just leaves us Friday, the 26th. ; N Sy

Mr. MacvonaLp: Why could we not have a meeting on Tuesday morning?

Hon. Mr. Gurnrie: ‘The Railway Committee meets’ on that day. Pty

The CHAIRMAN : Suppose we say next Tuesday to get the papers. -

Mr. Viex: May I suggest that the Committee be convened at the call of the
Chair. N

Mr. Macpoxarp: Perhaps that would be the best way. The papers may h’ave
to come from Toronto. : , . FhiER '
Mr. Viex: When you see the papers you will be in a better position to convene

‘J‘

the Committee. s : N8
Mr. MacponaLp: That is so. We will leave it at that if the Chairman is
willing. ) B

The CuamMax: I am quite willing to facilitate the transactions of this
Committee. ’ : :

Mr. Viex: We summoned General MacBrien to-day for the production of some
documents. May we carry on with that? - :

The CaHARMAN: Yes.

®

Maj -Gen. J. H. MAcBRIEN recalled.

The Wirxess: I was asked to- produce the original request from the War q
Office for assistance on the outbreak®of war. I have been unable to find a definite 3
request of a comprehensive nature, but I am having typed out a request which we =%
received upon various dates during the early months of the war. Apparently, if x|
there was an original definite request it must have come through the Secretary of
State’s office, and we have not a copy of it in the Militia Department as far as I can ]
find; but I can give the Committee certified copies of partial requests for certam 4o
types of equipment and so on. |

Mr. Lewis: You have not the request that ecame from the War Office?.

The WirNess: We have not found a request for general assistance yet on the &
Militia files. We had understood there was such a request, but we have been unable
to find it. But here and there in the files there are requests for ammunition and
guns. One cablegram may deal with guns, and another with ammunition. I am
‘having these copied and hope to be able to produce them to the Committee without
great delay. '

The CHarMaN: Would you be good enough, Mr. Macdonald, to take the Chair.

Mr. E. M. Macdonald took the Chair.

The Wirness: I was also asked for a return of undrawn equipment. That would
be simple if I could induce the Committee to change the request to producing it by
units instead of giving the actual enumeration of articles. If it is to be a return
giving the actual enumeration of articles undrawn, then I must have at least four
or five clerks, and they will have to be engaged anywhere from one to two weeks.

Hon. Mr. Gurarie: I think that for our purposes a return by units would
be satisfactory. g ; ' : ; 3

The Wirness: T shall be able to produce that with great ease. Then I can
give a return of equipment received in Canada. That is now in course of preparation, :

every article that has been received in Canada.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]

©




Sl o s
i A

by

o e A S,

PR b O e < e e

e

R e

[
&
%,"
[

]

SN D
it t

A
e
5

SRR
o

~ Duke of Connaught.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

»
[

, By Mr. Lewis: e ‘
© Q. Do you think that Canada might have sent over equipment of her own accord
~ without any request?—A. There is on file a cablegram, a copy of a cablegram, from the

Governor General to His Majesty’s Government offering general assistance. What

- prompted that cablegram I ‘cannot say, but there is a copy on file signed by the

]
o

By Mr. Vienn , !
when these documents could be prepared?

Q. Have you any definite idea as to

~ —A. I should think, unless the matter is urgent, if you could give me a week’s time

I could have them ready for the Committee.
! Mzr. Viex: Then I move that this matter stand until T get in touch with the

“General, so that when he is ready I will take up this investigation again and complete

58 %
; Hon. Mr. Gurarie: 1 have no objection to the motion, but I want it to be
understood that I was hardly through with Major-General Fiset.. He was called,
and a few questions were asked, and he was displaced by another witness. I did not
have a chance of asking any questions, and as I have one or two to ask I would
like to have Major-General Fiset attend at the next sitting. 4

The Acting CHARMAN: Do you require a motiOI} to that effect?

Mr. Viex: No, the Committee can adjourn sine die.

‘

The witness retired.

The Committee adjourned.

CoMMITTEE RooM 429,

House or CoMmMoONs,
: ; Tuespay, May 30, 1922,
The Select Standing
Mr. A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding.
The Committee proceeded to the vonsideration of the following:—
“All accounts, vouchers, correspondence and other papers relating to a pay-
_mient of $2,429,984.08 to Canadian Northern Railway system in conneéction with
coal, errors in caleulation, freight and duty as follows:—Coal, 3,027-35 tons at $3.29,
1,938.85 at $3.70, 1,398-4 at $3.80, 2,609.17 at $4.60, error in calculation 5})31?,
_244-4 at $5.25, 13,270-75 at $5.50, 8,059-7 at $5.65, 2,119-95 at $5.75, 1,383-1 at $6,
1,770-95 at $6.25, less error in ecalculation 50 cents, 32,866.-8 at $6.40, 10,437-01 at
$6.46, 8,513-8 at $6.50, 1,489.05 at $6.60, 2,307-9 at $6.75, 5,061-9 at $6.80‘ 10186
at $7.38, 224.05 at $7.50, 32,887 at $7.55, 3,184-1 at $7.67, 12,486 .at $7.95, 831.65 at
$8.20, 2,531.85 at $8.40, 48905 at $8.75, 12,997-85 at $8.95, 5,739:65 at $9.41%, 590
at $9.53, 241.45° at $10.65, 10,803-75 at $11.534, 5,558-85 at $11.563%,,69,543.355 at
$12, 492.95 tons, $4,334.97; freight, $217.887.14; duty, $11,712.26.
. As set out at page W-189, Vol. 3, Report of Auditor General for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 1921, be forthwith produced for use of Committee.”

Committee on Public Accounts met at 11 o’clock a.m.,

[y

.

. i £
[General MacDBrien.]



56 ] ; | SPECIAL COMMITTEE

32 O VAUGHAN of the City of Toronto, Vme-Pres:deﬂt, Canadlan Nanonal
Railways, wsa called and sworn and examined as follows

By the Chairman : ! :

Q. I want to direct your attentwn, Mr. Vaughan to an item in the'Pubhc »
Accounts for expenditures on the Canadian Government Railways system relat;ng-‘
to a payment of $2,429,984.08 by the Canadian Northern Railway system for coal
purchases. I have here the vouchers which appear in the report of the Auditor
General’s Department. Have you the vouchers for the coal that has been pur-
chased by the Canadian Northern?—A. No, we did not bring that with us. You
mean all the payments made to and received from the coal companies? We could

do that. A good deal of this coal wae spot coal. We could not get wvoal «any- o

where else and we had men out everywhere buying coal wherever they cowld get it.

Some of this coal was delivered at Port Arthur and other points on the Government

Railways and was, of course, supplied at the actual cost pf what we paid for it.
I have not’ the Government vouchers here, but I have copies,of the invoices from
the coal companies from which we purchased.

Q. T find that there was a total of 24,012-62 tons for*which $120,598.46 was pald,
which is at the rate of $5.02 per ton. 1 also find that 142,753.66 tons of coal was
purchased at a cost of $1,049,504.95 which gives an average of $7.35 per ton. I

find that 86,636 tons of coal was purchased at a cost of $1,080,278.20, giving an

average price of $11.89 per ton. This coal was purchased for the Canadian Northern
Railway system. Where did the Canadian Northern get it?—A. We bought it where.
we could and at the best price we could secure, but there were peopld in the United
States getting coal for us, and we were paying all kinds of prices for. that coal.
The American railroads found it very difficult to get supplies, and had men all over
the country looking for it. In fact some railroads in the New England States paid
as high as $17 per ton for coal at the mine.

Q. During what period?—A. During the year 1919 and the greater part of
1920.

Q. T understand that you have with you the vouchers from the partles from
whom the voal was purchased?—A. Yes. ’

Mr. Macponarp (Pictou): In order to have an opportunity to examme them
carefully I would like to have them left with me.

The ‘CrarMAN: I think that is a reafonable request.

By the Chairma,n

Q. May I direct your "attention to this fact: I find going over these vouchers
some charging certain persons with coal, the memoranda being in the form of bills
to the Canadian National Rallways Many of these contain invoices from different
coal doalers, and elsewhere to the Canadian National Railways, but I do not find
that is universal. I find some statements of this nature which are not aceompanied
by any invoices: Perhaps you will explain how it comes?—A. There would be some
not accompanied by invoices which would be for coal delivered from the stock pile.
The average price would be arrived at by taking the prices paid for the coal in the
stock pile built up month after month for long periods back.

By Mr. Macdonald (Pictou):

Q. In other words, the Canadian National Railways sold from thelr stock plle?
—A. Yes.

Q. These papers would not show the parties from whoni you got 1t?—A No, it
might have come from thirty or forty different firms. = We could not say what
particular coal the railways got, but it is all made out at the actual cost. 3

Q. Will those papers show the charges for freight and duty?—A. There is a
statement here which shows separately the freight and the duty. Some of the coal
(Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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‘has been bought at prices not delivered while in other cases we bought the coal

f‘ delivered, freight and duty paid.

Q. Why did the Canadian Northern have t8 act as intermediary. when flelght

" and duty was charged on coal which was to go to the Government railways?—A.

i This coal w&s all purchased in the name of the Canadian National Railways. Of

course these accounts are kept separate. In some cases the company paid, and in

. some cases the Government paid. That would not apply so much to coal as to other

~ supplies, because thie was bought by the railway and delivered and unloaded on a

2 pile and charged at actual cost. The coal would be unloaded on the common Goverp-

" ment dock at Port Arthur and from there.would be sent by rail to Transcona and

i other places.

g Q. Was this coal all American coal Q—A Yes, all American coal.

‘f Mr. MacponaLp: I find an error here in the Audltor General’s Report, a very-
unusual thing. The item ‘is $65,500. In calculating they put in here 13,270 tons

of coal at $‘75O It should be 1,300 tons of coal It is a peculiar error and, as I

) i say, one that does not often oceur.
, =1 By Mr. Maedonald: : L

; Q. I see a statement here that. we have a- contract with an American voal
¢ompany for a large supply of coal?—A. Yes. -

‘ Q: What is the name of the company %—A. The Youghlogheny and Ohio Coal
Company. 3

Q. When was that contract entered into?—A. June, 1920.
; - Q. What was the nature of it?—A. The contract provided for 800,000 tons to

| 1,000,000 tons a year, practically all of it being shipped to Georgian Bay and Lake

[ Superior points.
Q. What was the price fixed *—A. There was a maximum price fixed based on

$3.25 at the Pittsburg mines and “the cost of the coal was to be proportionate to the
miners’ wages, and there was a further agreement that the coal should be sold to us
*  at the lowest price at which it was sold to anybody.
‘ ; Q. Could you produce a copy of that contract>—A. I hdve not got it here but
I shall be glad to do sc.
0 Q. Was it from that company that this coal was purchased?—A. No, but there
’ was some—very little of it. Most of this was coal that we had to pick up when our
coal was confiscated by the American railroads and they fell down in their con-
tract. I think United States railways took from us 750,000 tons which we should
have got under the contract.

Q. Who were the agents for that company —A. They had none that I know of.
We always did business with them directly. 3

; By an hon, Member :
R Q. With what oﬁice did you do business 7—A The head office in Cleveland. We
always do business through the Cleveland office.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. How long does that contract run?—A. It expires next year, 1923,
Q. J¢ it terminable on motice from either party?—A. No, it runs so long as
either party lives up to the contract. It is a very broad contract.
Q2. How much coal per annum are you required to take from them ?—A. Close to
a million tons. We are not obliged to take coal if we do not need it. Of course,
that contract was entered into when coal was selling at $10 a ton at fhe mine.

Bu an hon. Member:
Q. Is there a fixed price under that contract?—A. No, the agreement is to sell

the coal to us at the lowest price that it is sold to anybody. It is a very large com-
[Mr. R. C, Vaughan.]
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pany with a production of 5,000,000 tons a year, and thev supply all the large rali
ways in the United States. We felt that under this contract we would be pretty well .
protected in the matter of price. '
Q. Does that contract cover the whole of the Canadian Natlonal Rallway eystem?
. —A. No, the furthest east that coal is brought is to Georgian Bay. It is taken to
the first divisional point west of Ottawa. The coal consumption in normal years calls
for 4,000,000 tons a year.
Q. What are you paying now—$4.93 per ton?—A. No, we have not taken am'
caal from them since September 4 last year.

By Mr. Hanson :

Q. That is not the answer you gave me’—A. That other coal that you were
speaking of was taken from the George Hall Coal Company

Q. Then that' answer we got from you yesterday is not exactly correct?—A As
I recollect, that question was the price of coal we had imported in January, February
and March, 1922, and I referred to that contract.

Q. Then you had another contract?—A. That was a case of where a strike was
going on and we got in a few tons of coal that way by ferry across Lake Ontano to
Cobourg. We had a very ‘cheap freight rate.

Q. You bought the coal very cheap?—A. Yes, and it was very good coal. We
Liave our coal inspected at the mines and know what we are getting. 'We bought
about 30,000 tons and had it delivered at Cobourg. It was brought by ferry from
Charlotte and is used on the Central Ontario.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. Is that on account of the Government lines?—A. Tt was used on Canadian
Northern lines. ;

Q. Did you make any coal contracts in March or April 1920%—A. Np, the only
ccal we took was from the Y. & O. Coal Company under our contraect. Y

Q. Have your full requirements under this contract been met?—A. On the occa- 9
sion to which T have referred they were not. There was such a demand for coal on =~
the other side that the American railroads confiscated the coal we were getting under
the contract. The company shipped up 750,000 tons short on their contract, and we
had to go out and buy up coal to protect our requirements. 5

Q. ’lheee vouchers will show the different people from whom you purchased?— 3
A. Yes.

Q. St. Malo shops are in Quebec, are they not?—A. Yes, in Quebec.

Q. And the bridge mentioned here is the Quebec bridge?—A. Yes. . SR pN

Q. What do you call the western line of the Canadian Government railway ?—
A. That is the way the bills came through west of Armstrong for the second divisional
point west of Cochrane. | , h

Q. Ste. Hyacmthe has a large quantity —A. Yes. ’ ]

Q. I see here it is 111,197 tons. What was your contract for coal purchased in
the Maritime Province? What quantities had you contracted for that year 9—A We 4
contracted for about 1,100,000 tons.

Q. Does that represent the normal requirements down theref——A Had we been
able to get it, we would have taken more Nova Scotia coal that year. We endeavoured i

i

to get a good deal more than they could supply us with. i ‘
By Mr. Hanson: ' "

Q. When coal is high they do not want to give it to you, and .when it is low 3
they want you to take more than you need—has that been your experience?—A.I « j

think there were abnormal conditions in 1919-20. I have correspondence here to show A
that we made pathetic appeals for coal. I came several times to see Mr. Carvell and Hy
visited all the coal companies in the Maritime provinces with whom we had con-
tracts, but they could mot give us coal. ‘

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.] s
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Q. When was that?—A. The whole of June, July, August, September and Octo-
~ ber, 1920. Getting on in the fall, about December, 1920, the coal famine eased up
~ and coal was plentiful after that time, but a good deal of that coal to which you
have been referring had been bought and had not yet come in, but there were no
_contracts made after December with American companies for soft coal.

By the Chairman :

E Q. Mr. Hanson says that the coal companies in the Maritime provinces were
[ begging you to take coal; what is the answer to that?—A. That was after the 1st
B January, 1921, when coal became plentiful. Then they wanted us to take all the coal

they could produce. ‘

i ’ By Mr. Macdonald: ; 8
Q. Was there not an embargo on coal that year?—A. Yes. ;
Q. What was the reason you could not get coal? Was it due to the fact that they
were not producing %—A. There were a number of reasons. There was a big demand
for bunker coal and export coal. AR
= Q. So far as Nova [Scotia is concerned that would apply to only one company ?—
A. Yes, but the Inverness Coal had foreign contracts and refused to give us coal.
Q. But after the embargo?—A. After the embargo we did not get coal.
. Q. Was not that favourable to your company?—A. No, because there was such
a demand for bunker coal.
Q. When you buy .coal do you buy it delivered at Montreal by water?—A. We
buy very little coal for &elivery at Sydney—twenty-five to fifty thousand tons.
Q.- But there is the Intercolonial Coal Company and there are half a dozen com-
! panies in Cumberland county besides. They would not have anything to do with
g  bunker business?—A. No, but we took from each one of them as much as they could

give us. :
Q. You say ‘that was so all through the financial year?—A. Yes, up to the fall

of 1920.

Q. I see from January, 1921, you bought coal for delivery at Quebec bridge at
. $12 a ton from the United States, and you paid $47,547 freight on that coal. Do
¢ you think it is a sound policy to go to the United States and pay freight and duty
| on coal even supposing you get it $1.50 or $2 cheaper per ton than you can get it for
: _ in Canada? Don’t you think it would be wise to encourage the production of coal in
i Canada %—A. We do everything we can to encourage production in Canada, but in that
- case the coal was*brought in to protect our requirements.

Q. You have raised rates on coal on your own railway—110 per cent on coal
from Nova Scotia for delivery at Levis and Quebec; then you turn around and buy
E coal in' the United States?—A. Yes, but we would not have bought that coal if the
Nova Scotia collieries could have given us what we required—not that particular
g year. ; ;

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. The coal you are bringing in this season is soft coal s it not?—A. Yes.

; By Mr. Macdonald :

) ‘Q. What quantity %—A. Thirty thousand tons about.

g Q./Could you get any quantity of coal last year from Nova Secotia?—A. The
B Dominion Coal Company are charging $6.13 at Sydney, while we are having coal
ﬁ delivered at Cobourg at $4.56.

% Q. The situation is very clear; during the war the Government went to the
| companies and said whatever wages may be demanded you must grant them, because

- production cannot be dropped. During the last six months you have been pressed

to take coal from these same companies?—A. Yes.
[Mr. R, C. Vaughan.]
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Q. And they were willing to deliver coal at a figure subject to what the reduction .'
of wages would work out?—A. They have offered us coal. Of course we sent out

inquiries for pnces on coal. Some of the companies have not given an answer yet.

They will not give any pending an award in settlement of the dispute with the

miners, but we took coal last year in larger quantities than we required.

Q. Delivered at what depots —A. At such places, as Chaud'iere St. Leonards,
Moncton, ete.

Q. For the Intercolonial Railway service?—A. Yes.

Q. And for use on the Transcontinental —A. Yes We have quite a stock of
coal at Cochrane and all the way up.

Q. What quantity have you in store on the Government Railway Systemf—

A. A little more than a million tons in stock on the Canadlan National System.
By Mr. Hanson :
Q. You have four monthg’ supply *—A. Yes, on April 30 we had four months’

supply on hand on the Canadian Government Railway System.

Q. That would be in tons how much?—A, Between three and three hundred
and fifty thousand tons.

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. You have shut down taking coal except in small dehverles —A. No. We

have not made contracts for coal for the year.

Q. Where dud you get all that coal last year?—A. From the Nova Scotia
collieries.

Q. Delivered by boat?—A. All delivered by boat. !

Q. The quantity last year was only 750,000 tons —A. We took 350 000 tons of
that west.

Q. How far west did you haul it?—A. As far west as Cochrane

Q. What percentage of coal did you get by rail’—A. The normal consumption
on the Canadian Government Railways is 1,250,000 tons, and we would get probz}bly
75 per cent of that by rail. 2

Q. But you have not been taking any for the last four months. You say you

were buying American coal down to March, and the Auditor General’s Report shows

all you got up to that period. You have not been taking coal from mines in Nova
Scotia although they have been running only three days a week for six vmonths?——
A. We have taken a little.

Q. You do not say that you have taken any between March and October of last

year, and you have not a million tons from them in stock?—A. We have taken
approximately a million tons of coal from the Nova Scotia collieries from the 1st
April, 1921 to 1st April, 1922.

Q. You got 300,000 tons from the British Empire Company?—A Yes.

Q. That was for water delivery?—A. Yes. .

Q. How much for rail delivery?—A. In dealing with the British Empire Steel
Company, we closed our contracts with several companies collectively. It_ was one
deal with all of them, because the British Empire Steel controls all those mines.

Mr. MacpoNsrp: To make the examination short I think it w?uld be bet'te'r
to defer further examination of this witness until I have an opportunity to examing
these vouchers, because my information was, with regard to the Acadia and the
Intercolonial Coal Companies, that you made contracts for four hundred thousand
tons with each and yow did not take delivery from them.

The WitNess: That is quite right; we took less than we ordered because the
consumption of coal on the Intercolonial was 25 per cent less than we expected
and 25 per cent less than it had been the year before.

Q. Do you say that it is the policy of your company to limit the supply of coal
for our railways to the requirements of the Intercolomal Railway %—A. No, we do

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.] .
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not say that, but w% say we should not be asked to use coal on the railways in the

- West when it can be delivered at a much lower price from other sources.

By Mr. Hanson : g
Q. How far west can you economically deliver that coal?—A. It depends on the

rice. .
% . Q. Under present condltlons ?—A. Under present conditions I should say Montreal
and Ottawa a}d Cochrane are the furthest points west.

Q. Then it is the policy of the Canadian National Railways to use Canadian coal
as far west as it is economlcally feasible to do so?—A. It certainly is the policy. TIn
fact, we have always gone further than that. Where there is a difference of twenty-

five or fifty cents per ton we always buy Canadian coal.

By the Chairman: ’

Q. Wherever the price is not more than 50 cents higher than the price of Ameri-

can coal you give the advantage to the Nova Scotia coal?—A. We have not laid down
any specific rule, but we have a'lways pursued that policy. We have brought coal to
Levis which has cost us 75 cents a ton more than American coal would have cost us

delivered at the same point.

By Mr. Hanson : : : :

Q. That is when it is abnormally cheap ?——A Yes.
Q.. And last year it was selling at the Virginia mines for $1.50 per ton?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. They do not have to go into the earth to get it there; it slides down the
mountaln It is not so in Nova Scotia mines and that fact must be considered
in the competition. In taking Nova Scotia coal to western points, do you charge the
same rates as you would charge ordinary shippers?—A. No, because we never bring
Nova Scotia coal by rail to Montreal. = We have been bringing it by boat and charging
the actual cost of bringing it up. Sometimes we buy coal delivered at destination.

By the Chairman :

Q. When you estimate the cost of carryilig coal on ship, how do you arrive at

the amount?—A. By the actual wages and other expenses; we do not figure the actual
- cost. {

Q. Then you are carrying it at a loss?—A. Yes.

Q. What was the rate last year?—A. It was $1.25 per ton.

Q Just the operating cost?—A. Yes. They charge the public $4.26 for that, or
T did i in 1920. 4

Q What was the charge between Sydney and Montreal by your lines?—A. We
allowed $1.25 per ton for handhng that coal.

Q. How did that compare with the charges for this same class of freight by
mdependent companies —A. It was about the same. The companies told us that
it cost about the same. 5 :

Q. How much did they charge?—A. We would not know how much they allowed
for their own boats, because any contract of that kind was for delivery at the dock.
There were very few cotamercial companies bringing coal there except the Dominion
Coal Company. y

‘Q. Are collieries owning their own boats the only people in the business of
carrying coal from the Maritime provinces to Montreal %—A. Yes.

Mr. MacpoNarp: In order to carry coal at a proﬁt it must be carried on boats
specially constructed for the purpose.

Ak By the Chairman :

Q. Where did you get the information that their charge is the same as yours?—
A. T got it in talks with the oiﬁcmls of the Dominion Coal Company.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. Does that price you have mentioned include overhead?—A. Yes, of coursa
they can handle coal cheaper by having big colliers of 12,000 tons, while we used
the mercantile marine boats. ~ Otherwise they would have been idle—doing nothing—
tied up at the docks.

Q. You consider that these ships are not as well equipped as private colliers?—
A. Certainly.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q.You say $1.25 per ton is the charge ?—A Yes.

Q. In normal times that would be about the right charge?—A. Yes.

Q. Wages have come down?—A. Yes.

Q.-Do you ever take into consideration that the railways should give special
consideration to industries located on their lines?—A. We always do.

Q. You do not seem to do so in this case, because the charges for freight in
the lower provinces are higher than in the west?—A. Of course they have not gone up
in Canada compared with the United States.

- Q. What—freight rates?—A. Not on coal.

Q. How much do you charge for brmgmg coal from Sydney to Quebec r3—A I
have not those rates here.

Mr. MacpoNaLp:  have them here. The rate for coal from Sydney to Levis is
$4.59; to Montreal $5.26. ‘ The rate from Stellerton to Levis is $3.65, and to Mon-
treal $4.59. There has been an increase in freight rates on coal between 1914 and -
1922 of 106 per cent from Sydney to Montreal, and an increase of 128 per cent from
Stellerton to Montreal. *

By Mr. Macdonald :

\ !

Q. Are these freight rates based on so much per mile per ton?—A. There are
various things they are based on: they are based on conditions entirely. They are
probably based on the cost of haulage.

Q. So much per ton per mile?—A. It is usually based on the cost of haulage per
ton per mile.

Q. How do the rates compare with the rates charged by American companies
from which you get supplies?—A. I cannot say, but our rates are lower.

Q. If T remember well, you say from the Nova Scotia Collieries you get your
coal for destination as far west as Montreal, Ottawa and Cochrane?—A. Yes

Q. In that district do you also get coal from other sources?—A. We have had to
when we could not get it elsewhere.

Q. T understand you told us that you purchased between the 1st April, 1921, and
the 1st April, 1922, coal transported by river to the amount of 300,000 tons?—A. Yes.

Q. And the total amount purchased from Nova Secotia collieries was 1,000,000
tons %—A. Yes.

Q. During that period did you.get for the ,same dlstrlet any supply of coal from ,
other sources?—A. The only supply we got east of Montreal last year was about
sixty odd thousand tons which we put into Montreal of American coal.

Q. Do you know what the price of that coal was?—A. I cannot give you the price
off-hand. It was bought at that time because the Dominion Coal Company gave us
high prices for the delivery of coal at Montreal, and we thought we had better protect
ourselves.

Q. What was the price at Sydney?—A. The original price was $8. Of course
they reduced that afterwards. et

Q. What did they reduce it to?—A. The coal sold at $7.38, but that price was
made in August, because we got our coal there in April. |

By Mr. Hanson :

Q. You use these American prices as a weapon to keep prices down?—A. No, I
would not say that.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q When was this purchased?—A. In April, 1921. It was not ali delivered
' in April, it was delivered the following months.

A By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. Have you made any contracts for the purchase of American coal this Sprmg —
A. No.

Q. This purchase of coal was prior to the quantity of coal you purchased from the
Nova Scotia collieries because the period covered was from the 1st April, 1921 to
the 1st April, 1922%—A. Yes.'

Q. Now, you say on the first of April, 1921, you purchased some Sixty odd
thousand tons of American coal?—A. Yes, in April. We in the meantime had
closed with the Nova Scotia Coal and Steel Company for a supply of coal.

: Q. From what 'American concern, did you purchase coal?—A. From the Y. & O.
Company.
! Q. At what price’—A. I will have to look that up. I think at that time the
: price was $2.90 at the mines. )
Q. Could you make a comparative statement as between the supply of coal avail-
able and the price at this time and the cost to you of that sixty thousand tons of
American coal ?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Generally speakmg, at that time was the Amencan coal higher or lower
than the Canadian coal?—A. Under normal eonditions I would say that the Dominioa
, Coal Company can always undersell the American companies at Montreal
i Q. At that time did they %—A. No.
Q. You cannot say off-hand what was the price charged at the mine in Neva
Scotia?—A. The Dominion Coal Company was asking $6.36 at the mine.
Q. As compared with $2.90 for the American coal?—A. Yes.
Q. Did they give any reason why their charge was higher ?—A. Their cos
were higher.
Mr. MaopoNaLp: The wages were far above the wages in the American mines.

By an Hon. Member:

Q. Outside of this sixty thousand tons, dld you get any other coal?—A. No,
except from Nova Scotia collieries. ;
Q. In how many districts is your system divided? ‘I mean west of Montreal,
Ottawa and Cochrane in respect to your coal deliveries?—A, Three districts alto-
_ gether—the maritime provinces, which is the old Intercolonial Railway, the central
( district from Quebec north of the river, including the National Transcontinental
Railway as far as Port Arthur and Armstrong. Everything west of that is called
the western distriet. :
Q. And there is a certain overlapping in respect to the supply of coal between
B Quebec and . Cochrane, because you say your maritime district is as far west as
' Cochrane,—that you supply all that district from the Nova Scotla collieries %—A. We
take up to the central district.

Q. From Quebeec to Port Arthur and Armstrong, where do you get your coal
from?—A. All coal west of Coéhtane and west of Ottawa as far as Winnipeg we
take in that district is American coal.

Q. There is no Canadian supply of coal that could compete with that?—A. Nr)
nothing to approach it at all.

Q. What about the district west of Port Arthur and Armstrong?—A. As T say,
we take American coal as far as Winnipeg and we use it out of Winnipeg. We bring
Canadian coal from the Alberta mines as far east as Winnipeg.

Q. But as far as Cochrane to Armstrong you do not use Canadian coal, and west
of Winnipeg you do not use any American coal?—A. Practically none. We stop
supplying American coal at Winnipeg. Some would be put on tenders going west

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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just as far as the engine goes, We may take a little American coal from the division
west of Winnipeg at times.

Q. Do you advertise for your supply of coal in the United States—A. Not in the
United States now, on account of this contract.

Q. When you entered into that contract, did you advertise for tenders?—A. N o
but we got out a coal circular to get at the cheapest price. 'In 1920 spot coal had
got as high as $17 a'ton. I went to Washington several times during that perlod 0
get coal because our coal was confiscated by the American railroads.

Q. When did conditions improve in that respect?—A. About the 1st December,
1920.
* Q. Did it gradually improve?—A. No, it lmproved all of a sudden—xt went fror
one extreme to the other. ;
Q. When did you make that contract that you speak of%—A. June, 1920.

Mr. MacoovaLp: Would you bring that contract with you when you come back?

The WirNgss: Yes. .

By an Hon. Member: , -
-+ Q. Does it cover all your requirements?—A. It covers all our requirements to
the extent of the contract.
Q. You are bound to take the whole of your requirements from them?—A. To
the extent that we can.
Q. When does the contract expire?—A. Next year.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. I notice in the Auditor General’s Report that you charge freight on
88,000 tons Syxdney to Levis at the rate of $4.00°—A. I may have been misleadingz
there. Last year’s charge for carriage of coal between the two points was $1.25 per
ton. This entry would be for 1920. Of course freight rates were very high ail
over then. -

Q. So the rate of $1.25 was in respect to 1921%—A. Yes.

Mr. MacpoNarp: I would like to have the examination of this witness adjourned
until we can get an opportunity to examine these vouchers. 3

By the Chairman: ' i

Q. You say that you uwse Nova Scotia coal as far west as it is economically
sound to do so%—A. Yes.

Q. How do you arrive at the conclusion as to how far west it is economically
sound to carrry coal?—A. Well, we would take the cost of delivering Nova Scotia 4
coal on cars, we will say at Quebec for example— ey, |

Q. Is that cost based upon the freight rate you would charge the public, or is ‘
it based on the actual cost of moving the freight?%—A. That cost would be based on
what the Dominion Coal Company would charge to deliver the coal to us.

Q. On a competitive basis?—A. Yes. -

Q. Would it involve a loss to the railways, if instead of estimating the cost on
what other people would have to pay you for carriage of the coal, you tried to
arrive at what it actually cost you to carry the coal?—A. It would undoubtedly jcost
us more to carry the coal with the type of boats we have than it cost the company to
deliver the coal to us at Quebee.

Q. I am thml\mg not” of boats, but your railway?—A. We ‘do not take freight
rates into account in delivering by railway. We figure the cost to Quebee.

Q. Suppose there were no boats there at all, and suppose you were willing to
carry the coal at the bare cost of moving it, how far west could you carry Nova
Scotia coal?—A. We could not bring it nearly so far west. We would have to
figure that out on a basis of the actual cost of haulage. We have never done that,
because we take it by water in summer for our requirements.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. I understand from you that even 1f you charge the bare cost of haulage of
coal that cost would be sufficiently high to prevent it being economically sound to
carry Nova Scotia coal further west than you do?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Macdonald:
+ Q. Have you ever figured out the deterioration of coal in every respect by extra
handling—that you would be able to carry it across the bridge without extra handling?
—A. In buymg American coal we always buy sereened coal, and we figure on mine

run of coal in Nova Scotia.

Q. You said that during the period from April 1st, 1921 to April 1st, 1922, you
purchased a million tons from the Nova Scotia collieries Q—A Yes.
Q. An that roughly 300,000 tons of that was transported by water ?—A. Yes.

Mr. Macpoxarp: For the last six months I know in my county they did mot
take within 20,000 tons of what they ordered.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. You told me, if T understood you right, that from_ the 1st April, 1921, to the
1st April, 1922, you purchased from the Nova Scotia collieries, roughly speaking, a
million tons of coal?—A. The deliveries would be over nine hundred thousand tons.

Q. And three hundred thousand tons of that was carried by water?—A. Yes.

Q. So that seven hundred thouusand tons would have to bé carried by rail?—
A. Yes. .

Q.What did you charge for your competition cost of transportation by rail on
this six hundred thousand tons?—A. We did not charge anything.

Q. But when you come to compute the actual cost so as to compare it with
the cost of American coal, you put up something for the transportation from Sydney
to Levis?—A. ‘All that coal moves by water. The coal we bring to Levis by water
will go back by rail, perhaps a divisional point, to Chaudiere.

Q. T am not talking of water-routed coal; I am talking of the six hundred thous-
sand tons of coal earried by rail—A. We would not put that up against American
competition, because we never thought of taking American coal to the Maritime
provinees.

Q. Did you figure what that coal cost you?—A. Coal on our lines always moves
0.C.S. (on company service) that is, no freight is charged for it. ‘That is the
standard practice of all railways.

Q. How much did you pay for the six hundred thousand tons at the mines?
—A. We paid various priees. I think the prices ran from about $5.50 up to $6.30
a ton.

Q. If you could have obtained a supply of Ameriean coal on the Intércloonial
railway at $5.00 delivered there, that would be a= factor that would involve some
consideration and prompt you to take the coal from some other source?—A. Well,
we never took that into consideration at all, for we never figured that it would
be economiecally sound to pass right by the mines in our own country and bring
in coal from the United States.

Q. Did you figure what that coal cost you delivered at Levis 9——A Yes.

Q. You paid $5.50 to $6.30 at the mines?—A. Yes.

Q. And what did it cost'you at Levis?—A. The freight cost $1.25 per ton.

Q. That is by water?—A. We do not move any coal by rail west of Campbellton.

Q. You say six hunired thousand tons of coal has, been moved as far west as
Cochrane?—A. No, of tlfat approximately one million tons, three hundred thousand
tons came by Water T] 2 balance was moved by rail to Moneton, Truro and other
places.

Q. How far west would that go?—A. That perhaps would come one division
west of Campbellton It is cheaper to bring it by water to Levis and move it back:
by rail.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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By Mr. Hanson:
Q. In your maritime coal you inelude the New Brunswick mines?—A. Yes.
Q. In the past you have not taken much coal from there?—A. No.

Q. And that is because it is not on the lines' of the Canadian National I Raﬂ-‘.

way System?—A. Yes. The situation in 1920 was that we could not get coal from
them.

Q. In other places the miners were out on strike, and the New Brunswick mines

had a ready market elsewhere?—A. Yes. Coming to 1921 they supplied the Canadian
Pacific Railway, and they had not .given us coal and the Nova ‘Scotia mines had.
They came to us to make contracts when coal was a drug on the Nova IScotia market,
and we figured then on getting our supply from the mines on our’ own lines.

Q. As I understand it, you took from only one company on your line, and

the others cannot sell to you?—A. We took several thousand tons; we had not
done business with them for some time.

Q. They .always supplied substantially part of the Intercolonial Railway?—A.

Some of the coal is not very good. 'There are points at which it is economical for
us to use New Brunswick coal.

Q. Would not that be true as applied to, Gibson' and other points? You have
coal shipments as far east as Moncton?—A. We expect to be ordering some coal
from them this year, but we are pretty well stocked up with Nova Scotia coal.

Q. What they want down there is that you should give them some consideration,
for they will absorb the cost of landing it on your lines?—A. We have made up our
minds to give them every consideration.

Q. You ought to give them an order for several hundred thousand tons?—A.
If we did not have such heavy stocks on hand we would.

The CHARMAN: Are there any coal mines in Prince Edward Island?

Mr. Haxson: The Canadian Pacific Railway Company will not buy from any
independent company, and I am anxious to see the little operators live.

By Mr. Hanson: . 2
Q. You are going to give them consideration this year?—A. Yes.
Q. This coal to which Mr. Macdonald has referred was purchased in 1920 when
there was a great dearth of coal and you had to protect yourselves wherever you could
get coal “—A. Yes, we had to look for it all over the States the same as other railways

had to do. Our representative would say “we can get coal at so much” and we had to

take it at the price. We would have had to close down all the railways in Canada if
we had not done that. Mr. Carvell can tell you all about it, he has travelled in search
of coal. :

Mr. Viex: Many of the American railways own their own coal mines.

The CuARMAN: Are there any papers that you want Mr. Graburn to produce
with his evidence, so that you can look over them.
~ Mr. MacponaLp: I should like to have a statement of the amount of coal con-
tracted for in 1921-22 and the quantities of coal delivered. )

The Wirness: I will take’a note of that.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. Would there be any advantage in the Government railways of Canada owning
their own mines?—A. I do not think so. There are good and bad kinds in mines the
same as in anything else. For a while during the war the American companies d1d
very well, but they had been selling at very low.prices before the war.

Q. How do you reconcile your statement with the fact that the D. & H. Railway
Company are large mine owners and operators?—A. They own anthracite mines.
The D. & H. is a private corporation and they have made money out of their mines.
They are a close corporation.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. Are they not operatmg soft coal mines ?——A No. There are very few railways
in the United States that own coal mines.

Q. That is bituminous mines?—A. Yes., If you gentlemen will 1et us buy coal
where we can buy it to advantage we can save something.

By Mr. Hanson:
Q. Where you can buy coal locally should you not do so?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. You say “if you gentlemen will let us buy coal where we can buy it to
advantage we can save something”—is there any interference in respect to the pur-
chase of coal for the Government railways?—A. What I want to make clear is that
conditions were very abnormal in 1920 and they are not so now. Every company was
out buying coal wherever they could get it at almost any price. People forget that
coal has been a drug in the market for the last year and a half. Before that we were
down to Washington to see the Government about getting coal, and trying in every
way to speed up our deliveries. We did everything we could to buy all the Nova Scotia

coal possible.

By Mr. Hanson: ! \
Q. Is it not a fact that the colliers all over the country were trying to get the
best prices they could for their coal irrespective of the conditions that prévailed in the
country?—A. In 1920 the Inverness mines would not give us a ton of coal. The
Intercolonial Railway kept that mine alive for years, yet they would not let them

have coal in 1920.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. You would not blame them?—A. I would in this way; if they had an eye
for business in the future and any recognition of what was donz in the past for them
they would have acted differently. They were selling the coal largely to Holland
which was a neutral country in the war, and letting the Intercolonial Railway go
without coal, and forcing them to procure it wherever they could get it.

Q. All interference with trade in the war except in a few items was a bad
principle. If there had been no embargo and no interference with any kind of freight,
it would have been better? (No answer).

Mr. Hanson: There is a wide difference of opinion on that. If there had not
been an embargo you would have been paying $20 a barrel for flour.

By an Hon. Member:

Q. You took into consideratoin the mileage. Is the condition of the road ever
taken into consideration?—A. In the matter of coal haulage we would not take that
into consideration.

Q. In other commodities such as the products of stone quarries,
one told me that he could not get rates nearly as favourable where he i located as he
could at a main line, and it was only because they could haul cars of a certain capacity
over that line—A. There may be something in that. T imagine that would not be on
our lines, because I do not think our grades are such west of here as to affect any
question of that kind.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. I understand you have three different districts in respect to your supply of
coal—maritime, central and western districts?—A. Yes.

Q. How much did you pay on the average last year in those different districts?
—A. I would say off-hand that our maritime prices were the highest.
Q. How much do you figure in your books would be the cost price to you?—A.

" In figuring out the prices of coal in the central distriets we used to figure the cost on
[Mr, R. C.. Vaughan,]

the proprietor of
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car prepaid and in Nova Scotia the cost of the coal at the mine, but we were buying
American coal at Port Arthur cheaper than we were buymg coal at Nova Scotia at
the mines. <
Q. And you had to haul it?%—A. Yes.
Q. In respect to your deliveries at Cobourg, you said the price was how much?
—A. It was $4.76 as compared with various prices running'from $5.30 to $5.60.
Q. Do you use American coal from Winnipeg west?—A. We use mostly Alberta
coal at Winnipeg. .

s

Q. The first division out of Winnipeg you use American coal do you not?—A.

Yes, east of there.

By the Chairman:

#

Q. And sometifnes, as I understand it, you will use American coal for one
division west of Winnipeg?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Vien:

Q. How does the Alberta coal compare with the coal delivered in your central 7

district?—A. The Alberta coal would be more expensive than coal delivered east of
Winnipeg.

Q. How-does the cost to your railways compare?—A. The cost of Alberta coal
at the mine is considerably cheaper than the cost of Nova Scotia coal at the mine.

Q. What factors cause that?—A. I do not know except they say that it costs
more to mine the coal in Nova Scotia. For instance it costs more to mine under
the sea. They have a good many bituminous mines in the West. ‘

Q. Would you give the percentage of difference in cost between the western coal
and Nova Scotia coal?—A. I would not say off-hand; the difference is probably
25 per cent.

Q. What did you pay for Nova Scotia coal last year?—A. From $5.50 to $6. 30

Q. Did you buy any for less than $5.50%—A. We bought New Brunswick coal
delivered on our line that would have figured less than $5 at the mine.

Q. You were buying American coal delivered at Port Arthur for less'than coal
at the mine in the Maritime provinces? You made a very broad statement: you
admit now that you bought New Brunswick coal last year at the mine for $4%—A.
It was about $5.10 on the line.

Q. I am informed that you bought coal last year in New Brunswick at the mine
for $4 per ton?—A. Mr. Graburn has just corrected me. He says $5.10 was the coat.
The total quantity of coal we bought from New Brumswick collieries last year was
10,000 tons.

Q. You did not buy enough’; what price did you pay for American coal delivered
at Port Arthur last year?—A. We paid $5.53. )

Q. At Fort William?%—A. Yes.

Q. What kind of coal was that?—A. That price was paid for screened Pltts‘burg

No. 8 coal. It goes over # of an inch screen and a good deal of slack is taken out.

Q. What do you pay at the mines in Alberta?—A. We have been paying from
$3 up to $5.25, according-to the cost of production and the quality of the coal. 'We
buy lignite coal for $2 for use at the stations, but we are buying coal now at $3.

Q. At what mine?—A. The Sterling mme There are only two or three mines
working on account of the strike.

Q. Where do you get the lignite coal’—A. We buy some from Souris district,
some from Drumbheller district—wherever there is a short haul.

Q. Where do you get the charge of $5 a ton for coal?—A. We bought that from
a number of mines—the Blue Diamond Coal Company and others.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 7

> CoMMmITTEE Room 429,

. - { " House or CoMMONS,

h : ‘ TurspAY, June 6, 1922.

| ‘The Seleet Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11 o’clock a.m., Mr.
A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding.

The Committee proceed;d to the further consideration of “a payment of $2,429,-
~ 984.08 to Canadian Northern Railway System in connection with coal, errors in ecalcu-
: lation, freight and duty, as set out at page W-189, Volume 3, Report of Auditor

General for fiscal year ended March 31, 1921.”

Mr. R. C. VaucHAN, of the city of Toronto, recalled.

¥
|
E
|

i -  The CuammaN: Mr. Macdonald will prdceed with the examination of M.
Vaughan. )

By Mr. Macdonald:.
Q. Have you that co:ztract with the Y. & O. Coal C‘ompany 9—A No, I have not

got it with me.

. Q. It was understoc:gixlat you were to bring it with you ?—A. I was instructed
to take up with this Co ‘tee and see whether the inquiry is to be into a general
coal contract, or only in relation to the item in the public accounts mentioned at the

- last meeting. There was no coal in that purchased under the Y. & O. contract. None
. of it was supplied in any of the items of this bill.

' Q. Don’t you think you could have brought the contract with you and submitted
it to the judgment of the Committee? It is rather unusual for an official to refuse to
. produce papers or to come here without being ready to obey the rules of the Com-
mittee —A. I have not declined to furnish it. I have not got it with me.

Q. You are declining, because you have not done what the Committeesexpected
you to do. We cannot go on with the examination until you do produce the con-
tract. Here are the circumstances, gentlemen: here is an item of $2,429,984.08 paid
the Canadian Northern Railway Company by the Government Railways for coal.
Now on the face of that bill you have a very anomalous charge to begin with. There
. is no reason why the Canadian Government Railways should purchase coal from the
Canadian Northern Railway Company. If they wanted coal they could have pur-
chased it from other people who sell coal instead of buying from the Canadian
Northern. Mr. Vaughan produces a number 'of vouchers showing certain coal was
purchased by the Canadian National Railways from the Canadian Northern, and in
the course of the examination it developed that the Canadian Northern have a con-
tract with the Y. & O. Coal Company made in 1920; that this company with the
unpronounceable name made a contract by which they were to supply eight hundred
thousand to one million tons of coal per year for a period of three years. I asked Mr.
Vaughan to produce that contract and let us see where the coal was purchased and
why it was necessary to get coal in the United States at all, and also why they should
make that contract and furnish that coal in such a roundabout way. That is all a
matter that we should properly inguire into and investigate—A. Allow me for an
instant to explain. T do mot think Mr. Macdonald has put that exactly right.

Mr. Macnoxarp: T object to the witness coming here and making such a state-
- ment.

Mr. Haxsox: I think in fairness the witness should be allowed to explain.
The Wirness: As I say; you have not presented the facts as I stated them:
¢ Mr. MacpoNALD: I resent that.

[ The Wrrness: T hope I have a right to open my mouth here——
42398—14%
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By Mr. Macdona.ld T

Q. What we want to know is what the facts are?—A The facts are th%e You
say the Canadian Northern sold coal to the Canadian National Rallways That coal
was bought by the Canadian National Rallway System, but not bought i in their name.
Some of it went direct to the stock pile at Harvey. Now naturally we are obliged to
keep a separate account. If the Canadian National Rallways got that coal there is
a bill for it from the Canadian Northern; some companies must get it. It is a purely
financial matter. A

Q. Where did I make a statement that was not correct?—A. You enlarged on my
statement. The point I want to make clear is you say the Canadian Northern bought
coal and sold it to the National Railways. The order was given in the name of the
Canadian National Railways. It is purely a financial matter; we are obliged to keep
the accounts of the two railways separate.™

Q. That only accentuates the matter. You went out of the country to purchase
$2,429,984.08 worth of coal and we want to know all about it.

The CuAmMAN: I understood that the witness was to come here and bring the
contract with him. The reason for postponing the examination was in order that
we might have the contract here, and we named this date to suit his convenience.

The Wrrniss: That is quite true. .

Mr. MacpoNaLp: At our last meeting I asked the witness if he would bring the
contract. My question was “Could you produce copy of that contract?’ and the
reply is, as shown at page 57 of the report of our last meeting, “I have not got it
here but-I shall be glad to do so.”

PR T O TP T B TR
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By the Chairman:

Q. I think Mr. Macdonald has a right to ask you why you have not got the
contract. Why have you not brought it%—A. All I can say is I am acting under
instructions.

Q. From whom?—A. From my president. : ¢ ‘

Q. Are we to understand from what you say that when the Public Avcounts
Committee of the House of Commons asks for the production of a document, the
president of the National Railways may take it upon himself to give contrary instruc-
tions?—A. No, I do not understand that at all. I believe there has been corres-
pondence with the Minister of Railways as to whether we should produce documents
in cases where they are unnecessary. ‘

Q. We know that you have no desire to be discourteous to the Committee or to
go back on your undertaking, but this Committee calls for the contract—did not
specifieally order you to bring it, because we had your word that the document would
be forthcoming. Now, I ask you to produce that document. This Committee is a
piece of the House of Commons, which is after all the final governor of the country.
It asks you to produce that contract. I take the view that there is no authority in
this country that has the right to contradict the order that this Committee has given.
—A. T think the only view taken by the president was that it was not pertinent to {
the inquiry.

[r. Haxson: Your position is that under authority from your superior you -
were not allowed to produce it. I think we ought to go back of Mr. Vaughan.

The CHARMAN: I am careful not to attach blame to Mr. Vaughan personally.
What I say is that when the Public Accounts Committee orders the production of
a document no other authority has a right~to interfere and say that the document
shall not be produced.

Mr. Hanson: The witness says that the dmument is not relevant to the mqulry.

Mr. \IACDOVALD The evidence shows that it is relevant.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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The CHARMAN: I would go further than that. I would say that when a docu-
ment is to be produced by a witness, it is for him to bring it and say to the Com-
mittee, “I have been asked to produce thie document for certain reasons, but I am
told not to produce it.” We could order him either to produce the document or say
it was not necessary.

Mr. Haxsox: Once it is in his possession. He has not got it in his possession.

The CuamMan: He led us to believe that he had possession of it.

Mr. Ryckman: He says he has been ordered not to produce the contract.

The CuAIRMAN: Take the case of a witness who has been summoned to bring a
document before the court—and we have all the right to examine that a court has—
if a witness is subpoenaed to bring certain documents, it is no answer to say that
somebody ordered him not to.

Mr. Macponarp: He says he is the man who made the contract.

The Wirness: No, I did not say I made the contract.

The CuARMAN: I have been careful not to criticize Mr. Vaughan personally,
but he gave us to undertsand that he would bring the document with him to-day.

Mr. RyckMan: There is no doubt of that at all. He now saye that his superior
officer ordered him not to bring it. Then, the custody is not with him.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: He has not said anything about custody. He says he has not
the contract with him, but nobody expects that he would carry the contracts of the
Qanadian National Railways in his pocket. -

Mr. RyckMan: I have no doubt you can require the production of the docu-
ment, but under the circumstances you cannot expect to get it from this witness.

The CHARMAN: My request will be to the witness—I do not want ‘to put it in
the form of an order—that the document be produced. Mr. Macdonald, would:you
like the witness to stay here and telegraph for the document?

Mr. Hansox: I do not think that is a fair order to give to this witness in view
of the fact that he is acting under instructions from the president. If we want the
contract, let us get Mr. Hanna to come here and produce it.

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. Who was it negotiated the contract with that company—the Youghiogheny
and Ohio Coal Company?—A. The contract was negotiated by various people,
including the president and myself, and it was submitted to the Board of Directors
for approval.

Q. You participated in the negotiation ?—A. Yes. -

Q. Did you go to#Ohio for it%—A. No.

Q. Where was it negotiated ?—A. In Toronto. .

Q. With whom?—A. With the Vice-president of the Y. & O. Company.

Q. What is his name?—A. Mr. Findlay.

Q. He came to Toronto and made the contract. You being the official having to
do with the making of contracts, I assume the burden of negotiating fell largely on
you?—A. To some extent.

Q. Not to some extent, but to a large extent?—A. To a considerable extent.

Q. You talked over the contract prices’—A. Yes.

Q. And you were familiar with the sources of supply *—A. Yes.

Q. Not only in Ohio but elsewhere?—A. Yes.

Q. In fact, your information on that subject. was more complete than the
president’s?—A. Yes, it would be.

Q. You thought the price and the terms and other conditions were satisfactory?
—A. Yes, they were.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. Did you recommend that contract to Mr. Hanna?—A. Yes, I recommeﬁded at
that time when the contract was signed. i
Q. Then the contract was signed by the president I suppose?—-A Yes,
Q. Where has it been since—in your particular department?—A. I do not
remember off-hand where the contract is. There is naturally a copy of it in my depart-
ment. ¢
Q. You must have had access to the original, because you were purc'hasmg ooal
under it?—A. Yes. o
Q. It would be in your custody now, would it not ?—4A T think the contract is in ¥
our office.
Q. That is in your fpartlcular coal purchasing deparbmentﬁ—A Yes.
Q. The other day when you were here you expressed your perfect willingness to
produce that contract. When did you change your mind?—A. Well, I cannot say
anything more than I said a few minutes ago—I am acting under instructions. 1
Q. I want to question you about those instructions. You told us the other day
that you would be very glad to bring the contract? Did you speak to Mr. Hanna about
it?—A. Yes. y 7
Q. What did you say?—A. T said that this contract had been called for and asked
if T should give it and my instructions were that it was not pertinent to the contract.
Q. What do you mean by pertinent?—A. That the inquiry was for coal in 1920,
and there was none of this coal supplied vnder that contract that year.
Q. But you said here was some. On page 57 of the report I find when you were
asked “was it from that company that this coal was purchased?”, you replied “No,
but there was 'some, very little of it.” If there was only a ton of that coal supplied,
the contract! would be quite relevant to this inquiry. Did you suggest to Mr. Hanna
that he should not produce it?-—A. I do not know that I did.
Q. You say now that none of that coal was supplied in the quantity to which this
account refers: When did you change your mind?
Mr. Haxson: He has not said that he changed his mind.

Mr. MacpovaLp: T am examining the witness now, you can examine him when I am
through. (To witness.) When did you change your mind?

Mr. Hanson: That is not a fair way to examine a witness. Nothmg has been
said to show that the witness has changed his mind.

Mr. Macpoxarp: He must have changed his mind because he said the other day
that he would be glad to produce the contract.

The CuARMAN: Why this change of attitude. He may think in his mind that he
should produce it, and he says the reason why he has not produced it is because he is
acting according to instructions.

By Mr, Macdonald:

Q. Do you think he should produce it now ?—A. I would say, Mr. Macdonald, there
is nothing in the contract that we are ashamed of, but the point is this—is this &
general inquiry into our coal purchases or is the investigation confined to this parti-
cular item %—

Q. You know very well that it is not a general coal inquiry. What we are con-
cerned about is to see whether the Canadian Northern Railway supplied the Govern-
ment Railways with two and a half million dollars worth of coal—which is very .
anomalous when we know that the company could have secured it elsewhere— we want =
to find out why the Government should pay $12 per ton for that coal?—A. Just in that
connection permit me to say. when the Canadian Government Railways were purchasing
that coal at $12, the Dominion Coal Company was charging $14 for coal at Sydney.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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uila Yon produce oorrespondence which shows that you never asked any company

.:‘ f‘bnt the Dominion Coal OOmpany for coal 7—A. We took every ton of coal we could get
'\ in 1920.

Q. We will get back to where we were: You say you went to Toronto and told

~ Mr. Hanna that this contract for the purchase of coal in the United States was asked
- for by the Committee. Did you show him any of the evidence that was taken here?

—A. No, T have not seen the evidence myself.
Q. Then he knew nothing about the evidence’—A. No
Q. He had not seen the evidence reported at the Committee—did he ask for it?

BLA No, he did not.

Q. Then he did not know anything about the evidence that had been taken
here when you told him you were asked to produce the contract ?—A. I told him just
what had happened.

Q. Did you tell him we wanted the correspondence with reference to the purchase?
—A. Yes.

Q. Did you bring it?—A. It would take half a car-load to bring it.

Q. I mean the correspondence with reference to this item?—A. You asked about
the purchase of coal.

Q. I mean the correspondence relating to this item?—A. We have brought sbme
of it here. It will take some time to get the whole of it.

Q. Time ought not to be any object when we are dealing with $2,500,000 that has
been spent. You brought some of the correspondence but not all“—A. No, not all.

: Q. You do not mean to say that there would be half a car-load of correspondence
relating to this particular item?—A. So far as that goes, we have no objection.

Q. You have not a half car-load of correspondence?—A. I have had very little
time to give to this matter since I was here before.

Q. But you have an ample staff in the office and you can say that you want the
correspondence for so much ceoal bought in the United States for the Railways and
tell them to hunt up all that correspondence?—A. Yes, but I thought it might be
necessary to look into it myself. |

Q. Did you tell them to get the correspondence’—A. Yes. T have some of it here.

Q. Is that the car-load?—A. T have some of it ready to submit to the Committee
If you want the whole of it, it will be produced.

i Q. That refers to the particular coal purchased in the United States?—A. Yes.

Q. And you have not got all that correspondence here?—A. No.

Q. Mr. Hanna told you not to produce this contract without having seen the
evidence taken before the Committee?—A. Yes, but I told him what had transpired.

Q. Did you tell him that you had agleed to produce it%—A. I told him I had been
asked for it.

Q. Did you tell him you had agreed to produce it?%—A. No.

Q. You bar further examination by saying that Mr. Hanna told you not ta
produce the contract?—A. T acted under instructions,

Mr. MacpoxaLp: Mr. Hanna is in town T understand. T suggest to the Chairman
that he be asked to appear before this Committee.

The CuamMaN: I think he should.

Mr. Macpoxarp: I think we should report to the House the position taken by
Mr. Vaughan. It is time, when Mr. Hanna takes the stand that a document which
the Committee wants shall not be produced, that we should know how the House
views it.

The Cnamyman: The clerk tells me that the proper procedure where a witness
refused to produce a document, is to report to the House, and I think that would he
the best thing to do.

Mr. Ryceman: That is applicable when a witness has control of the document
called for, and there is no superior course. I take it that what Mr. Macdonald suggests
is the best course to follow.

1 [Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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The Cuarman: Your suggestion, Mr. Macdonald, is to ask Mr. Hanna to produce
it?
Mr. RvckMAN: Yes,

Mr. Hanson: I think Mr. Hanna should be asked to attend at our next meetmg k.
and give his reasons for not producing the contract. He may furnish ewdence to

show that it is not well to produce the contract.
The CHAIRMAN: Tt strikes me that it might be pertinent for Mr. Hanna to bring

the document with him and he might say that he has it but does not want to produce

it for reasons which he could give. It would be for the Committee to say, after hear-
ing his reasons, whether he should produce it or not, but I do not think it is competent
for a witness to say that he refuses to produce such and such a document because in
his opinion it is not relevant to the inquiry.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. This is a case of a contract between the Canadian Natlonal Railways and
the Y. & O. Coal Company?—A. Yes.

The CrHARMAN: What we are examining into is the details of a certain ifem
Whiph appears in the Auditor General’s Account. Money of the people of Clanada'
was used for the purchase of this coal, and therefore T think it is quite appropriate
for this Committee to inquire into it.

Mr. MacponaLp: I ask that the witness stand down and that Mr. Hanna, who is
in town, be asked to appear with this document and we ‘can decide then whether it
shall be produced or not.

r. Haxson: Before the witness stands down, 1 should hke to ask ’hlm some
questions.

The CaAmrMAN: I have no desire that the witness should stand down before the
examination is complete, but I think that Mr. Hanna should be brought before us
and asked to produce the contract.

Mr. Macpoxarp: I move that the Clerk of the Committee summon Mr Hanna
to appear here and to bring with him a certain contract entered into in 1920 between
the Youghiogheny and Ohio Coal Company, of Ohio, and the Canad‘lan National
Railways.

The motion was agreed to. _

The CuHARMAN: Now we can proceed with the examination of Mr. Vaughan
on other matters. ARk \ :

Mr. Macponarp: As I asked this witness to be called, so far as I am concerned
1 ask that my examination stand over until we get all the data.

The CHAIRMAN: When shall we call Mr. Hanna?

Mr. MacponaLp: To-morrow morning.

The CHAIRMAN: To-morrow morning at 11 o’clock, and it is further understood
that Mr. Macdonald’s further examination of this witness stand over. ;

Mr. Haxson: What course has been pursued in the past in relation to examina-
tions before this Committee? Is 1t purely informal or do you stand on rules and
technicalities ?

The CHAIRMAN: As a rule, it is very informal. It would be well if we conducted j

things pretty much along the same lines as any court. I do not mean that we should
regard technicalities, but that a man be allowed to finish his examination that he is
pursuing and then let others question. I suggest that to the Committee.

By Mr. Hanson:
Q. This expenditure of two and a half million dollars took place in 1920?—

A. Yes.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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“

Q. Was any portion of the coal purchased by the Canadian Government Railways
from the Canadian Northern Railway Company part and parcel of the coal delivered

by the Y. & O. Company?—A. No.

Mr. MacpoNaLD: You have already said there was.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Was any portion of the coal purchased by the Canadian Government Railways
in 1920 from the Canadian Northern which makes up the sum of $2,429,984.08 any
part or parcel of the coal shipped to the Canadian National Railways under the
Y. & O. contract?—A. No, there was no coal at all supplied in that item from the

- Y. & O. Company. -~

Mr. MacponaLp: I think it is only reasonable for thls Committee, if its proceed-
ings are not to be a farce, to let the inquiry stand over until we get the data for which
we have asked. It is rather curious that Mr. Hanson should now ask the witness
to contradict himself—

Mr. Hianson: I resent that.

Mr. MacpoNALD: Because the witness said the other day that there was a portion
of the coal purchased under the contract with the Y. & O. Company sold to the Cana-
dian Government Railways in 1920. ~ %

The Wirness: I should like to have Mr. Macdonald show where I said that any

~ portion of that coal was procured from the Y. & O. Company.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: I want to know, as a member of the House of 'Commons, where
two and a half million dollars of the public money has gone to.

Mr. Hanson: I am just'as much concerned as the honourable gentleman is in
getting at the facts. \

« Mr. MacpoNarp: Then why do you ask thee witness to contradict the statement he
made at our last meeting?

Mr. Haxson: I submit that my queatlon does not ask the witness to contradict
his statement.

The CuamrMAN: I do not think I can refuse to allow the question to be put. I
think the question i< allowable.

The WirNess: My answer to that question is no. None of that coal was fur-
nished by the Y. & O. Company.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Then if you made a contrary statement the other day it is an error?—A. I
should like to explain that the last time I was asked about this coal we were speaking
of coal in 1920 and 1921 and various other coal, and something may have got into
the evidence' which was an error.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. I will read from page 57 of the report—“ Q. Could you produce a copy of that
contract “—A. I have not got it here but I shall be glad to do so. Q. Was it from that
company that this coal was purchased %—A. No, but there was some—very little of it.
Most of this was coal that we had to pick up when our coal was confiscated by the
American railroads and they fell down in their contract. I think the United Sgates
railways took from us 750,000 tons which we should have got under the contract.”—
A. All T can say is that this is probably an error in the transcription. It looks the
way it is put as if there was some doubt about the question.

Mr. MacpoNarp: I do not propose to examine the witness any further at this
stage. X

s

By Mr. Hanson :

Q. You say now that no coal was supplied in 1920 by this company?—A. I do.
Q. What coal was supplied, and what was the necessity for the transfer of coal
['Mr R. C. Vaughan.]
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from the Canadian Northern to the Canadian National Railways?—A. So far as we
are concerned, it was not a transfer. Everyone knows that the coal situation in 1920
was very acute.” Railroads and industries could not get sufficient coal to keep them
going.: Mr. Carvell was also acting as fuel contractor and endeavounng to get all s
the coal he could procure from the Nova Scotia collieries. He had men going through
the United IStates trying to procure coal. We had coal coming from the United
States which was confiscated en route. We were not different from other railways
g0 we were obliged to get spot coal. A good deal of it was bought by televhone. We
would get a telephone “ We can get so much coal at such g price,” and we would say,
“buy it.” It would come to Harvey Junction and be dumped there and it was '*upphed, ~
at the actual cost of the coal.

Q. Was any profit made by the Canadlan Northern Railways as against the Cana-
dian National Railways?—A. No, not a copper. ‘

Q. There is a ‘great discrepancy here as to the cost per ton. I notice the first item
was 3,027-35 tons of coal at $3.29, and the last item was 69,543-355 tons at $12. Just
explain why there is such a difference?—A. It was due to the market conditions at
that time. Coal was sold at all kinds of prices. Some sold as high-as $17.50 at the
mines; some American railroads paid that for coal. The New England companies
bought all they could get hold of and shot the market to pieces. Some of the prices
here includes duty. There is no exorbitant charge there, considering the conditions
at the time, 8

Q. These are market prices?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. There is one item there which gives the price of “492.95 tons, and frelght
$217,887.14 and duty $11,712.26.” If freight and duty is included in that price of
$12 why are those fizures there?—A. The $12 coal was prlnmpally taken from the ’
stock pile, the freight and duty would be included in that, but in other cases freight ‘
and duty are added because it was shipped direct and did not go into the stock pile.

Q. Some of this coal came from the United States '?—A A good deal. y

Q. But not under that particular contract?—A. No. 3

Q. And you had other contracts besides this one with the Y. & 0] Company"
—A. Yes.

By Mr. Hanson: 3 ‘
Q. Or it was spot coal you happened to buy?—A. Yes, spot coal we happened to |

buy.
By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. You said you had some correspondence with regard to this item of purchase; 7
can you produce that?—A. Yes. s

Q. You say this correspondence which you now hand me is with parties from
whom you purchased coal?—A. Yes. ’ — !

(Documents marked as V.1, V 2, V 3, V 4 and V 5—produced by witness and
handed for vxamina{ion to Mr. E. M. Macdonald.)

By Mr. Lewis: i
Q. None of this was hard coal —A. No, soft coal. There may have been a little
hard coal in it, I would not say off-hand.

By Mr. Macdonald.: ;

Q. You produced here some correspondence the other day with various companies
in Nova Scotia with regard to coal purchased in 1920. I find on examination that
there is no correspondence except with the Dominion Coal Company. Had you cor- .
respondence with any other companies?—A. Yes there was.

Q. Where is the correspondence,—have you go it with you?—A. No.

Q. Are you willing to produee it?—A. Why, yes. :

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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\
The OHAmm Axe you asking for the production of the correspondence.
Mr. Macpoxarp: Yes, I should like to have it.

3 The CHARMAN: Just what is desired—all the correspondence had between certain
- dates? Tell the witness so that there can be no possible misunderstanding,

. Mr. MacpoNarp: The circumstances are, the witness the other day intimated to
'.me,‘ according to the evidence, that this was correspondence he had with coal com-
~ panies he had in Nova Scotia, showing that he could not get coal. I find on going
through this correspondence that with the exception of one company there is no such
correspondence. I should like hif to produce all the correspondence he had with
all the coal companies in Nova Scotia relative to their supplying coal in 1920.

The Wirness: That correspondence has reference to a number of companies that
- we bought coal from. We made every effort to procure coal. The correspondence
that Mr. Carvell had mentions all the companies. ;

By Mr. Macdonald : ;

fe Q. There was.only one company shipping abroad?—A. Well, he communicated
in our behalf with all the companies we had correspondence with.
Q. Have you any of that correspondence yourself?—A. No, not that he sent.
Q. I am asking about the correspondence you had yourself?—A. I shall be glad
to give you all the correspondence.
Mr. MacpoNALD: I am not prepared to go on with the examination until I see
* the contract.

2 The CHAlRMAN: Are there any other matters that the Committee wishes to take

TR

g‘

~ up this morning. There is no desire to examine Mr. Graburn at present.

B .

o ;

& By Mr. Lewis:

} Q. Do you find it cheaper to buy coal in the United States than in Canada?—

- A. In certain districts we do.

| Q. Do you pay for a longer freight haul and duty too and find it cheaper?—
A. It is very much cheaper in Central Ontario and coming up the Great Lakes to
buy coal from the United States companies.
i ' Q. The coal is just as good, is it?—A. Yes.

X By Mr. Macdonald :

3 Q. The contract is for three years at the worst time you could have made a

| contract ?%—A. That could be explained easy enough. There are no apelogies to make

B i for it

£ Mr. Hanson: Is it pertment to the inquiry before the Committee that we should

investigate all the efforts made by the Natxonal Railways to purchase coal in Nova
Scotia that year?

The CHamMAN: I have never, acted as Chairman: of this Committee before, but
it would strike me that if we see any charge made in the Auditor General’s Report
for material, to inquire why could not that be bought in our own country and at
as reasonable prices.

Mr. Haxson: Yes, and they ought to buy coal in this country.
) Mr. Lewis: Is there any maximum price which you should not exceed?

The CuArMAN: Would not your question be better placed when we have the
contract before us?

Mr. Haxson: But none of this coal came up from the Maritime Provinces.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. Under this contract the Y. & O. Company had to sell you coal at the lowest
prices that they charged other people?—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. And it might have so happened in 1923 that you were forced to buy a mil-
lion tons of coal at probably four or five dollars higher than it was selling at in ';

Nova Scotia. You would still have to take it?—A. I think that is an 1mpossxb1hty
There is a maximum in the contract, of course; the maximum was $3.25 at the mine
for Pitteburgh run of mine coal. Regardless of prices, under the contract they were
selling us coal at the lowest price they sold to anybody, and they are the 'largesh
company in the United States, so we were protected by that.

Q. You say here on page 57 that the contract was entered into when coal was
selling at $10 a ton at the mine?—A. Perhaps I did not make myself clear on that
point. The maximum was $3.25.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: The witness is glvmg his version of the contract which he
should have produced. .

Mr. Hanson: The contract will epeak for ltself if we are to have it.

The Committee adjourned until Wednesday, at 11 o’clock a.m., June 7, 1922.

J : CoMmMmiTTEE Room 429,
House or CoMMONS,
‘WEDNESDAY, June 7, 1922,

The Select Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11 o’clock a.m., Mr.
A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding.

The Committee proceeded to the further consideration of “a payment of
$2,429,984.08 to ‘Canadian Northern Railway System in connection with coal, errors
in calculation, freight and duty, as set out at page W-189, Volume 3, Report of
Auditor General for fiscal year ended March 81, 1921.”

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Hanna is here and he has been asked to produce a certam
contract. Mr. Hanna will come forward please. £

D. B. Hanxna, called and sworn.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr, Macdonald you wish to examine the witness.

Mr. Strewart: What erder of reference are we proceeding under? vl

Mr. MacpoxaLp: The Auditor General’s Report.

Mr. StewArT: As I understand it, it is the Auditor General’s Report for the
fiscal year 1920-21. That is the only report there is. The report for the following .
year 18 not yet out.

Mr., MacponaLp: What has that to do with it?

Mr. StEwArT: I am only referring to the possibility of the production of docu-
ments being called for which are not yet in existence. S

Mr. MacponaLp: But the order to produce the contract is in existence.

By the Chairman:

Q. You are president of the Canadian National Railways?—A. Yes, president
of the Canadian National ‘Railways.

Q. The other day in the course of his examination Mr. Vaughan stated that he
would produce a copy of a contract providing for the supplying of 800,000 to 1,000,000
tons of coal a year made by the National Railways with the Y. and O. Coal Com-
pany. Have you the original of that contract with you?—A. Yes, I have it here.

The CHAIRMAN: My ruling the other day, gentlemen, was that we should have
the contraet here and then should listen to any objections which any one might raise «

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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P to its production. Before' actually putting it into the record we will hear ‘any one

who has any objection to its production.

Mr. Stewarr: Has Mr. Hanna any objection?

The Wirxess: May I be permitted to make a statement? It is my understanding
that this Committee is dealing with the Auditor General’s Report for the fiscal year
ended 81st March, 1921. In that report there are included certain items representing
coal purchased by the Canadian National Railways for and on behalf of the lines of
the National System. 7 ,

By Mr. Macdonald: _ .

Q. That is not the item. It is an item for coal purchased from the Canadian
Northern System.—A. The Canadian National System, but we will let it go at that—
say the Canadian Northern System. I want to say here that Mr. Vaughan has not
refused to produce any papers in connection with these items referred to in the Auditor
General’s Report. When he was asked to produce the contract with the Y. & O. Com-
pany he was quoted as saying that there was coal involved in the transaction between
the Canadian,Northern and the Canadian National Railways which came under that
contract. He says he made no such statement—that he was incorrectly reported, but

- whether that is true or not the fact remains that this contract, which I hold, made as

it was on the 15th June, 1920, did not become operative until the opening of naviga-
tion in 1921, and that no coal was delivered under this contract until that time.
Therefore this contract has no pertinent bearing—as I see it—on this particular
inquiry. Now do not misunderstand me, gentlemen, the contract is here and I am
not ashamed to show it—far from it—but what I submit is this, and I want you to
take full note of what I am going to say, that if any committee desires during the
operations of the National Railway System which we are trying to carry on free
from political interference in every way possible—if the system is to be subjected
to the production of contracts while coal is being delivered under them and this con-
tract is being used as a basis for procuring other coal, then T want to show that the
present board of management will not be able to carry on. I have the contract here.
I say the Committee is not entitled to have it as part of this investigation, but if
Parliament wants this contract of course Parliament will get it.

By Mr. Stewart:

Q. Does it cover any deliveries up to the 31st March, 1921 %—A. No.
Q. No deliveries at all?—A. No.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. How do we know that?—A. I make the statement.

Q. But you are not able to make it.—A. I am in a position to make that state-
ment.

The CHAIR.MAN:- Let Mr. Hanna finish his statement and then Mr. Macdonald
can cross-examine him. Then any one who likes may re-examine him and we can
discuss pro and con whether this contract should be investigated.

A ]S_t[r. STI:]WART i I. do not think it is fair of Mr. Hanna to say that this investiga-
tion is carried on with a view of political interference with the management of the
railway.

Mr. Han~a: I never said anything of the kind.

Mr. StewArT: But the inference is there.

The Cuamman: This interchange between witness and Committee might be
avoided. I understand Mr. Hanna’s pretention to be that he does not believe the
deliveries under this contract fall under the accounts of the year which we are
examining. I placed before the Prime Minister some time ago a suggestion to have
the acFounts for some years brought under the purview of this Committee. I do not

! [Mr. D, B. Hanna.]
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know whether an order to that effect has been passed or not, but I asked to have
passed

r. StewarT: That would not cover this case. That would be to cover a year
ahead. i g ‘ B,
The CuarrMAN: Mr. Hanna has finished his statement I understand and Mr.
Macdonald can now proceed with his examination.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: Then Mr. Vaughan’s statement to the effect that there was coal
purchased under the contract in 1920 in the item that we are mow considering was
incorrect.

Mzr. Stewarr: I object to that statement. Mr. Vaughan did not say so. He sald
that that was a garbled report of what he stated.

Mzx. MacponaLD: I object to that. ‘ )

The CHAIRMAN : My recollection is that Mr. Vaughan did say there was some taken
that was delivered under that contract. Mr. Macdonald in putting his question asked
if it was from that company that this coal was purchased, and the reply was “ Very
little of it.” That is borne out by the stenographer’s report.

Mr. Macponarp: There are two things that Mr. Vaughan said on that occasion
to which I wish to refer. First, on page 57 you stated that there was a contract with
an American coal company for a large supply of coal and I asked what was the name
of the company. He answered the Youghiogheny and Ohio Coal Company. Then
the examination continued:— ;

“When was that contract entered into?—A. June, 1920.

“What was the nature of it%—A. The contract provided for 800,000 tons
to 1,000,000 tons a vear, practically all of it being shipped to Georglan Bay and
Lake Superior points.”

Then the question was put—
“Q. Could you produce a copy of that econtract?—A. I have not got it here
but I shall be glad to do so.
“ Q. Was it from that company that this coal was purchased?—A. No, but
there was some—very little of it. Most of this was coal that we had to pick up .
when our coal was confiscated by the American railzoals and they fell down n
their contract. I think United States railways took from wus 750,000 tons
which we should have got 'under the contract.”

Then on page 58, half way down, he was asked—
“Q. Did you make any coal contracts in March or Aprll 1920?—A. No,
the only coal we took was from the Y. and 'O. Company under our contract.”

Tt is all very well for Mr. Hanna to make these speeches when he comes here, but
we have the definite statement made here that the only coal taken was under that con-
tract. Mr. Hanna cannot take the position that when money is voted by the people
of ‘Canada and committed to him for the time being as General Manager of the
Government Railways, that we have no right to ask him questions as to what he has
done with that money.

Mr. Haxna: No, I do not take any such position and never have.

4

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. What do you say %—A. What I say is this that whilst the company is carrying
on its business (hnmg the current year, when it is making contracts for the purposes
of the current year’s business that to produce a contract which we are going to use as 4
a basis for making other contracts, if that contract is disclosed and the information !
goes out, will you gentlemen tell me what value we can expect to secure in making ]

competition prices. That is my whole point.

T o i i it ) (T e

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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Q. The result is you are saying what I say is correct. You say that by virtue of
' ‘”being General Manager of the Government Railways you can make a contract for coal
or anything else which contract should not be produced to the Parliament which
- furnishes the money because you think it would prevent you from making favourable
~ contracts with other people. That would apply to every expenditure in the public
~ accounts whether for coal or anything else—A. There is not anythmg we have done
that will not bear the light of mvestlgatlon

Mr. MacponaLp: Then state the facts.

Mr. Hanna: I am stating the facts, but T must state them my own way.

Mr. MacponaLp: State the facts and do not make speeches Act as any other
witness is required to act and state the facts.

The CuammaN: We hope all witnesses do that.

Mr. Haxna: There is not an article of any value purchased by the National Raﬂ-
way System that is not purchased upon a competitive bid. Now I submit that if we
have to come here and produce all our. contracts—because if you admit the principle
~ in this one case there is no knowing where we will be put—I say therefore we should
. not be asked in the interests of the National Railway System to produce our contracts
which are current. If we are to get the best figures, whether for coal, steel or cars,.
. we should not have our efforts—how will I put it—our efforts or ability to secure com-
| petitive prices defeated by disclosing what our contracts are.

Mr. MacponaLp: We are not asking you to disclose anything with regard to the
~ future. * ,
i A Mewmser: I protest against the witness being interrupted.

The CualrMAN : I am endeavouring to prevent the witness being interrupted.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: Referring to the point you made at the beginning, I want to
call your attention to the statement made by Mr. Vaughan at page 58 where he said:

“The only coal we took was from the Y. and O. Coal Company under our
contract.” .

Then he waé asked—

“Q. Have your full requirements under this contract been met?—A. On the
occasion to which I have referred they were not. There was such a demand
for coal on the other side that the American railroads confiscated the coal we
were getting under the contract. The Company shipped ‘up 750,000 tons short
: on their contract and we had to go out and buy up coal to protect our require-
I > ments.”
¢ It would seem to me the inference from that was that coal was délivered under
{ the Y. and O. contract in the period mentioned when this was put in the Auditor
~ General’s Report.

Mr. Haxxa: May I read one clause of this report?

The Ciamman: It is a question whether the whole contract should go in or none
of it?

Mr. MacpoNarp: I am calling the witness’ attention to the fact that Mr. Vaughan
stated in the evidence which T have quoted that the coal under this.contract was
delivered in the period between April 1st, 1920, and April 1st, 1921, the financial year,
under that particular contract, and T am calling attention to statements he made on
May 30th to the effect that the only coal taken was under the contract of 1920. *

Mr. StewarT: Has not this witness stated that the contract which he has in his
hand does not cover deliveries made in the fiscal year 1920-217

The CHamMAN: I think he has said that, but it is fair to ask the witness to

explain the apparent contradiction between the statements made.
[Mr. D. B, Hanna.]
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ey Ye“erd’ay M. Vaughan corrected the statement he had made on 1

‘the previous occasion.

The CrAarMaN: We will put it that way if you like. Contradictory statem'ents ."..i'.

have been made. (
Mr Haxsox: To a limited extent. s )

'The CHARMAN: Let us hope that these contradlctlons are not carrled to an
unlimited extent. It is a fair question to ask the witness if he can reconclle the
statements which have been made.

Mr. SteEwArT: Mr. Hanna is here and has the contract. We will make progress

if we deal with the facts and not with any confusion of testimony on the part of Mr.

Vaughan. Mr. Hanna has stated that this contract was made for future deliveries—
that it does not cover any coal delivered in the fiscal year 1920-21 and if so the con-
tract does not come within the orders of this Committee. It does not matter what
Mr. Vaughan said: Mr. Hanna is here with the contract. Mr. Vaughan made a
statement and he came back to the Committee and corrected it. Let us deal with

the facts as they are and if it does not include deliveries made in the fiscal year '

1920-21, it is not within the reference.

The CuamrMAN: I was impressed with the knowledge of his busmess and the
intelligence of Mr. Vaughan. He seemed to be quite alive to the facts when he first

gave his evidence and on the second occasion, and it does seem to me that we have a

right to probe this apparent contradiction. It seems to me that we cannot get the
facts better. I am going to ask Mr. Hanna to reply to the question. I think Yle under-
stands it. 3 y
. Havva: Quite clearly. The contract is dated 15th June, 1920. T should
prefaco by saying that we endeavour to make and do make all our contracts for coal
about the date of the opening of navigation. The contract provides:
“ Said coal to be shipped in approximately yearly instalments commencing
April 1, 1921.” /

By Mr. Macdonald: )

Q. How long was it to continue for?—A. It continues for three years. The
first year’s deliveries have been completed. The second year’s business has not begun
yet due to the strike troubles, and will continue for another year.

Q. When does it expire’—A. The end of: the shipping season of 1923.

Q. April 1, 1924, it says?—A. April 1, 1921, to April 1, 1922, that is the first -

season. April 1, 1922, to April 1, 1923, is the second season and April 1, 1923, to
April 1, 1924, is the third season when it is finished. Now if Mr. Vaughan made the
statement which you have just quoted he must have made it in error. He tells me
definitely that he did not make it, becanse it would not be a correct statement from the
standpoint that there was no coal under this contract delivered among the items under
this reference. : ]

The CuamrMAN: Mr. Vaughan I believe did niake the statement. I do not doubt
that he made it in perfect good faith and I have no objection to having the correction
made. In my recollection it is borne out.

Mr. Iewis: I maintain that he did not say it. The question was not asked
whether any coal was delivered: The question was whether coal was purchased from
that company.

The Cuamryan: He says “ most of this coal that we had to pick up when our coal
was confiscated by the American railroads,” I think that refers to deliveries and not
to purchases. : ; i

Mr. Hanson: But it does not refer to this contract.

The CHARMAN: Going to page 58 I find the following—

«Q. Is that on account of the Government lines?—A. It was used on Canadian
Northern lines. =

[Mr. ‘D. B. Hanna.]
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S : "‘Q Did you make any coal contracts in March or April, 19202—A. No, the only
! goal we took was from the Y. and O. company under our contract.”

I will ask this questlon—-Had you any other contract with the X and 0. com-

¥ the last ﬁfteen years. -

Q. Did you have a contract with them ?—A. We had a yearly contract.

Q. In writing?—A. Yes, I think it was just an exchange of letters, and I thmk
that was the way we made it.

By Mr. Macdonald: |

Q. You have said that you have had a contmuous contract with the Y. and O.

Oompany for the last 15 years. On page 57 Mr. Vaughan was asked—
% “ How long does that contract run? and his reply was “It expires next year,
- 1923.” Now you say it will not expire until April, 19247—A. It is easy to explain
§ - _that.
g Q. Where was this coal to be delivered?—A. On the upper lakes.

Q. Were they to deliver it to you there?’—A. Yes.
Q. What about the price?

Sir Hexry Dravron: What are we trying to do?

. The CrammaN: We are investigating a payment made to the Canadian Northern
System for coal supplied to the Canadian National Railways.
Sir Hexry Drayron: Is there any suggesticn of impropriety?
The CuAmrMAN: None at all.

-

Mr. Macponatp: I asked for these papers. The situation is this: Looking person-
ally through the Auditor General’s report I find that in 1920-21 there was $2,500,000
of the people’s money taken from the Government Railways and paid for the purchase
of coal to the Canadian Northern Railway. The charges for that coal range to as
high as $12 per ton. I moved for the papers in the ordinary way and when they are
laid down I eannot find to whom they were paying this $12 a ton. There is nothing
in the documents that I have gone through to show. In the course of the ordinary
questioning on May 30th Mr, Vaughan produced certain vouchers indicating purchases
from different people in ‘the United States with Canadian agents and elsewhere.
I cannot find the name of anybody who received $12 for the coal in the vouchers
produced. Mr. Vaughan said that quite a quantity of this coal was taken from the
Canadian stock pile and given to the Government Railways. I want to find out who
received the $12 for that coal and where it came from. I have never heard of this
three year’s contract before. In the course of this examination in the ordinary way
it came out that there was a three years’ contract with a company in the United States
for the purpose of providing coal. Mr. Vaughan stated distinctly that the company
furnished part of the coal that is included in this item.

Mr. Hanson: Not coal under this contract.

Mr. MacpoNarp: ‘Mr. Hanson knows more than I do about it: I never heard of
the contract until Mr. Vaughan spoke about it and expressed his perfect willingness
to produce the contract. There was no suggestion that there was any reason why it
should not be produced. When we were going through the vouchers yesterday Mr.
Vaughan stated that he would not produce,the contract. I want to find out who got
the $12 per ton for the coal, where it was paid and under what contract.. I have beeun
looking through the statements brought down here, and I find correspondence about
the purchase of coal, but not a ton of coal was purchased as the result of it.

Mr. StEwART: You asked for all the correspondence with all companies whether
coal was purchased from them or not.

The CHAIRMAN Every member will be given an opportunity to question' the
witness,

42398—2

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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Mr. MacponaLp: I want the names of those from whom coal was purchm&. i &
did not want to see the names of persons from whom no coal was purchased. All. T
want to see is the names of the people who supplied coal to the Canadian Northern
Railway Company which is mentioned in this itom in the Auditor General’s Report.
This is the first time in a long Parliamentary experience that we have to be told that
Government money voted by Parliament must not be mvestlgated——that we canmﬂa
find out who got it and how it was spent. If Parliament is going to surrender the
right to find out from anybody—I do not care who he may be—where this money wehf-;v
the people of Canada will want to know why we are sitting here as their representatives.
Don’t you think it is only fair that we can get from Mr. Vaughan or Mr. Hanna a
statement of who got the money under this item? I did not know anything abou
this contract—never heard of it until Mr. Vaughan mentioned it here in this discussion.
He introduced the contract himself.. I never heard of the Y. and O. Company in my
life until then. He offered to produce the contract. Members of the Comnnttee were
led to believe that that contract related to this item of $2,500,000 paid for coal il £t
not I would not waste time trying to find out about it.
Sir Hexry Dravrox: That has nothing to do with-it.

Mr. Macnoxarp+ It has. You cannot, Sir Henry, blow into the Committee at
the last minute and tell us that it has nothing to do with it. Mr. Hanna says that
he has a contract here which begins April, 1921. I want to find out something about
the contract that related to deliveries in 1920. If this contract which he holds does
not relate to the deliveries of that year, let him produce the contract that does.

Mr. Stewarr: If T remember, Mr. Macdonald yesterday asked mnot only for the
correspondence with this particular company, but the correspondence with every
company.

Mr. MacponaLp: With’every company that sold the coal.

Mr. Stewart: He wanted to know if there had not been coal purchased from other
companies.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: Mr. Stewart is confusing two things. First, I wanted to get
papers relating to the purchase of this coal. Mr. Vaughan said in his examination
that the reason why this high price was paid for coal was because he could not get coal
in the maritime provinces. He produced correspondence from one companay which
stated they were not able at the time to sell coal. I never asked for correspondence
with people who did not deliver coal in the United iStates. It was all purchased in
the United States—not a ton of it was bought in Canada. I want to know who the
people are in the United States from whom coal was purchased. He has only
produced correspondence from one Nova Scotia company; I want to know about
the others. 3

Mr. Stewart: Might not all the correspondence be valuable in arriving at the
wisdom shown in the prices paid?

Mr. Vein: Is not the easiest way to:get at it' to let Mr. Hanna talk about 'the
contract under which the coal was purchased?

The CuamrMAx: I understand that Mr. Hanna has no objection at all.

Mr. Haxxa: None whatever.

The CuamrMAN: Although a contrary impression may have been given, Mr.
Vaughan says the contract under discussion refers to deliveries subsequent to the item
we are discussing. Ie says there were other contracts with the Y. & O. Company,
either by correspondence or formal documents, and that these contracts are the ones
to which the Auditor General’s Report has reference. I am going to ask Mr. Hanna
whether he will produce before us the contracts with the Y. & O. under which the
purchases of coal represented by the entries on page W-189 in the Auditor General’s
Report were made, or any other company. :

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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Mr. HANNA: There is not the slightest objection to ptoducmg any bit of paper
or contract that we have covered by that reference.

Mr. MacponaLp: That is all we want.
Mr. Haxna: The point I want to 1mpress is this: They represent telegrams,

‘verbal communications and some contracts. As you all know in 1920 it was not a

question so much of making contracte as it was to procure coal at any price to carry
on' our operations. There is no reason in the world why we should not tell you all
about that item.

The CHARMAN: Then we are all at one.
Mr. MacponaLp: We understand that Mr. Hanna has no objection and will give

E through Mr. Vaughan the information we require as to the coal which was purchased

that year.

Mr. Haxna: No objection at all.

Mr. MacpoNaLD: I know very well as a member of the Committee that my right
of examination is confined to the years 1920 and 1921. I cannot go outside of that.

Mr. McCrea: We all realize the difficulty of getting coal or any other material
in 1920, but this is a contract made in 1920 for the delivery of coal in 1921, 1922 and
1923. What advantage was there in placing a contract for the delivery of coal in the
vears 1921, 1922 and 1923%? Was it wisdom on the part of the management to make
such a contract?

Mr. Hanna: We think so. We think it was a very good contract. It has proved

80.

Mr. MarTELL: What are the prices to-day?

Mr. Haxna: The prices to-day have not been fixed. This contract is of such a
nature that even when the strike ends and the miners go back to work, that no matter
what rate they pay the miners our maximum price is here.

‘Mr. MarTeELL: My whole contention is that we have had a ruling under which we
are only to get information on the items which appear in the Audtior General’s
Report. Now you are giving evidence on a contract which is not before us. That
may be a matter to be dealt with at a future time, but at the present time let us
keep to the items as they appear in the Audtior General’s Report.

Mr. Haxna: The question was asked and I was replying.

The CramMAN: This was in reply to a question asked by Mr. McCrea.

Mzr. Ven: In the statement made generally by Mr. Hanna there were a few
words which though they may have no bearing on the item under discussion are ineci-
dentally connected therewith quite closely. For instance, the question put by Mr.
MeCrea as to the advisability of binding the Canadian National Railways for a
period of three years was to my mind absolutely irrelevant. Mr. Hanna has cleared
the ground. He says they have a maximum price at any time. It was in the inter-
ests of the Committee that we should know that. I want to ask another question
which might clear the ground for further discussion in this respect. Mr. Hanna
has stated that it would not be in the public interests to give out, while the con-
tracte are in force, the details of such contracts because it would hamper them in
the purchase of supplies. I should like to have information which Mr. Hanna can
give in two minutes—I am not quite clear on that point so far as the disclosure of
the contract would affect competitive purchasers. It seems to me if the existing con-
tract ie known to the public when you are dealing with prospective sellers to your
railway, if your contract is known the prospective tenderers will surely be apt to
tender at a lower competitive figure. That is a point on which I want to be informed.
I admit frankly that I am not an expert in such matters, but I want information
from experts. 1 for one would be extremely reluctant to bring before the Com-
mittee or the House anything which would hamper the administration of our

[Mr. D. B, Hanna.]
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national roads, but it seems to me in any ordinary business if in 1920, for ins;{;hnéé,

I purchased coal at $6 per ton, and I am inviting tenders for the supply of coal for

1921, if it is known that I purchased at $6 in 1920, it would be likely to result in

getting lower tenders. On that point I should like to get information.

* Mr. Haxxa: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the Committee, when we send

out our tenders to all of the coal operators in the Maritime Provinces and invite
tenders from the American companies, the prices of the coal vary in accordance with
the quality of the coal to be delivered. Our experience has been, particularly in the

Maritime Provinces, that all the operators hold back and we cannot get tenders in.

We are in this position te-day that although we called for bids a month ago not one
tender has been received yet.

Mr. Locax: You know the reason.

The CuHARMAN: You are rather getting away from Mr. Vien’s point. T will
sum up his question: Is it not wise when you are tendering to allow people to know
what you paid before in order that they may be led to tender beneath the price you
have been paying? Is there a business rule to the contrary?

Mr. Haxnva: When all is said and done, when we get the tenders in and we
know that we have overlapping contracts if we cannot get nearer the figure the
tender is thrown out. We say “you will have tonnage at a lower figure; you can
take it or leave it. The result is while we are getting tenders in, we go over them
and in 19 out,of 20 cases we never close for the lowest figure offered. We try to get
a little lower price. If you let these fizures be known it will to some extent hamper
us and we do not feel that the information should be given out.

Mr. Viex: That is just the point. You say even if it were known it would not

bring the tenderer to offer' a lower tender, but I hardly can see how it would bring
the tenderer to offer a higher figure.

The CaAmrMAN: It m1ght lead the tenderer to tender just under the prlce that
the railway had been paying before. My own opinion is, Mr. Hanna, that it is not
the price which you have been paying before that governs, but the best price they

can get for the goods.

Mr, Locan: Referring to a statement made by Mr. Hanna about the tenders
called for in the maritime provinces, there is a reason for the delay of the mines in
tendering. There is a reason which Mr. Hanna started to give when you shut him up.
Let me say, as a member of this Committee and suggest to Mr. Hanna that the
position he is taking in referemce to disclosing the prices of contracts is a position
which might have been taken a year ago and I am not sure that it cannot now. If
the contract is not disclosed it will arouse suspicion in the minds of the people that
there is something wrong. The people want the book open. We must know in this
country where the public money is paid and how it is pald and espeecially in the
maritime provinces where we are interested in the sale of coal to the Government
railways. We are interested in the contract which extends to 1924. To refuse to
produce this contract to my mind is a serious blunder.

Mr. Lewis: T am just wondering whether those mine-owners in Nova Scotia are
waiting for this disclosure before sending in their tenders?

Mr. Logan: It is unfair for a member of this Committee to make such an insinu-
ation in reference to the coal mine operators in Nova Scotia. Let Mr. Hanna answer
the question and we will see why. i

The CramrMAN: Mr. Hanna will you please continue your observatmn concerning
the mine-owners of the maritime provineces.

Mr. Hanna: T regret that the discussion should get into the position it has
assumed this morning. While we sent out tenders a month ago there has been a
strike and the Conciliation Board is sitting, and the definite basis on which miners

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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;v'ages are to be paid has not yet been settled. We are not complaining. T do not

want to extend this discussion but I want to say to Mr. Logan that after the manage-

ment has completed its work and has made contracts and these contracts have been

fulfilled T have no objection that they should be disclosed. I have mo objection to
disclosing everything connected with the Government railways. The last thing I
want is that a suspicion should be aroused in the country that we have refused to
give information. I have taken the ground ever since this was a national system
that there should be a small body of parliamentarians who would sit in with us with
our annual report, and we will endeavour to answer every question they wish to put.
It does not alter the specific fact that the management, if it has the confidence of
the Government and of the people as a whole, should not be trammelled or circum-
seribed in their efforts by the disclosure of information which would have the effect
of probably increasing the price of the goods that they have to purchase.

Mr. Vien: The question is whether it would have that effect. In ordinary busi-
ness when there is a falling market, if you advertise under what conditions you pur-
chased goods last year and invite tenders, the tenderers will be prompted to under-

~ bid the price of last year, considering at all times the conditions of last year and the

conditions of this year; and besides if they know that last year’s tenders were sent
in by so and so and that the lowest was so and so, this year they will be prompted

_ by that very fact—if they have a knowledge of it—to try and underbid the successful

tenderer of the previous year and that is a point on which I want expert advice, to
know whether it really has that effect.

Mr. Durr: I think it is only due to this Committee that Mr. Lewis, who made
the insinuation that the operators of the maritime provinces were waiting to find out
how much is paid for coal under that contract before putting in their bids, should be
met. That is a very unfair insinuation and he should take it back.

Mr. Lewis: I just asked the question.
Mr. Durr: It was more than a question; it was an insinuation.
Mr. Viex: The insinuation was met by Mr. Hanna’s reply.

Mr. Durr: In the Auditor 'General’s report there is an item of two and
a half million dollars paid for a certain quantity of coal and Mr. Macdonald figures
out that this coal cost $12 a ton.

Mr. MacponaLp: Not all of it. The prices vary from a very small quantity at
low figures and a greater quantity at $6.25 and at other higher figures. Over 150,000
tons were purchased at an average price of $12.

Mr. Durr: It seems to me the easiest 'way to settle this matter is for the Railway
Management to produce its invoices. Every purchase must have been accompanied
by an invoice and that is the quickest way to find out what has been paid. We will
see at opce whether that $12 per ton was f.o.b. at the mines or c.im. here. In that
way we can get the information and will not be beating about the bush. I suggest
that all the invoices be produced for this coal which has cost the country two and
a half million dollars.

Mr. Haxxa: There is no objection whatever.

Myr. Macponarp: With regard to your statement about the disclosure of coal -
prices I find in the Hansard that in answer to Mr. Jones of New Brunswick you gave
the prices of freight paid to March, 1922—the Government gave us the information,
but it would have to come from the management—you gave the prices of certain coal
you purchased in February, March and April in the United States, and you went on
to say that the Canadian National Railways had a contract with the Y. & O. Coal
Company of Cleveland expiring December 31, 1923, for approximately 1,000,000 tons
per annum. I understand from Mr. Vaughan and yourself that you take the position
that this coal for which you made this contract is for use in points west?

Mr. Hanna: Yes.

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. Therefore the prices would not be of any particular interest to the 'miﬁe

owners in Nova Scotia ?"—-A. Certainly they would not be interested. 2

Q. Then why not give us the contracts?—A. Because they have no béaring on
the question. - : ‘

Q. You are going to give us the contracts relating to this amount which we are
investigating%—A. Yes. What I want to say—and I regret to say it—is that the

communication you are reading and some of the replies made by the Government-

were semi-confidential information sent to the Minister of Railways. When these
questions were asked I protested against them being answered. Do not misunder-
stand me: Any kind of information the Minister of Railways asks for we supply.
There is no hesitancy about that. Certain questions come up in the House and we
send the information, but we say to the Minister of Railways “ We do not think in
the public interest the information should be disclosed.” Sometimes that information
has been disclosed. We cannot prevent it but we have made our protest: The
responsibility is taken off my shoulders.

: Q. As a matter of fact you claim that in this particular case the contracts for
the supply of coal to Port Arthur and the west if diselosed would not amount to any-

thing so far as Canadian coal producers are concerned?—A. Certainly not. I want
to make it clear/that I do not wish to cast reflections on the Minister of Railways
but it is for the protection of the board of directors. '

Mr. Macponarn: I want to say one thing in conclusion as a representative of the
people, I will not: waive my right to examine into every item that appears in the
Auditor General’s Report.

The CuHAmMAN: I understand, there is no conflict about that. We can enquire
into anything which appears in the Auditor General’s accounts. Let us sum up the
situation as I understand it: Mr. Hanna says that the contract which he has been
asked to produce does not cover the deliveries of coal under the item mentioned in the
Auditor General’s Report; that there are agreements in writing by letters which do
cover these items and those he is ptepared to produce and will have produced before
the Committee.

Mr. Hanson: And invoices.

The CHARMAN: And invoices.

Mr. Marrenn: And from whom purchased.

Mr. Locan: Why should the Chairman make a speech? Let the witness answer
the question. :

The Cmamymax: I do not think I have unduly taken up the time of the Com-
mittee. T will try not to talk again. As I understand, Mr. Hanna has undertaken
to have produced before this Committee any contracts, invoices, memoranda and
papers touching the item in the Auditor General’s Report on page W-189 an aggre-
gate of $2,429,984.08—is that satisfactory?

Mr. MARTELL: Yes.

Mr. McCrea: Mr. Hanna’s objection to submitting this contract is that if the
public knows what it contains the competing companies might take advantage of if.
T think Mr. Hanna is old enough in business to know perfectly well that while the
public may not know what is in this contract, any competing coal or mining company
who want to know what that contract contains have ways and means of finding out
what is in it. '

A MewmBer: How? ;

Mr. MoCrea: They can get it. I venture to say that T will find out® anything
that T want to know about what my competitor is doing. The public are not going
to take the trouble to find out, but the man who wishes to know the provisions of

{Mr. D. B. Hanna.] '
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this contract can find ways and means of getting it and there is no reason whatever
‘why it should not be made public. Mr. Hanna is acting in good faith and thinks it

is in the best interests of the people that the contract should not be disclosed, but

- I differ from him and T claim that anybody interested in knowing what the conditions

of this contract are, knew it long ago, and if they do not they can easily find out.
* Mr. Lewis: Do you say that thls item does not refer to the contract under
discussion ?
The Cuamyax: That is my impression.
- Mr. MacpoNaLp: Mr. Hanna has sworn to that. All this has arisen from Mr.
Vaughan’s stating that some of the coal was obtained under this contract. In regard

- to the statement here, Mr. Vaughan said that this coal was all purchased in the

name of the Canadian National Rallway He said :—

“Of course these accounts are kept separate. That would not apply =0
much to coal as to other supplies, because this was bought by the railway and
delivered and unloaded on a pile and charged at actual cost.”

Are the items purchased from the Canadian Northern Railway Company charged
at more than the actual cost?

Mr. Hanna: No. .

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. Why was it in this particular instance that the Canadian Government Rail-
ways did not buy coal from the people who directly sold it? Why should you have
your bookieeping_conducted in that way? Why should not the Government Rail-
ways accounts show the various companies’ from which the coal was purchased ?—
A. For the reason we were dealing with the same firmg for coal for other parts of the
system. There is no special point in this, as far as T can see about who was paid for
it originally.

Q. It is a question of book-keeping: You may charge up against the Canadian
Government Railway System what is purchased from the Canadian Northern Rail-
way *—A. It is not kept separate. We are buying coal for the general system of the
Canadian National Railways.

Q. You are the general manager of the Canadian National Railways?—A. There
is a Board of Management.

Q. But you do not keep accounts for supplies for the Canadian Northern Rail-
way —A. In 1921 the whole system was consolidated for operating and purchasing
purposes.

Q. I do not see why you should have to go to the Canadian Northern Railway
when there were other companies that sold coal. The Canadian Northern Railway
buys coal and comes in as a middléman. There is nothing to indicate who sold the
coal in the first instance and that is what we want to find out.

A MeMmBer: The invoices will show.

By Mr. Martell :

- Q. Did you charge the Canadian Government Railways any grea'tor price than
was paid by the Canadian Northern for the coal?—A. No.

By Mr. Logan:

Q. May I ask, Mr. Hanna, again why was this coal bought from the Canadian
Northern Railway Co., and not from coal companies direct—what 'is the reason?—
A. Mr. Vaughan will explain all that to you if you will permit him.

By Mr. Martell :

Q. When you produce these papers will you produce also the cost price of the
coal to the Canadian Northern and the cost price to the Canadian National Railways?
—A. Certainly.

a

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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Q. Both these lines ‘were -owned by the Government at the time the ttansactlot"
took place?—A. Undoubtedly. .

The CramrMAN: When would you be able to give us the invoices?
Mzr. VaveaAN: In two or three days.

+ Mr. Haxxa: There are a good many of them. However we will get them here.‘ \,,;!

Mr. MacpoxALD: Let us get the invoices and we will see what further we reqmre. i
Myr. MarTELL: Can you bring us a statement showing the prwes paid by the
Oanadian Northern for coal so as to show comparatively how the prices of coal yoa
bought in the United States, taking into consideration frelght, duty, ete., will com- 7l

pare with prices you would have had to pay for coal bought in Nova Scotia?

r. Hanna: There never would have been an item like that 1n the Audltor‘

General’s report if we could have procured coal in the maritime provinces. That is
the position ‘and it should be demonstrated beyond a peradventure when you get the
. invoices. It was because we could not secure coal in the maritime provinces.

Mr. Macponarp: We claim that you declined to take coal in the maritime pro-
vinces under your contract last year while men were walking the streets for want of
employment.

Mr. Hanxa: That has been stated =before and it is absolutely untrue.

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. Why not carry out your contract?’—A. Because we did not need the coal at
the time. The gross earnings of the National Railway system during 1921 dropped
away very substantially. Mr. Vaughan will give you the total tonnage that was
used on the locomotives in 1921, and he will show you that that tonnage was sub-
stantially lower than in previous years. He will also show you that we took coal
from the maritime operators and put it in the stock pile and we have to- day four
months’ supply on the Intercolonial Railway.

Q. What about the Transcontinental?—A. We supply coal from the maritime
provinces as far west as Cochrane.

Q. If you will only do that and see that the order is earrled out we will forgive
you many shortcomings.—A. I have no doubt from Mr. Macdonald’s standpoint I
havc a g_rloat many shortcomings.

. Macpoxarp: I do not believé in the principle of committing to any‘body or
any mg'fmwahon the task of running any great enterprise with an annual deficit of
$72,000,000 without a prospect of finding out how the money was spent.

The CaAmrMAN: If there are no other questions I will excuse Mr. Hanna and we

thank him for the information he has furnished. . '

Mr. Vavcnax recalled, said: On page 58 of the report the question is asked
“What are you paying now—%$4.93 per ton?” and the answer is “ No, we have not
taken any coal from them since September 4th last year.” If you read the context
to that, of what took place previously, we were referring to 1921 and 1922 coal, but
T did not make any statement that we took coal from the Y. and O. Company in
1920. The court reporter came to me after -the meeting, however, and said “there
may be some inaceuracy in this transcription.” I asked our own officers if we took
coal in 1920 from the Y. and O. Company and they said we did not. There is
another statement made by Mr. Macdonald: He says that I introduced the Y.and O.
contract myself. If you will refer to page 57, Mr. Macdonald is reported as saying
“T see a sttatement here that we have a contract with an American coal company
for a large supply of coal” and he asks the name of the company. That question
had been answered in the House and I was asked for particulars about it.

Mr. Macpoxarp: I asked you “what is the name of the company?’ T did not
know anything about it and did not know anything about a contract with the
Youghiogheny and Ohio Coal Company. -

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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_ Mzr. VaueHAN: Certain reference is made to the prlce of $17 a ton. That included
_ freight, in some cases $5 from the United States mine, and the duty. A large part

. of that coal was taken from the stock pile and goes back to the ledger of the previous

year. Our books of course are open to examination but it is going to be exceedingly
difficult to trace our invoices back for a period of years. The invoices will be
furnished without question but I wish to point out that we do not distinguish
between the Canadian National Railways and the Canadian Northern Company.

" All this coal was bought by the Canadian National Railways, and some goes into a
(Canadian National stock pile, and some into the Canadian Northern stock pile and if

the Canadian Northern gets coal it goes to the Canadian Northern, but the coal is

i purchased by the Canadian National Railways and is for the one organization. The

point I would like to bring out is that this coal was delivered from the stock pile
and I do not know how we are going to arrive at that.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: Let me suggest in the first place that you get invoices showing
all the coal purchased in the United States and delivered to the Canadian Govern-
ment railways. The invoices are to the Railway Department and it is very easy for
you to find out which ‘coal was purchased from the United States by the Company
and turned over to the Canadian Government railway. That information can be
sent to the Chairman of the Committee and then if you go on with the process of
finding out the particular lots taken from the stock piles we can get that without
difficulty at all.

Mr. Vaveuax: We will be very glad to do that

By Mr. Macdonald: e

Q. Where do you get the coal that is in the stock pile?—A. From the United
States companies. The bill is arrived at by the balances from month to month going
over a period of years and averaging the cost of the coal. I should like to say with
regard to Nova Scotia coal that we tried in 1920 to beg, borrow or steal coal from
every mining company. We furnished Mr. Carvell with a list of our eontracts and
he wrote to every company with which we had a contract in Nova Scotia and tele-
graphed them to try if they could increase their deliveries.

Q. The correspondence shows that that was previous to July, 1920, because I
have here a letter from Mr. Carvell written to you at that date speaking of changing
conditions?—A. You will find subsequently correspondeence still urging them to
_furnish coal.

Q. I have also a letter dated the 16th December in which he says they can
furnish coal.—A. That was after the coal shortage was over in 1920,

By Mr. Logan:

Q. At the time they could not furnish coal, is it not a fact that the price you
offered was $2.00 below the market price?’—A. We were asking for coal at contract
prices.

Q. T know one company that could have: sold all ita coal at $2.00 more than
you were willing to pay. They had an offer from a company on that basis, and
they lost $200,000 because they sold to you at the contract price—A. They made a
contract at a lower price. :

By Mr. Macdonald:
Q. When the American companies made a contract price, they did not stand

" on their price. We had a case where they supplied coal ahove the contract price

and draw on you for the full amount.—A. I am not here to make a complaint against
the Nova Scotia collieries in any way but every one in Canada who is running an
industry appreciates and knows the difficulty of getting coal in 1920. If you ask
Mr. Carvell, Acting Fuel Controller, to. tell his experience of trying to get coal for
our railways and industries he will tell you how difficult it was.

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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"By Mr. Lewis:

Q. You had a contract for Nova Scotla coal in 19207—A. Yes. ‘
Q. And the price under that contract turned out to be lower than the manet

price?—A. T do not know what the coal was sold at to the people down there, but
when a company takes year after year the output of a mine we expeot prefefenﬁa& ;

treatment from that mine.

Q. In 1920 in spite of the contract under which the Nova Scotla mines we:eﬁ‘,‘

delivering coal you went down to the States to buy coal at any price you could
get it for?—A. Yes, the railroad would have been closed if we had not done so.

Q. Would it not have ’bpen fair to enhaunce the price to the Nova Scotia mines?
—A. They could not give us the coal.

Mr. MacponaLp: It was only the mines engaged in t‘he bunker business tha-f
could not. The others could.

Sir HExry DrayTron: Tn connection with the 'Commlttees request for i mvox«ces,
I should like to understand what it is. T assume that you are askmg for invoices

that cover the items which you are investigating. Am I right in assuming that

if those invoices are given under current contracts subject to the difficulties Mr.
Hanna speaks of, they are not to be produced, or are they to be produced.

The Cuamrvax: T would say that all the invoices touching these 1tems in the
Auditor General’'s Report have to be produced. *

Sir Hexry Dravron: That is whether their production would be detrimental
to the public interest or not. : s

The CuamrMman: Yes, this Committee should inpvestigate the ﬁgure§.

Mr. Macpoxatp: And Mr. Hanna says that he does not want to be interfered
with in the spending of the public money.

Sir Hexry Dravron: He has no objection whatever to producing all the vouchers

Doy Y
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in connection with past contracts but if you produce vouchers for payments already

made in respect to contracts which are still existing you are doing just as much
harm, according to Mr. Hanna, as if you produced the contract itself—that is if
you have an_existing contract. I think we should be clear about this: There is
no good drifting about it. Mr. Hanna is not the only person interested: We are
all interested in seeing that the promise of the Government to run these rail-
ways as a business proposition is implemented. We know that it cannot be done if
current business is to be brought up here and enquired into. We know it is
perfectly impossible t6 get cheaper prices for example when other people are paying
greater prices. You cannot do it: We would simply ruin the business. All we
want to know definitely is exactly where we are—whether this Government system
is to be run as a business proposition or whether everything the management are
doing is to be published before those transactions are closed to the great damage
of the system. T would make another suggestion which might be considered as an
evidence of good faith on the part of the Government in connection with their
undertaking, and that is this that in dealing with all these contingent matters which
may or may not injuriously affect the railway system but which the Management
think will injuriously affect the public undertaking, that before the trade generally
know exactly every single thing that is being «done a suggestion should be made
that there is something wrong.. It is all very well to say that Parliamentary practice
gives us the privilege of enquiring into everything. That is taken for granted:
The Parliamentary rules enable you to investigate everything. My suggestion is that
the matter should be first submitted to you and the Minister of Railways. The
complainant, if you like, should have every opportunity of eoming to you and if
you find that there is any appearance of anything being wrong of course you can

open it up absolutely. The suggestion is made that most of these complaints come :

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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- from competing tenders. We have had experience enough here to-day to know that.
I do not want to take the position that because Mr. Macdonald, for example, is very
closely connected with the Empire Steel Company that that is what interests him.

. He has a proper interest to see that the mines of Nova Scotia get all the sales they

can and I should like to help him and I did last year as the contracts show, but
under all these circumstances it is all the more important that this enquiry should
be gone into in such a way as not to imperil the future of the Canadian National
System even if the laudable object in view should be selling Nova Scotia coal.
I think we should know exactly what our policy is.

Mr. Locan: T submit that that speech should have been made in Parliament
and not here. Tt is a matter of policy for the Parliament of Canada to adopt: We
are hiere to investigate certain questions. We have the right to investigate them but
we are not here to lay down a broad policy which must come from the Government
of the country.

Mr. Macpoxarp: Sir Henry Drayton’s speech is entirely beside the mark. I
do not think he has been following the discussion eclosely. The situation is that
Mr. Hanna has a contract from which he has quoted and which he says is in exis-
tence, and we have from Mr. Vaughan the facts in connection with it. What we
are here investigating is where this two and a half million dollars went in 1920 and
1921. We have a right to investigate it in full because if we are to be stopped by
any high. flaunting statements, then we will have coal charged at higher prices than
should be paid.

A Mevper: Ts that the gravamen of your charge?

Mr.: Macpovatp: I am not making any charge. I want to find out the fact
about this expenditure of two and a half million dollars for United 'States coal
which might have been got in Canada. In the gratuitous remarks made by Sir
Henry Drayton about my connection with the British Empire Steel Company I
want to state to him it is true that while T was not in the House of Commons I acted
as solicitor for the British Empire Steel Company in regard to certain special
legal matters which had no relation to the business of Parliament, but I have no
connection with the British Empire 'Steel Company now. I represent and was
elected to this House to represent specially in this chamber the views of the coal
miners of my county who gave me their confidence to an overwhelming degree in the
last election contest. T am here by the votes of the coal miners and not by the
influence of any company. These are the men who sent me here and T will look after
their interests. T am here to find out ir their interests why Mr. Hanna and his
confreres and others who are spending Government money have gone to the United
States this year, last year or any other year to buy American coal while our miners
are walking the streets. I will exert my Parliamentary rights to the limit in order
to find that out. In regard to the suggestion of influencing Nova Scotia contracts
at this time, T say Mr. Hanna has not followed that subject at all. .He says there
is a contract for coal for the West and he is going to buy coal in Nova Scotia.
What we want is that he should buy all the coal he can in Nova Scotia. So far in
the documents T have here T find that some coal from the United States went as far
east as St. Hyacinthe. These points could be supplied from Nova Scotia and should
not be supplied from the United States if he can get it in our own country. T
understand Mr. Hanna has undertaken to submit to you, Mr. Chairman, information
showing where the coal was purchased that was turned over to the Government
Railways..

\

Mr. Hanson: Do you suggest that the conditions which exist to-day in Nova
Scotia, the miners walking the streets, existed af the time this two and a half million
iR~ T [Mr. D. B. Hanna.]
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dollars was spent for the purchase of coal? If so, there is a good deal m it; 1f not,

it falls to the ground. ’ e A
‘Mr. MacoonaLp: T do not propose to discuss it now. :

Sir Hesry Dravros: I think I was quite clear in what T said about M}:.
Macdonald. I 'pointed out that so far as T was concerned I was sure that he was

actuated by mo selfish interest and that T was entirely with him. The fact is, and he
is right—he has been very closely associated with the British Empire Steel Company.:
What I ask is this, ‘whether it is the idea of this Committee in the production of
vouchers to include those relating to current contracts or mot. All I want to know ,‘

is what you are going to do.
Mr. McIsasc: I see this is more of a debating club than an investigating com-

mittee and I rise to make an observation or two myself. For very many years I

have been a member of this Commlttee, except for a short interval, from 1895 to the

present time, and I always felt that it was the duty of this Committee to investigate
everything on oath and ascertain where and when and to whom money was paid for

articles purchased by any department of the Government. But I see this Com-
mittee is attempting to-day to show that such should not be the case. I think the
contention is perfectly right that when these vouchers are brought down they should
show what was paid and that ends it. I do not see why this debating clufb should g0
on and I have got up to show that I am one of the debaters too.

The CrarMAN: My decision is that anything relating to this item of $2,429-
984.08, with any vouchers in support of these items, are properly before this Com-
mittee, even though they should relate to current contracts. With all deference
to what Sir Henry Drayton says my view is that even if it could be shown—which
I think it would be difficult to show—that it might possibly hamper the business of
running the railway, nevertheless the paramount interest is the retaining by Parlia-
ment of its eontrol of the expenditure of public money. I must say.in fairness to
the officials of the railway they have stated that they are perfectly prepared to brmg
in all the invoices under this item. {

Mr. Macpvoxarp: I suggest that Mr. Vaughan should undertake to send the
invoices with reference to the purchases of coal from the United States companies
as soon as possible, and going on at the same time with information as to de-
liveries at stock piles. As soon as we get the information this Commlttee should

~meet at the call of the Chair.:

Mxr. Vaverax: We will send them as soon as we camn.

Mr. MarteLr: By Tuesday?

Mr. GraBurn: I do not think we can have them here by Tuesday.

Mr. Macpoxarp: What T stated was this, that Mr. Vaughan should send here

the vouchers for coal you purchased direct from the American .people as you gave

them to the Auditor General when you got the money from the Government. You
can then follow with the vouchers for the stock pile deliveries, but we should have
the others first.

Mr. Vaveran: What you want us to submit right away is a statement of what
was purchased for the Canadian Northern making up this amount.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: I was making a distinction between two classes. You say th.at
some were purchased direct from the American people and turned over to the rail-
ways. These can be supplied readily I understand and those relating to coal taken
from the stock piles will take longer.

Sir Hexry Dravrox: We should have the whole story with the witnesses in
the box. We should not have a few invoices such as my hon. friend wants. What
is the good of having a lot of argument on a partial case?

[Mr. D. B. Hanna.] ' Fori
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4 we should not meet until the information is complete
Mr MAODONALD Remember you are not Minister of Finance, and your Govern-

Sir HeNry DRAYTON. I make the suggestion that any direction from the Chair
| should not be in the nature of a partial investigation.

The CHalRMAN: Partial means incomplete?

Sir HeNry DrayToN: Yes.

Mr. MacpoNaLD: Sir Henry Drayton has not read the evidence. The informa-
_ tion is that some of this coal was bought directly from people in the United
| States. There are also deliveries from time to time at various points from the
stock piles. The information relating to these matters might take some time to be
prepared. I should like to find as soon as possible, about the first; The others can
come later. As soon as I have seen those it may be necessary in my judgment to call
the Committee together.
iy Sir Hexry Drayrox: In the first instance I entirely agree with my hon. friend
ubut I also hope the Chairman will agree with me that because there has been a
uchange of Government there is no reason why a steam-roller method should be
| adopted. I am only submitting that the proper practice means that every detail
- ghould be covered. I do not appreciate my friend’s other suggestion and that is
| that when he gets some little item which he thinks will support hiny in his complaint
| he shall'have the right to consult the Chairman and ask him to proceed with it. My
| opinion is we should have the vouchers as a whole, the invoices as a whole as covered
| by your ruling, before we take them up.

Mr. MacpoNanp: The difference between the two classes of Voucherc. is this, one
" would relate to coal taken from the stock pile and the other to direct purchases of coal
- The correspondence with regard to them ecalls for an ix"lvestigation for one class and
| another investigation for the other.
Mr. Caamyman: It will be a much easier and shorter job for the railway officials
" to get together the invoices for coal which did not go into the stock piles. I am
- aeking them to get this information at the earliest possible moment and send it
- down. If they constitute a sufficient body of documents to warrant calling the Com-
. mittee together, I will call the Committee for the consideration of those. T will
1 also urge upon the bfficials to complete the whole thing as soon as possible so we
| can have it before us at the earliest possible date.

Mr. Grasurn: We have already furnished all the invoices for direct deliveries.
- We cannot give any more. The only thing we can furnish now is invoices stating
. our average prices. We have actually given an invoice for every car of ‘coal shipped
direct to the Canadian Government Rhailways.

Mr. MacponaLp: There is not a single voucher here to show how you arrived at
the price of $12 a ton for coal.

Mr. GraBurN: No, because that is for coal from the stock pile.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: You say now that $12.00 coal was from the stock pile.

Mr. GrABURN: Yes.

Mr. MacpoNaLD: You have given me correspondence with people in the United
%tates which did not result in the purchase of coal.

Mr. Locan: Have you brought down the Y, and O. invoices?
[Mr. D. B. Hanna.}
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Mr. GRABURN: All that went into the Canadlan Northern stock plles.

Mr. Locax: We are to get these vouchers?

Mr. GraBURN: Yes, that will not take a long time. ; :

Mr. MacpoNaLp: I, will check up those vouchers and see what they cover. I am
very much surprised to find all the $12.00 coal from the stock pile. }

Mr. GraBurnN: For some of that coal we paid $13.00 a ton. As I understand.
it I brought before a copy of every bill made against the Canadian Government
Railways for a year. In every case ‘where coal was Shlp‘ped direct to the Government
Railways I brought the invoice. Where it was from the stock pile T could not,

because the invoice would not agree with the prices. We can establish that from
month to month. : 7 p 4

By Mr. Macdonald

Q. The coal you supplied from the stock p1le you fixed at a price that was
different from what you paid for it%—A. The prices ran from $6.00 up to $12.00.
We averaged it up every month. ‘

The OrARMAN: How long will it take to get the vouchers for what you slnpped’ k
out of the stock pile?

Mr. GraBUrN: Eight or twelve days. <
Mr. VavcuAN: Is there anything else wanted before we go? I do not want the
Committee to think there is anything we do not want to supply. .

Mr. MacponarLp: I asked for a statement in regard to deliveries for last year.
Mr. VavucuAN: I have that here. I realized that you would ask for that. ’
Mr. MacpoNaLp; Can you give me the details of the different Companies?
Mr. VavgHAN: I think I can.

The Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

[Mr. D. B, Hanna.]
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Commimree Room 425,

House or CoMMONS,

-

WeDNESDAY, June 21, 1922.

oy
-

)ry‘j The Select Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11:00 o’clock a.m.,
}{Mr A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding.

i The Committee proceeded to the further consideration of “a payment of $2,429,-
~ 984.08 to (Canadian Northern Railway System in connection with coal, errors in
 calculation, freight and duty, as set out at page W-189, Volume 3, Report of Auditor
| General for fiscal year ended March 31, 1921.”

¢ The CramMan: The Committee will please come to order. Mr. Macdonald,

what do you want to do this morning?
Mr. MacoonaLp: If Mr. Vaughan is here, I have some questions to ask him.

Mr. R. C. VAugHAN recalled and examired.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. What is your exact position?—A. Vice-president of the Canadian National
- Railways, and in charge of all supplies and stores.
Q. Prior to joining the Canadian National, what previous experience had you
~ had?—A. I was with the Canadian Northern for some years, with the C.P.R., and
~ with the Grand Trunk for a while.
i & Q. How long were you with the Canadian Northern?—A. Nearly fifteen years.

Q. Immediately preceding the eombination of the railways?—A. Yes.

Q. And your experience in regard to coal purchases included the purchase of
American coal?—A. Yes.

Q. And some western coal for the western lines?—A. Yes, western coal and
American coal, because on the Canadian Northernswe did not have very much oppor-
tunity of using Nova Scotia coal.

Q. And your experience in regard to the question of the purchases of Nova Scotia
coal developed after you attained your present position?—A. Yes.

Q. T have here certain documents which relate to the question of the coal situ-
ation, and you were to furnish some data?’—A. We are preparing that statement. We
promised it in ten days, but it has taken a little longer. We have to prepare a state-
ment like that each month separately for the Eastern and the Western lines.

Q. Why did not you send me the statement for the Eastern lines instead of for
the Western lines%—A. We are going to send the whole thing when it is completed.

Q. In regard to the question of the purchases of Western coal, T understood
1 you to say on your previous examination that you purchased American coal which you
. took at Port Arthur and stored in Winnipeg, and that the supply of coal from
| Winnipeg west was American coal’—A. Not from Winnipeg west. From Winnipeg
i west is principally Canadian coal. |

Q. Western coal%—A. Yes.

Q. Alberta coal?—A. Largely.

Q. T understood you to say before that you used American coal?—A. T said we
used American coal as far as Winnipeg, and in Winnipeg itself we used Western coal.

Q. T remember you stated that in engines from Winnipeg West you used
~ American coal?—A. T gaid the engines going out of Winnipeg would get American
1 coal.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan ]
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Q. During the hearing of the evidence by the Committee on freight rates, it was :

stated that the C.P.R. used Western coal exclusively in Winnipeg for their western
engines on the first divisions?—A. I think that may be true, but not always so, because
they get in more American coal at the head of the lakes than we do.

Q. They have more lines?—A. Yes.

Q. Of course, you know the quantity that the C.P.R. buys?—A. Yes.

Q. I see in the correspondence that you know the C.P.R. prices?—A. Well, we

“may not always know what the C.P.R. is paying; sometimes we may get an insight into
that.

Q. Apparently you know how much coal they buy. This correspondence shows
you knew what they were getting coal for in the United States?—A. I do not
remember that correspondence.

Q. In view of the fact that you had this 1nformat10n about the C.P.R., I was
wondering whether the C.P.R. was ever able to get any information about what you
were doing in these matters?—A I suppose the C.P.R. could get information the
same as we could, perhaps, from some of the individual firms that sell us coal, just
as some of them tell us what the C.P.R. are paying.

Q. I understand that th'e information furnished by your company is very largely
based on the fact that you knew what the C.P.R. were doing, and they knew what you
were doing?—A. We do not know, generally speaking, what they are doing, but there
may be occasional instances when we do.

Q. You have undertaken to say that they take more coal at Port Arthur than
you do?—A. Yes. What goes over the docks at the head of the lakes is common
property.  Lverybody knows that the coal fhere is common property for all the
individual companies in Winnipeg.

Q. That is the only reason you have for saying that Mr. Lanigan was incorrect
in what he told us a couple of days ago before the Rates Committee, which was te
the effect that they used Canadian coal exclusively in the operation .of their trains
from Winnipeg west?—A. Judging from the amount of coal taken in at the head of
the lakes, I imagine they use about the same amount as we do.

Q. Mr. Lanigan made that distinct statement before the Freight Rates Committee,
that they used Canadian coal exclusively. He stated that that was #heir policy?—A
It is our poliey, too, when we can get it to advantage‘

Q. What do you mean?—A. A good many mines on our lines have been developed
recently that were not open years ago.

Q. I am exceedingly anxious to see the use of Canadian coal wherever it can be
used —A. We favour that policy.

Q. And I would like you to emulate the C.P.R. in that respect, and use Canadian
coal from Winnipeg west?—A. It is our policy to use Canadian coal wherever we can

Q. Mr. Lanigan stated that they used Canadian coal on all their engines operating
out of Winnipeg west?—A. Do you think the C.P.R. would use Canadian coal at
Winnipeg if it cost them more? i

Q. Mr. Lanigan said it was the policy of the C.P.R. to favour Canadian indus-
tries— )

Mr. Lewis: Mr. Chairman, is this the matter we are here to discuss?

The OuamMAN: I ruled the other day that any inquiry which would tend to show
that this $2,500,000 could have been better expended in the purchase of Canadian
coal or cnal anywhere else would be a proper inquiry.

Mr. MacpoNaLp: That is my purpose, Mr. Chairman. Not only that, but the
statement which the witness has sent to me relates to fuel supply on the western
section and mnot on the eastern section, which was the information I particularly

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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§ wanted to get, and the purchase of 1 000 000 tons of coal a year from the United States
~ s, I submit, germane to this inquiry.
The CHARMAK: I have so ruled.

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. I would like to know from you whether it will be your policy, while you are
m your present position, to purchase and utilize Canadian coal in the operations ot
your railway west of Winnipeg?—A. Yes.

Q. I hope you will carry out that policy. We will watech your future dealings in
*  that respect with interest. Is the Port Arthur Coal Dock Company part of the Cana-
\' dian National Railway Systemi’—A. There are two docks there. One is called the
' (anadian Northern Coal and Ore Dock Company, and the other is called the Fort
Wiiliam Coal and Dock ‘Company.
\ Q. Are either of those companies meorporated or part of the Canadian National
& Railway System J—A The one at Port Arthur is part of the Canadian National Rail-

way.

e

s

e

Q. Is that where you get your coal?—A. We get some of it there and some via .
Fort William. We take as much as we can handle over our own dock, and take the
balance over the Fort William dock. We: built that dock in accordance with an
arrangement with the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway.

Q. What was the total quantity of coal that your company purchased in 1921

from the United States?—A. I do not know; I think that has been given in an answer
to the House.
g Q. Not in this particular year?—A. I think perhaps I have that here. ~The total
~ amount of American coal purchased for the year 1920-21, ending 31st March, 1921,
| was 1,312,872 tons, and the total amount of Canadian coal purchased was about
2,200,000 tons.

Q. Of that how much was purchased in the West?—A. 1,147,280 tons was pur-
chased in the West, and 1,064,690 tons in the East.

Q. How much of that was purchased from the Y. & O. Coal Company?—A. Well,
in 1920-21, the year in which we had so much difficulty in getting coal, we obtained,
roughly, a couple of hundred thousand tons.

Q. What was the price at the mine?—A. I am not sure. I think it will be shown
in that statement you have amongst the vouchers. '

. By Mr. Martell :

Q. Was any of this American coal used on the Intercolonial Railway?—A. Not
any of this Western coal.

Q. But Americau coal—A. Yes; there was some American coal.

The CuamrMax: Ave we mnot likely to become confused if questions are inter-
jected

Mr. Macponarp: T was coming to that, Mr. Martell.

The Cnammax: 1 do not want to interfere, but it seems to me that we will only
become confused if questions are interjected.

Wirsess: 1 am pretty sure the price was $3.50 that year.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. At the mine?—A. Yes.

Q. That was paysble in American funds?—A. Yes.

Q. And the difference in exchange amounted to about 15 per cent?”—A. The
exchange ran from about 12 per cent to 15 per cent.

Q. What would be the freight on that coal?—A. In 1920 the freight was lower;
1 think 1T have those freight rates here. The freight now is $1.91; it was a little
less then.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. $1.91 at the lake?—A. Yes; in 1918 it was $1.33.
Q. That is at the lake front?—A. Yes. e
Q. What is the cost of freightage to Port Arthur?—A. I think it was then 50:

cents: it is about 40 cents at the present time.
Q And the duty?—A. 53 cents.

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. Per ton?%—A. Yes.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. What would be the net price on that basis?—A. $3.50 plus $1.33 plus 53 cents

duty and 50 cents boat freight, and the exchange and freight to Lake Erie. 1

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. $6.94%—A. T make it about $6.46.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q). What do you make the exchange?—A. I took $3.50 and added $1. 33 and took
12 per cent on that, 12 per cent on $5.
Q. The exchange was at the peak in 1920%—A. I beg your pardon, I am wrong.
In 1920 the rate was $1.91. y

By Mr. Lewss:
Q. 1t is $6.94?7—A. Yes.

By Mr. Martell :
Q. You are safe in saying $77—A. It would be in the neighbourhood of $7.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. What would be the rail freight on that coal from the mines to Montreal %—A.
The freicht rate to Montreal in 1920, the local rate, was $3.30; that was changed
some time in 1920, I think.

By Mr. Martell:

Q. Why not give us the rate it would cost to land that coal in Montreal ?

Mr. MacponNaLD: That is what I want.

Myr. Lewis: Is that the American coal?

My. MacpoNALD: Yes.

Mz, Lewis: $6.94 to the lakes.

Mr., MacpoNaLD: Yes. ,

Q. I now want what it cost to get it to Montreal?—A. Coal came from almost
any place in 1920.

Q. Take it from Pittsburg?—A. The rate from the Pittsburg district to Mont-
real in 1920 was $3.57.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. That is the freight%—A. Yes. Of course, coal coming up to the province of
Quebec and Montreal was bought at all kinds of prices in 1920.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. T know that. I want to get the net cost on that basis?—A, Of $3.50?
Q. Yes?—A. That coal would cost at that time approximately $8.25 in Montreal.
Q. You paid very much higher prices?—A. Yes.
Q. $6 per ton?—A. Yes.
Q. $6.75?%—A. Yes.
Q. $7.50%—A. Yes; we paid all kinds of prices.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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o Q. You have given us the price based on $3.50 a ton at the mine. What would
- it be based on $7 per ton at the mine?—A. Approximately $11.

Q. At Montreal ?—A. Yes.

Q. I am informed by Mr. Carvell that he intimated to you personally that he
would undertake to see that you got all the coal you needed in the East from the
Nova Scotia coal mines at $7 a ton?—A. I do not remember that. I remember
talking the situation over several times with Mr. Carvell. He did intimate at one
time that if we would pay more money for coal we might be able to get more down
. there, but we had all this coal under contract.

4 Q. You were making contracts until January, 1921, according to these docu-
. ments. I was informed by Mr. Carvell only last evening that in the summer of 1920
- he intimated to you that if you were willing to pay $7 a ton for Nova Scotia coal you
- would get the coal.

Mr. Lewis: Is that $7 a ton at the mine?

i Mr. MacpoNaLD: Yes.

i Mr. MartELL: There would be exchange on that.

Mr. MacponaLp: Oh, no; not on Nova Scotia coal.

Wirxess: I do not think it would have been possible.

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. But you had that interview with Mr. Carvell?—A. T distinetly remember hav-
mg an interview with Mr. Carvell in connection with the Dominion Coal Company,
e and he said “ Do you not think you would get more coal if you paid more for it?”
. and I said I did not think so, and that so far as the Dominion Coal Company was con-
cerned they would be quite willing to give us the coal at the contract price if they
had it.

Q. T have here a letter from Mr. Carvell to you dated July 30, 1920 in which he
intimated to-you that he had received the following information from the Dominion
Coal Company: (Reads):

Otrawa, July 30, 1920.

DeAr Mr. Vavenan,—I have received a number of replies to my telegrams
of yesterday, the most important of which is from the Domuuon Coal Company,
as follows:—

Your telegram regarding Government Railway coal supplies received.
Loading steamer Sheba three thousand tons at Louisburg to-day expected
sail for Levis this afternoon. Steamer Mc¢Kee now Sydney three thous-
and tons. Have telegraphed to send this steamer Louisburg and load
immediately and will also instruct to increase car shipments from Sydney.
The Dominion Coal Company have just notified me by phone that a 5,000

ton vessel is now nearing Sydney, which can be diverted to the St. Lawrence
with coal, and we have given them permission to load this vessel out of her
turn.

I have also notified General Smart, of the British and Foreign Agencies,
Limited, Montreal, who claims he has 30,000 tons of coal from the Inverness
Distriet, that you are in the market for the whole of it, and, if he has the
vessels, you would gladly receive it at Levis or Montreal.

I have no doubt whatever that, with the prohibition of the exportation of
coal after to-morrow night, the situation will clear up immediately.

Sincerely yours,
(Sed.) F. B. CARVELL,

C'Hief Commissioner.

R. C./VaueHAN, Esq.,
Canadian Natlonal Rallwayq
Toronto.
[Mr. R. C, Vaughan]
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I am instructed that Mr. Carvell intimated to you immediately after that that if yoﬁ:
would pay $7 a ton for Nova Scotia coal he would see that you got all the coal yon' ,
wanted —A. (No answer.) |

Mr. Lewis: What is the freight now?
Mr. MacpoNaLp: They bring it by boat. It is about $2 or so.
Wirness: I think it was impossible to get boats at that time, anyhow.

By Mr. Macdonald: -

Q. That is what Mr. Carvell has stated to me?%—A. If we could have got the coal A
we would have taken it.

Q. You did not take it?%—A. We could not get it. ]

Q. That is what you say. How do you explain this letter of July 30 which I
have read?—A. I think you will find a good deal of correspondence subsequent to
that, in which we pointed out to Mr. Carvell that the embargo had not done us any i
good.

Q. Here is another letter from Mr. Carvell to you, dated December 16, 1920:
(Reads) :

Orrawa, December 16, 1920.

Dear S1R,—I am just in receipt of a letter from the Dominion Coal Com-
pany, in which they inform me that they can increase deliveries to your road
up to 40,000 tons per month, providing you can arrange for sufficient cars or
boats to transport it, and have asked me to officially inform you of this offer.

It would seem that the coal situation is improving very rapidly in the
Maritime Provinces.

Sincerely yours,

F. B. CARVELL,;
! Chief Commaissioner.
R. C. Vauvcuan, Esq.,
Vice President,
(Canadian National Railways,
Toronto, Ont.

A. T would like to point out that we did not buy any of this American coal at all
after November. There had been some contracted for and it was on the way and the
invoices came in. This is right in December when the coal situation changed.

Q. You were conducting correspondence with different people in the United
States in January, 1921, in which you were proposing to purchase coal%—A. With
whom? I do not remember that correspondence. We certainly were not negotiating
for any coal for the Quebec line. £

). You were negotiating with the Century Coal Company in January, 1921, for
the purchase of American coal, and also with the Fielder Davis Company?—A. The
Fielder Davis Company fell down on some of their contracts. They said the United
States Fuel Controller had diverted their coal elsewhere, and they could not give
it to wus.

Q). They did give you some coal, for which your people paid higher than the
contract price —A. In 1920 we were compelled in many cases to pay higher than the
contract price for coal; otherwise it would have been impossible to get it.

. How much American coal did you carry over after the season of 1920-21%—
A. T could not say off-hand, but after the situation changed in the end of November
a flood of coal came in.

Q. T would like to know how much you carried over#—A. I would be very glad
1o give you that information; T have not got it here.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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: Q It was a pretty large quantity, was it not%—A. I do not think I have any
~ information upon that here; if I had I would be glad to give it to you.
: Q. I would like you to give me that approximately.

Mr. Lewis: Mr. Chairman, when you stated that we might become confused if
questions were interjected, did you mean between Mr. Macdonald’s questions?

L.

ﬁ} " The CuamMAN: When Mr. Macdonald has asked a question I do mot think it is
. . wise to interject another question until the witness has given his answer.

; Mr. Lewis: But after the witness has answered?

E. The CuamMax: I do not think Mr. Maedonald desires to monopolize the witness.
E M, Macponarp: No; but I have taken some time and care in the perusal of these
t ‘documents, and while I have no objection to questions being asked, I suggest it is
) rather difficult to econduct an examination properly if there are frequent imterruptions.

: Mr. Lewis: When Mr. Macdonald has asked the witness a question and it has
" been answered in a way that is not lucid enough for us, could not we follow it up?

5 Mr. Macpoxarn: I think T shall be able to elucidate it fully.
The Cramman: While I agree with Mr. Macdonald, I will not object to an occa-
sional interjection.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. What is your answer?—A. I do not think it is an extraordinary supply. A
railway has to keep, for normal requirements, three months’ coal in stock.

_ + Q. The other day you gave me a memorandum in which you state that the coal
b _ordered from the Maritime Provinces in 1921-22 amounted to 1,286,800 tons; that you
. _only took delivery of 1,048,007 tons, or 238,800 tons less than you ordered in 1920-21.
I understand a statement was made, in the House or elsewhere, that you have a very
large supply of coal on hand, amounting to about 250,000 tons 2—A We have more
than that on hand; approximately 300,000 tons.

Q. In other words, you took from the Maritime Provinces 238,000 tons less last
year than the year before?—A. Yes. |

Q. And you have 300,000 tons on hand, the result being thdat you have 540,000
‘tons of coal more on your hands in 1921-22 than you required, and you must have
had a very large overplus in 1920-21%—A. The reason we did not take that coal was
largely due to the falling off in consumption.

Q. T am not asking that. With the shortage of purchases in 1921 22 you have a
_surplus of 300,000 tons, which makes 540,000 tons of coal that you either did npot take
or had on hand which you did not use. Therefore you must have had a very large
overplus in 1920-21%—A. T do mot think that follows. The reason we did not take
that coal last year was because the consumption on the I.C.R. fell off.

Q. I am pointing out that you did not take 238,000 tons that you ordered, and
also that you have 300,000 tons of an overplus, which means that there was 540,000
tons more coal which you either did not take or had on your hands in 1921-227—
A. The explanation of that is that we overestimated our requirements last year, and
the business fell off.

Q. T am pointing out to you that you must have had a very large overplus of
coal on your hands in 1920-21 that you either did mot need to buy—A. We have to
keep in mind that the year 1920 wae an abnormal year.

Q. In 1920-21 you purchased about 400,000 tons of coal more than you needed,
at high prices %—A. No, sir.

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. You stated that at the end of November the coal situation eased up and coal
flooded into the country?—A. Yes.
Q. Would that affect contracts being made?—A. Yes.
Q. That would, to a large extent, account for this surplus?—A. Yes.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Mr. Macpoxarp: What is the point you are raising?

Mr. Lewis: The witness stated that in November, 1920, the coal situation eased
up and coal came flooding into the country, and I asked him if that coal was under
contracts he had made previously.

Mr. Macpoxarp: He did not need to take the coal if he did not want to do so.

Mr. MarTELL: He was not bound to take it, exeept in quantities desired.

Wirness: We only ordered spot coal from time to time. Nobody knew that the
coal situation was going to change in the end of November the way it did.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. What T would like to know from you is whether you did not over~purchase in
1920-21?%—A. No.

Q. Where did you get the surplus of 300,000 tons of coal?—A. That surplus accu-
mulated last year because we took more coal from the Nova Scotia mines than we
needed. We over-estimated our requirements and business fell off. We had some
stock on hand.

Q. What is the total quantity of coal you took from the Nova Scotia mines in
1920-21?2—A. That information has been furnished,—1,112,000 tons of coal.

Q. In other words, you got more coal from Nova Seotia (notwithstanding your
statement that you could not get it) in 1920-21, than you got from them in 1921-22?
—A. In that vear the Intercolonial was doing more business than it has done si.nce,
and we had difficulty in getting sufficient coal to keep the railroad running.

Q. In 192021 you took more coal from the Nova Scotia mines than you did in
1921-22 by over 100,000 tons?—A. Yes, that is probably true. This question of the
difficulty of getting Nova Scotia coal is not confined to 1920-21. In 1916 only 108,000 q
tons were moved up by the railway; in 1917, 112,000 tons; in 1918, only 30,000 tons; |
in 1919, only 85,000 tons; in 1920, 102,000 tons and in 1921, 375,000 tons.

Q. You understand the reason, that the British Government had requisitioned all
the coal boats, and they could not move the coal in 1917-18. That has nothing to do
with it. In this year 1920-21, in which you said you could not get Nova Secotia coal,
you got 100,000 tons more than you got in 1921-22%—A. Yes.

Q. Do you mean to say that in®1920-21 you carried over a very large reserve
quantity of coal?—A. We certainly had a quantity of coal in stock.

Q. The data relating to 1920-21 is very important?—A. T have tried to explain if,
and if you want any further evidence I suggest you call representatives of the other
railways to prove that my contention that they bought coal anywhere and everywhere
they could is correct.

Q. You are still evading the point.. I want you to let me know what the over-
plus of your coal was in March 30, 1921 2—A. Unfortunately I have not got it.

Q. That is information you naturally ought to have had?—A. (No answer).

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. What is the normal average supply that you always keep on hand at any time
of the year for normal consumption?—A. We figure we need approximately three
months’ supply of coal for safety.

Q. That would be over 300,000 tons >—A. It depends entirely on the consumption.

Q. Your consumption of coal is in the mneighbourhood of 3,000,000 tons per
annum —A. Between 3,000,000 and 4,000,000 tons in normal times.

Q. Then 300,000 tons on hand at the end of the year would not be more than a
normal supply ?

[r. Macpoxarp: He is getting along very well, Mr. Chairman.
Wirness: 300,000 tons.

The Cuamyax: Mr. Lewis, your question was put in the form of an assertion.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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VMr. Lewis: Mr. Macdonald states that 300,000 tons of coal on hand at the end of

‘the year is too much, that it was bought at a time when prices were high, and that

they had no right to contract for it. I was trying to find out what was the normal
supply on hand, and the witness stated that it is usual to have a three months’ supply
on hand. Then if the total supply for the year is about 3,000,000 tons, 300,000 tons
does not seem to me to be too much.

Mr. MacponaLp: I think Mr. Lewis might have waited until I ascertained whether

_ that 300,000 tons of coal covered the reserve from the Atlantlc to the Pacific, or only

the eastern section.
Mr. Lewis: You are not getting at that, either.
Mr. Macponatp: You are doing all you can to keep me from getting it.

Mzr. Lewis: I do not think so. !

© Q. It was stated in a letter to you from Mr. Carvell that the Dominion Coal Com-
pany could have supplied you with 40,000 tons of coal per month?—A. Yes.

Q. That means that you could have got from the Dominion Coal Company 480,000
tons that year. How much did you take?—A. I could not say; but we were only
offered that 40,000 tons at the end of the season. We took every pound of coal that
any Nova Scotia'Company would give us during the year 1920.

By Mr. Martell :

Q. You were under contract to buy coal from the United States?—A. Yes.

Q. T understand the contract contained a provision permitting you to take the
coal just as you wanted it. You went on to say that the coal situation eased up, did
you noté—A. Yes.

Q. Then having the power vested in you to take the coal as you wanted it, why did
vou take American coal when you could have got Nova Scotia coal from a Canadian
company —A. We were buying spot coal. We might buy 500 cars or 250 cars from
a man.

Q. But after the coal situation eased up in Canada you went on buying American
coal%—A. No, sir; we did not.

Q. Did not American coal come in after that?—A. Yes; but it must be remem-

‘bered that some of this coal takes two or three months to reach its destination.

Q. But even after the situation eased up you continued taking coal under that
contract when you had the power to refuse it?—A. No; we did not take a pound of
coal unless we were obligated by contract to take it.

p Q. Your contract was of such a nature that you did not need to take the coal
unless you wanted to do so?—A. Where we had a contract that gave us a way out
we never took a pound of coal unless we were forced to do so.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. Were you forced, to take the coal after it was loaded and standing at its
destination %—A. Yes; we have to live up to our obligations.

By Mr. Martell :

Q. You have not explained why you continued to take American coal when you
had the power under you general contract, without violating your obligation, not to
take any more American coal when the Canadian coal situation eased up?—A. I do
not know what you mean by “ general contract”?

Q. You had a contraet to take coal as required at a certain price’?—A. “ e did
not have a contract of that nature.

Q. What was the nature of your contract?—A. As I say, we were buying qpot
coal; we bought spot coal as we needed it. We would buy a specific tonnage, perhaps

100 or 1,000 cars.

Q. Take the Y. & O. Coal Company?—A. It does not enter into this at all.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. You had stated contracts with certain companies in the United States whereby
_you could get a certain number of tons of coal at a certain price You also had the
right to take this coal as it was required, and if you did not require it you did not
take it?%—A. Wherever we had a contract of that kind we did not take one pound of
coal that we did not require.

By Mr. Chisholm :

Q. Are your contracts with the American companies the same as your contracts
with the Canadian companies with respect to deliveries?—A. They are now; they
were not then. :

By Mr. Martell :

Q. Why not?%—A. We have the same contract all over now.

Q. What was the difference between your contracts with the United States com-
panies and your contracts with the Canadian companies at that time?—A. Practlcally
no difference. .

By Mr. Macdonald: |

Q. Can you produce the contract with the Y. & O. Company%—A. I have not
brought it with me.

Q. Tt was understood you would bring it with you?—A. For 1920.

Q. Yes—A. (No answer).

Mr. MarTeLL: It seems to me there was diserimination against Canadian coal
companies.

By Mr. Macdonald.:

Q. There was a discussion here about contracts made for deliveries in 1921, 1922
and 1923. It was stated in evidence that there was a contract with the Y. & O. Com-
pany, and you have already told me you got 250,000 tons of coal in 1920%—A. Yes. ;

Q. Have you got that contract here?—A. No; I did not know it was required. ;

Q. You must have known it was required. I can turn to the record and show
that I asked you particularly to bring it?%—A. I will be glad to supply anything you
require.

Q. You have furnished me with a lot of documents relating to coal purchases in
1920-21, but you have not produced the Y. & O. contract for 1921?%—A. I did not
understand that you wanted that Y. & O. contract. I knew there was a great deal of
discussion about this bigger Y. & O. contract. ;

Q. You did not bring me the Y. & O. contract, that we have had all the discussion
about.—A. There is no objection to bringing it.

Q. I hope we won’t have any objection from Mr. Hanna.—A. I don’t know
whether there was any coal supplied under this contract or not.

Q. You had some dealings with the Anglo-Coal Company in Nova Scotia%—A.
Yes. !

Q. That was the coal company in which Mr. Douglas was interested ~—A. Yes, 1
think he was.

Q. You gave them a contract for 8,000 tons and they shipped you 6,819 tons,
over 2,000 tons more than they produced. Do you know where they got that coal %—
A.  No.

Q. Have you made any inquiries about it?—A. No, I made no inquiries about it.
I don’t recollect that at the present time.

Q. The Anglo-Coal Company according to the terms of that contract could not
have produced 4,706 tons of coal. They got a contract for 8,000 tons of coal and they
delivered 2,113 tons more than they produced. Do you know whether they went into
the market and bought it?%—A. I could not say. It was a case of us going into the
market and getting all the coal we could. :

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. That was the company that Mr. Muggah of Cape Breton was interested in‘’%—
A. Yes.

Q. You have not got that contract showing the Y. & O.——A. No.

Q. Have they any agent in Toronto?—A. No, not to my knowledge. We always
do ‘business with their people in Cleveland. Their vice-president comes over and
transacts the business in Toronto.

Q. You were doing business with that company a long while?—A. Yes.

Q. Who were the chief officers?—A. Mr. Robbins was president and Mr. Finlay
was vice-president. Those were the men we always transacted our business with.

Q. Are they Americans?—A. Yes.

Q. Are there any Canadians in it?—A. Not that I know of.

Q. You never had any discussion with any representatives of theirs in Toronto?
—A. Not that I know of.

Q. Who is the Standard Coal Company in Toronto?—A. That is a refail con-
cern in Toronto.

Q. Who has to do with that?—A. I think Mr. Marshall is president. -

Q. Did you ever buy any coal from them?—A. A little hard coal once or twice.

Q. No soft coal?—A. Not for a good many years. We might have bought black-
smith coal or something of that kind. , : |

Q. As agent for American mines?—A. Yes.

Q. Who were in that company?—A. The Standard Fuel.

Q. Yes—A. It is a Marshall family affair. I don’t know who the officers are
outside the president.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. Sometime ago you were asked a question with regard to trains leaving Win-
nipeg. As far as possible they-used western coal and you bought western coal for
them ?—A. Yes.

Q. That was the policy of your company?—A. Yes.

Q. Is that irrespective of price?—A. I would not go so far as to say that. We
always give a little preference in price to western coal.

Q. As far as possible all over Canada you take Canadian coal?—A. Yes.

Q. As far as possible?—A. Yes.

Q. Even though in some instances it may be a little higher in price?—A. We
frequently buy Canadian coal when it is possible to buy American coal cheaper.

Q. I notice here that you say that you could have got coal from Nova Seotia
for $9 a ton in the year 1920, that is if you had paid that extra dollar.

Myr. MacpoNaALD: $7.

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. And $2 freight?—A. Yes.
Q. Yet the same coal in the United States cost you in the same year anywhere
from $6.95 to $10.75%—A. Yes, but we could not get Canadian: coal.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. Mr. Carvell says you could. You agree he told you you could?—A. Yes, but
we could not get it.

Q. Notwithstanding what Mr, Carvell said?—A. Mr. Carvell is no doubt sincere
in his statement. We could not get the coal.

Q. Would it be possible for the Nova Scotia mines to supply you altogether if
the price was right? Would it be good economy to buy that coal?’—A. We would
certainly buy it if we could buy it as cheap as American coal, but I don’t think there
is a district in Canada where they can compete.

Q. That would be in Ontario %—A. Ontario and the West as far as Winnipeg.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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By Mr. Martell:

Q. T don’t think anyone is contending eastern coal should go west of Fort W&l-
liam, but our contention is that Nova Scotia coal should be used as far as Montreal.
It would be cheaper and it would practically compare favourably with the price of
American coal on the line running to Ontario east. Under normal conditions it
would be cheaper to use Nova Scotia coal in Miontreal. Did you ever send American
coal on the I.C.R.?—A. There was a lot of American coal sent down there before
the Canadian Northern and the Canadian Government vame together.

Q. At what time?—A. That was during the war years.

Q. Not prior to 1914 and 1911%—A. No, I don’t think so, but the point I want
to make is that the war yeéars were abnormal.

Q. Don’t you think it would be in the interest of the railways to buy Maritime
coal even if it were a little higher on account of the traffic it would produce —A. Az
1 say, we always give the preference, even at a little more, to Canadian coal.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. What is the quality of the coal as far as steam ecapacity is concerned?—A.
There is good and bad coal in all districts. I think it would average up.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. I think after having devoted some time to this matter I am entitled to a little
courtesy.
The CHamMan: I don’t think there is any desire to show anything but perfect
courtesy. I was going to make a suggestion that Mr. Macdonald be allowed to con-
tinue.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. Before you start I would draw Mr. Vaughan’s attention to page 86 of his
evidence, taken on June 7, as follows (reads):
“The CHamrMaAN: Although a contrary impression may have been given, Mr.

Vaughan says that the contract under discussion refers to deliveries subsequent to

the item we are discussing. He says there were other contracts with the Y. & O.
Company, either by correspondence or formal documents, and that these contracts
are the ones to which the Auditor General’s Report has reference. I am going to
ask Mr. Hanna whether he will produce before us the contracts with the Y. & O.

under which the purchases of coal represented by the entries on page W-189 in the

Auditor General’s Report were made, or any other company.

“ Mr. Hax~a: There is not the slightest objection to producing any bit of paper
or contract that we have covered by that reference.

“ Mr. MacponarLp: That is all we want.

“ Mr. Haxna: The point I want to impress is this: They represent telegrams,
verbal communications and some contracts. As you all know in 1920 it was not a
question so much of making contracts as it was to procure coal at any price to carry
on our operations. There is no reason in the world why we should not tell you all
about that item.

“The CuairMAN: Then we are all at one.” You heard that?—A. I heard it, but
I must say that perhaps I am at fault, but when the discussion was over the last
time there were certain questions raised and I asked what information was wanted.
There was freight of course referred to all through here.

Q. You know very well the erux of the question was the question of the produe-
tion of the Y. & O. contract for a long term and that was disposed of by it being
understood you were to produce the contraet of the Y. & O. for 1920, which you have
not done.—A. All I can say is that when this matter was brought up—and I thought

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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this supplemented all the discussions before the Committee—I ‘was hoping to get a
reply stating what was wanted.

Q. You must have known that. Getting back now for a moment to another
question, to this question of American coal supplied in 1920, I find here that on
December 10, 1920, you wrote Mr. Carvell as follows: “ We have sufficient American
coal coming in to take care of our requirements from now until April, between Mount
Joli and Drummondyville. We estimate our requirements at Campbellton and east
between now and the 1st of April at 172,000 tons.” So that you were sending
American coal as far east as Mount Joli when the last letter showed Mr. Carvell
intimated to you you could get all the Nova Scotia coal you wanted. You do not
produce those contracts and let us know what your obligations were. You say while

- you always take care of all the Canadian companies east and west, limiting your

right to put the thing in such position to take advantage of the coal as you wanted
it—you tied yourself up with the Y. & O. to take further coal from them.—A. This
contract we have now in Canada is similar to what most of the railways have in
the United States with all the mining companies

Q. You therefore used American coal as far east as Mount Joli in 1920 and 192 L.
How much of that did you store there?%—A. I cannot tell you the proportion of
American and Nova Scotia coal stored at Mount Joli. The reason that was sent down
there was because we could not get Dominion coal up to Quebec by water.

By Mr. Martell: )
Q. Had you your own railways?—A. Yes, but we could not get the coal.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. But 1920 and 1921, you will agree with me that you had a conversation with
Mr. Carvell, in which he intimated to you that if you had chosen to pay a certain
price for Nova Scotia coal you could get it. You did not arrange to pay that price?
—A. We had sufficient coal under contract. We set the price to take care of our
requirements. They told us they could not give us any more coal regardless of the
price.

Q. That is absolutely in contradiction to Mr. Carvell’s letter, or any statements
to you. I want to know can you produce to me a single contract that you made in
1920 whereby you were bound to take American coal after December, 1920, whether
you wanted to take it or not. Can you produce a single contract?—A. The American
contract at that time— |

Q. Can you produce any contract. You have given me a whole lot of contracts
here. There is nothing of that kind in them. Can you produce any contract that
binds you?—A. Our contract bound us to a specific tonnage.

Q. You do not produce the documents so we can see what you really did. We
will interpret the contract. , We want your document. Can you produce here now
or have you in your possession mow a single contract you made in 1920-21.whicn
compelled you to continue taking coal from December to April, 1921, and send it
down as far east as Mount Joli when you could have got Canadian coal which you
would pay the same price for?—A. It is very doubtful whether it went to Mount
Joli at that time.

Q. Very doubtful, when you wrote to the Chief Commissioner at that time?—
A. That simply goes to prove the difficulty we had getting coal and we used Mr.
Carvell’s influence to get all the Canadian coal we could.

Q. You told me that letter was written in December, 1920. At that time your
coal difficulties were over. Coal was rushing in from all quarters.—A. Certainly.

Q. And you took American coal?—A. We took Nova Scotia coal to the extent of
our contracts that year.

Q. When did you take it? I thought your complaint was you could not get it.
—A. We could not get it when we wanted it, but we got it when we did not want it.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. You.have a peculiar system of making your contracts in regard to coal. Here

we are at the end of June. Why don’t you let your contracts in the winter time so
that the coal may move?—A. Because that is a good time to let coal contracts.

Q. Why don’t you let it in April%—A. We do let it in April. This is an abnor-

mal year. The coal companies have only in the last ten days given us quotations.
Q. You know you fix the price by virtue of your position, and in regard to the

operation of this railway, say for the last 20 years, that the price to be paid for the
coal you purchased east was ultimately fixed by yourself. It was not controlled by the

coal company.—A. It was controlled absolutely.

Q. I want to know why with the Nova Scotia coal miners walking the streets you
would not take coal from them instead of taking American coal?—A. We have been
taking it right along to the extent of our requirements.

Q. Don’t you arrange to take any stock in advance?—A. I say we have four
month’s stock now on hand. i '

Q. Where is your stpck now —A. It ic distributed all over from Chaudiere eaét.'

Q. What is the total amount of it?—A. I think I said it was 300,000 tons.

Q. This 300,000 tons in the east only relates to the coal in store. How much’ have.
yvou got in the west or in the centre?—A. At the end of May we had for the system
approximately a million tons of coal. :

Q. At the end of May?—A. Yes.

Q. A million tons?—A. Yes.

Q. And you had bought short during the year so far as the east was concerned,
200,000 tons?—A. Yes.

Q. So vou must have on hand as a result of your 1920-1921 purchases a very short
stock of coal if you had a million tons%—A. We would not exceed three month’s
supply.

Q. TIs that three months’ supply —A. Under normal conditions, yes. It is a little
more than three months’ supply. Tt would be about three and a half months.

Q. You have not got that statement for 1920-1921 even?—A. No, I have not got
1t

Q. Tt is very singular that you take exception to be asked about 1921-1922, when
vou know the information about 1920 that is distinctly relevant to this item, that
is the thing you don’t have—A. It is not always possible to see the trend of an
inquiry.

Q. You have information about 1921-22 and you have not got it about 1920%—
A. No, T don’t think T have. This is all 1921-22. As T say, I will be glad to give
the stock on hand at each place. 2

Q. You don’t want this examination t> go on until next summer.

The Cramman: Would it be possible for Mr. Vaughan to telegraph for these
papers when we go to lunch and have these papers here tomorrow. Some one in your
office could pick them out?—A. The unfortunate part is that Mr. Graburn is in
Winnipeg at the present time. These are on file in his office.

Mr. Lewis: I just want to ask ‘a question. :

Mr. Macponarp: Tet me finish my examination. T am right at the crucial point.

Mr. Lewis: You have been at it a long time.

Mr. Macpoxarp: If you had taken as much time to study these public documents
you would not be so fresh about this affair.

The Cuamrman: T don’t like that language used by one member to another.

Mr. MacpoNarLp: I examined this witness. If honourable gentlemen want fo.
interrupt a member speaking in the House. it can be done with his consent.

The CrAmMAN: Just take note of what you want, Mr Lewis.
[¥Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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‘ Mr Macpoxarp: I want to settle about these documents. I understood you to say,
" . Chairman, that Mr. Vaughan would ptone or wire to his office in Toronto and he
uld get the information by phone as to the quantity of coal that was in stock on
March 31st, 1921. He can get it by phone but I want him to get the contracts with
. the Y. & O. company which were made in 1920-21 and T hope there will be no mistake
" about it this time. ;

‘The CrARMAN: Don’t you want some supply of coal.
Wirness: Coal in stock March 31.

By Mr. Macdonald: :

L3 Q. There has been given me a statement of the fuel bill rendered by the Canadian
' Northern Railway System. I find here that there were 33,911 tons of coal which was
' charged to the Canadian Government Railway at $12 a ton for delivery at Hervey
. Junction and the price was f.o.b. Montreal $12. Where did that coal come from to
gt; Montreal “—A. That would come from the United States.

Q. How did you bill it from Montreal at $12 a ton?—A. I don’t just remember
that item. I don’t remember if I have a copy of that bill here or not. That was
for April, was it not? :

Q. That was in November, 1920. Bill No. 631, coal for Hervey Junction, $12,
Montreal; freight, $40,878; another item of freight $18,744.—A. If that coal were
billed at $12 Montreal I have not got a copy of that now. It would move over the
ey NR {rom Montreal to Hervey Junction.

v Q. Why was it billed to Montreal? You had no stock pile in Montreal—A.
. The eoal must have been re-consigned from Hervey Junction to Montreal.

Q. You have no stock pile in Montreal?—A. No. We have one at Longue Pointe.

Q. I want to call your attention to January, 1921, 24,221 tons at $12 a ton billed
from Moentreal to Transcona Bridge on which there is a charge of freight of $47,577
If that coal was billed from Montreal to this point east, why does the Canadian
Northern Railway send a bill to the Canadian Government east. Why is not the bill
sent directly to the Canadian Government railways east?—A. T don’t get that?

Q. We understood from Mr. Graburn at the last examination that the $12 coal
came largely from the stock pile?—A. Yes.

Q. Here are two items, most important items, amounting to 58,000 tons of coal
that were billed out from Montreal in December and January, 1920-21, for points
along the Transcontinental east. I want to know first as to why that coal was billed
from Montreal?—A. The reason it would be billed from Montreal—

Q. It did not come from any stock pile?—A. I don’t remember that. I would
just like to see that document for a minute. I don’t remember that. If it were billed

t $12 Montreal, that would be the average price on tracks at Montreal and these
L were cars that were diverted to Hervey Junction. That is the only way I can account
| for that.

Q Can you give me the invoice from the people from whom you got the coal’—
- A. Yes, I can do that.

Q. I would like to know why if coal was purchased directly from the United
. States, as apparently that was, and brought to Montreal and then sent to those points,
why it was not charged up directly in the Public Accounts to the parties for whom
it was purchased, the same as you do from the Nova Scotia Coal Company.—A. The
only way I can explain that is this would be coal that came in at Montreal, a number
of cars of coal.

Q. There are 60,000 tons of coal.—A. It would be sent on to Hervey Junction
for unloading.

Q. Here is 58,000 tons of coal?—A. Yes.

Q. Within a period of a few weeks of each other, which are charged here at $12
a ton, was shipped through Montreal, against which you charge freight’—A. Yes.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. Now that coal did not come from any stock pile as Mr. Vaughan told us the
other day here—A. You mean Mr. Graburn told you.

Q. Mr. Graburn told us the other day that this high priced coal was coal that
* came from the stock pile. I find from the statement it did not come from any stock
pile but that 58,000 tons of it came in, that very late in the year, at the time the
correspondence shows, 'you could have got coal from Nova Scotia. I want to ecall
your attention to the fact that in September, 1920, 15,000-16,000 approximately tons
of coal at $12 appears in this statement as having been sent to Hervey Junction and
the price is said to be f.0.h. Montreal—A. Yes. -

Q. And freight amounting to $27,000 is charged?—A. Yes. . .

Q That did not come from any stock pile.—A. Of course there was coal coming
all the time. Perhaps a hundred, two hundred, three hundred, four hundred or five
hundred cars cof it.

Q. That did not come from any stock pile—A. It is not likely it would.

Q. You have no stock pile in Montreal. Therefore it could not come from it.—
A. That might have been consigned to Longue Pointe originally and might have been
diverted.

Q. You and your officials said the other day it came from your stock pile and the
reason for this cost was because you took the average price of what the coal at the
stock pile was. I find there was a very anomalous situation that 73,000 tons of
$12 coal was charged here as against the Canadian Government Railways, that being
tlie price at Monireal f.o.b. cars, no stock pile business about it, and I want to know
where you got the coal and from whom you got it, too.—A. We can trace back where
it came from. ]

Q. You have given me a statement here. Here is an invoice. You say here
“bill No. so-and-so, T have not got it.”—A. The copies of all the bills are in the Office
of the Auditor General.

Q. Those were simply bills which the Canadian Northern Railway made out to
the Canadian Government Railway but give no information. That is what this is a
copy of and T want to know where you got—and I want you to remember.that this is
no child’s play—that we propose to find out these things. Mr. Graburn told us it
came from the stock pile and we find it never came from the stock pile at all%—A. You
can appreciate in dealing with three or four million tons a year, when it is passed and
gone, every item cannot be remembered.

Q. Let us see what the situation is. $12 a ton f.o.b. is an abnormal price at any
time. It was an abnormal price in 1921, in January, when you say the coal was piled
in. You say you could have got all the coal you wanted in Nova Scotia at $7 a ton —

A. T wont recede from the position I have taken, that we took every pound of the

coal we could get from Nova Scotia.

Q. Notwithstanding what Mr. Carvell says%—A. Yes, I w111 not recede from that
po&ltl(m

Q. Notwithstanding that you were buying $12 coal you cannot tell us who you
got it from.

The CrHARMAN: Mr. Vaughan will, T understand, give us for to-morrow if he
possibly can, by getting in touch with his office in Toronto, the particulars of this
shipment of 75,000 odd tons of coal which did not come from ghe stock pile but which
cost $12 a ton f.o.b. Montreal. Now I think Mr. Lewis is,,waiting patiently.

Mr. MascponaLp: ‘There is just one thing I want to” say further, those are the
only items that show $12 coal, those three items.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. Mr. Vaughan said he will not recede from the position that he took all the
coal he could get from Nova Scotia?—A. Yes.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. In answer to Mr. Macdonald’s question you said that they told you that they
could not deliver any more coal. Was it in a telegraphic form? \ %
Mr. MacpoNaLp: Who is “ they ”? % ‘

By Mr. Lewis: i
Q. The people in Nova Scotia. Have you got any written correspondence to *
that effect that they could not supply you with it?—A. Yes. I would like to say Mr.
Graburn made several trips and interviewed each mine individually in the Maritime
Provinces to see if we could not get more coal. - .
Q. Have you any written evidence to that effect?

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. The evidence of Mr. Carvell is to the contrary. You concede you could get
all the coal you wanted in Nova Scotia in December, 1921, until April?—A. Yes, we
could have got all the coal we needed.

Q. Instead of that you took American coal and the reason you say you did it was
because you were tied up with contracts?—A. We took delivery of the spot coal we
had obligated ourselves to buy. They were small orders. They were not contract. A
good many of them were given over the phone and were confirmed by an order.

By Mr. Lewis:
Q. You have repeatedly said after November you never entered into any more
contracts here?—A. Yes.

Q. And you took the coal you had under contract that you were obliged to take?
——A. Yes. '

By Mr. Thurston: X
Q. At what time previous was this spot coal bought%—A. There was some bought
in November.
Q. How long before that?—A. It was bought all during the year.
By Mr. Macdonald: j
Q. Don’t you think you had better get the contract and then we will know. Was
this coal by contract%—A. We place an order for so many hundred tons of coal.
By Mr. Lewis:
Q. Can you put in evidence that they could not supply you any more coal?—
A. (No answer).
By Mr., Macdonald:
Q. He told us in November he could get all he wanted.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. I mean at the time of the coal shortage?—A. Tf there is any doubt, T would
suggest that you get the Dominion Coal Company officials to see what they have to
say. ;

By Mr. Macdonald:

Q. I know a]l- the. smaller coal companies, the Springhill Company, the Maritime
Company cou'ld give it to you?—A. Not until the fall. You cannot run a railroad
on a shoe string and keep your supply running from day to day.

By Mr. Macdonald :

GL Apd have a surplus so. big that you cannot buy any coal%—A. We did not
have as big a surplus as our neighbours.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. It was s0 big a surplus that you had 230,000 tons in the next year and when
people are starving in the coal mines you eannot take any from them.—A. It was on
account of the consumption of the coal. hig b7 y
; Q. Your falling off was due to the fact that you took 230,000 tons less but you.'
still had a surplus?—A. We had a surplus for about three months, which is a normal
surplus. 3 0
Q. You said the other day you spoke to the stenographer and you told him he
was incorrect in certain things.—A. Yes. I said the stenographer came to me and
said he did not get down all the evidence, there were so many people talking all at
onee. :

Q. You asked him to correct certain things?
anything.

Q. Here is the stenographer who came to me and said there was no such inter-
view as you stated. I would like to have him make a statement.—A. I don’t see the
stenographer. :

Q. Mr. Holland, you heard what Mr. Vaughan said the other day to the Commit-
tee, did you not?—A. Yes, I heard it.

Q. And you came to me about the matter ?—A. Yes. L5

Q. What did he say? Did you have any interview with him at all?—A. T did,
after the first meeting, but not any after that. I had no further conversation with
Mr. Vaughan. Right after the—

Mr. Vavenax: That is quite so.

Q. What was the conversation?

Mr. Horraxp: I said to Mr. Vaughan there had been a good deal of confusion at
gsome points and that some thing might have been omitted and I asked him if he
would eare to read over the report and he did not seem to be disposed to do it then;
and T said, “if possible, I will send it to Toronto to you,” but when I consulted Mr.
Mathews, he said no, it was not the practice to send away a report, so I turned in the
report as it was.

Wirxess: That is exactly what transpired.

Q. We will find exactly what you said about that, Mr. Vaughan. We will find
what vou said about it and we will direct your attention to it later in regard to
certain corrections of certain statements. N :

The Cuamman: Mr. Lewis, have you any questions to ask? Any other persons
any other questions to ask? It seems to me we might continue Mr. Vaughan’s
examination to-morrow at 11 o’clock. I have a meeting at the Banking and Commerce
Committee at 11.

Mr. MacpoNaLD: Say 12 o’clock.

Wirngss: 1 was going to say in connection with the $12 coal that I'will give
any explanation I can. It was handled in detail by Mr. Graburn, who won’t be home
until early next week. I will be, glad to give it. S

By Mr. Lew:s:

Q. Can you get that correspondence in regard to what those coal .mines said to
you about not being able to get any more coal?—A. I will try to get all the corre-
spondence.

Mr, Macpoxap: I have no desire to inconvenience Mr. Vaughan about this thing
at all. I want to get through the examination.

The CuamrMan: I think what I suggest will suit Mr. Vaughan as well as having
it postponed.

Wrrness: I am just as anxious to get cleaned up as you gentlemen are.

The CuAmMAN: I think perhaps the suggestion I made of Mr. Vaughan getting
in touch with his office would be a good one. There are two matters which have been

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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iiro‘ught t0 my atten.tlcm which I woﬁld be glad to have you genﬂlemen comsider. The
Clerk of the House wrote me a letter some months ago in which he said that there
~ were 800 newspapers supplied to the Reading Room. A great many of these news-
_papers are weeklies and of little general interest at all, and that he has been asked to
g put further newspapers on the subseription list of the Reading Room. He had refused
to do so because he thought in the present conditions of the country’s finances it would
be a wrong thing to do, and he draws my attention to this and asks me whether it
would be possible to appoint a small sub-committee to consider the matter.
~ Mr. Lewis: Of course, I am not speaking about my own constituency. There is
~ only one from my own constituency and even though it is only a tri-weekly news-
paper, I think I would like sometimes to read the news but some people might go
‘to the extreme in that. So far as my constltuency is concerned, it covers about 100
miles by 70, and there is only a small newspaper covering the whole county.
Mr. TuurstoN : The majority of the people here attending Parliament buy their
- own papers here. What is the sense of a lot of these things coming here?
The CuamMAN: That is what T want the opinion of the Committee on thls :
. morning.
g Mr. Tnurstox: As far as these weekly papers are concerned, in our own county
there are five or six.
'y * Mpr. Macpovarp: I think we need to economize, but after all is said and done, my
! experience in Parliament is that we like to look at a local paper from our own constitu-
encies. I have only two, one east and one west. You get really more information
~about what is going on at home, and it is very important. As to the question of
" sending Hansard, I notice one paper in my riding put up a great complaint and stated
they had not got a copy of Hansard from the time the House opened.
Mr. Lewis: I send them myself.
Mr. Cuseorym: I don’t think that you really send those reports to newspapers,
L because I know the editor of a newspaper published in my own county wrote to me for
bluebooks and this, that and the other thing, and complained bitterly that they could
not get Hansard, and so I think there is a rule for some class that is not enjoyed by -
_ others. T think a general look into the whole question would be a good thing.

'\ The CuamMan: We will take this matter up at the next session.

! The Committee adjourned until Thursday, June 22nd, at 12 o’clock.

CommirTEE Room 425,
House or CoMMONS,

THURSDAY, June 22, 1922.

e

/
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oA The Select Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 12 o’clock noon, Mr.
_ A. R. McMaster, the Chairman, presiding.

The Committee proceeded to the further consideration of “a payment of
$2,429,984.08 to the Canadian Northern Railway System in connection with coal,
errors in calculation, freight and duty, as set out at page W-189, Volume 3, Report of
Auditor General for fiscal year ended March 31, 1921.”

‘The CHAmRMAN:. Mr. Maedonald, when we adjourned yesterday I asked Mr.
Vaughan to get in touch with his office in Toronto and secure information on various
matters to present to us to-day.

- Mr. MewBurN: Could we not deal with the report on the other matter first?

g The CuaRMAN: T showed to Mr. Vein the suggested report drafter by Mr. Guthrie,
L and he said there were a couple of matters which had not yet been fully completed.
. Mr. Guthrie disagrees with him and says it is all completed.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Mr. GurariE: We were waiting for General MacBrien to put in a couple of state-
ments. ‘

Mr. Mewsurx: Is Col. Vien back?

The CHAIRMAN : Yes, but he could not be here this mornmg T took the matter
up with him this morning.

Mr. Lewis: Perhaps the Committee could meet again.

Mr. Gurarie: I think you should intimate to Col. Vien that we are going to meet
for his convenience, and also request him to see that General MacBrien attends.

The CrAmrMAN: If it is agreeable to the Committee, we can meet at 10.30 o’clock
to-morrow morning.

R. C. VAUGHAN recalled.

By Mr. Macdonald : R

Q. You were to bring some information to the Committee this morning. Have

you got it?—A. Yes; I think I have it all. Here is the Y. & O. contract for the year
1920. i

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. Were you able to get the matters for which I asked?—A. Do you refer to the
various letters which were mentioned ?

Q. Yes?—A. Yes; I have some of them here.

Q. You say you have brought the papers referring to the fact that the Dominion
(Coal Company and other companies said they could not supply you with any more
coal in 1920?%—A. Yes.

Q. Could you read an extract

Mr. Macpoxarp: If we are going into that, I would like an opportunity of reading
these letters.

The CramrMAN: You had better put them in, Mr. Lewis.

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. What business considerations are involved in entering into coal contracts?—
A. The only consideration is to buy the coal for the railway at the lowest possible
price, having regard to the point of delivery.

Q. The lowest possible price is one consideration?—A. Yes.

Q. Is quality a consideration?—A. Yes.

Q. And proximity ~—A. Yes; all those things are carefully considered.

Q. A matter came up yesterday which I would like to speak about for a moment.
In regard to the purchase of coal from the United States, it is ‘mecessary for you to
pay out cash for freight on some one else’s railway ?—A. Yes.

Q. And also a tariff revenue?—A. Duty. Yes.

Q. Would it not be considered a good business principle to pay that extra, even
on your own road where you are utilizing your own services, rather than pay actual
cash?%—A. The whole question is carefully considered. Of course the Government
gets the 53 cents duty that we pay.

Q. There is 53 cents duty on every ton?—A. Yes.

Q. Which would amount to a considerable sum on all the coal you get?—A. Yes.

Q. That is a cash outlay?—A. Yes.

Q. You must also pay out for freight on other Canadian lines than your own?—
A. Yes.

Q. Would it not be cheaper even if you paid the same amount of money or a
little more on your own line and utilized its services?—A. No; because in working
out the price of coal we always figure what it would cost that railway to haul the coal
to a common point such as Port Arthur or Fort Wllham

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan]
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Q. You have no other considerations except quality, price and proximity?—A.
None whatever. , )

Q. So your contracts with all companies are based upon an economic business
arrangement ¢—A. Absolutely.
- Mr. MacpoNatp: The witness has handed me two orders and accompanying
letters, which I would like to put in.

The CHARMAN: Yes.

CANADIAN NATIONAL RAILWAYS

; FUEL DEPARTMENT
Order G.F.A. No. 143. {
s ! ToronNTo, Canada, April 6, 1920.
YouvcaHIOGHENY & OHio Coan Co.,
Leader-News Bldg.,
Cleveland, Ohio.

Please enter order from the Canadian National Railways for the fol-
lowing :— '
100,000 tons
Run-of-mine coal.

Price, $3.25 N.T. for the No. 8, f.o.b.
3.50 N.T. for Amsterdam.

Consign to

Via

Remarks.—Payable in U.S. funds. Shipping instructions to be furnished
by Mr. C. E. Jones, fuel agent, Toronto. ‘

Invoices (and customs invoices when required) to be rendered in dupli-

cate against the Canadian National Railways, and sent to C. E. Jones, fuel
agent, Toronto.

CANADIAN NATIONAL RAILWAYS

* FUEL DEPARTMENT
Order G.F.A. No. 142.
ToroxTo, Canada, April 6, 1920,
YoucHiocHENY & Omio Coar Co.,
Leader-News Bldg.,
Cleveland, O.

Please enter order from the Canadian National Railways for the fol-

lowing :—
300,000 tons
3 No. 8 coal.

Price, $4.83 f.o.b. vessel lake Erie.

Consign to

Via

Remarks.—Payable in U.S. funds. Shipping instructions to be furnisked
l())y H. T. Rawlings, lake forwarding agent, 1340 Rockefeller Bldg., Cleveland,

hio.
Invoices (and customs invoices when required) to be rendered in dupli-

cate against the Canadian National Railways, and sent to H. T. Rawlings,
Cleveland.

(Sgd.) A. L. GRABURN,
General Fuel Agent.
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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THE YOUGHIOGHENY AND OHIO COAL COMPANY
Miners and Shippers of
YoucniocHENY Gas, PirrspurGH STeAM AND PrrrssureH No, 8 CoAL
GENERAL Orrices, LeapER-NEWS BLpe., ‘

CreveLanp, O., April 15, 1920.
Sales Department. d 3
Mr. A. L. Grasury, G.F.A.,

(Canadian National Railways,

Toronto, Ont., Canada.

Dear Smk.—AIll quotations, orders, contracts and sales are subject to car
supply, strikes, accidents and causes beyond our control.

leferring to your favour of the 6th inst.. enclosing your orders GFA-142
and 143, we note that you specify the maximum tonnage on these orders and
say nothing about the minimums, although you state in your letter that you
have shown the minimum quantities. The writer’s understanding when he
saw Mr. Vaughan and yourself in Toronto was that we were to furnish a
minimum of 250,000 tons and a maximum of 300,000 tons by water and a
minimum of 75,000 tons and a maximum of 100,000 tons of all rail coal, the
option to be with us as to whether or not the, minimam or maximum amounts
would be shipped. We, therefore, feel this should be definitely understood
between us. :

We further note that you have specified on the water coal an f.o.b. vessel
price of $4.83: if the order stands in thi€ manmer it should be understood
between us that this is based on the present rate of $1.33 on No. 8 coal, which
rate includes both the freight rate and the handling charge from ecar into
vessel. The indications are that the handling charge will probably be inereased
this year commencing the early part of the season and later in the season in all
probability the freight rate will advance. We would, therefore, like to have
it understood that this f.o.b. vessel price is based on the rates as they exist at
pregent.

[t should also be further understood that the shipment of the tonnage
contracted for is subject to our usual conditions as to car supply, strikes,
accidents or other contingencies beyond our control.

While we appreciate that Mr. Vaughan and yourself understand all these
conditions, yet we feel it would be better to have them properly reduced to
writing so that no misunderstandings may arise.in the future. We are, there-
fore, submitting for your consideration a letter which we think will cover
the situation and if you find thie satisfactory, if you will accept same on the
part of your company it will be appreciated. We have dated same as of
April 6, which is the date of the confirmation of our agreement.

Very truly yours,

THE YOUGHIOGHENY & OHIO COAL CO.,
By H. L. FiNpLaAy,
Vice-President.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]




121

g bt N R April 6, 1920.
- Mr. A. L. GraBury, G.F.A., 7 hit g
Canadian National Railways,
' Toronto, Ont., Canada.

DEAR S, —This will confirm agreement entered into between your Mr.
Graburn and the writer, whereby we agree to sell and deliver and you agree
- to purchase, accept and pay for the coal heremafter specified upon the terms and
* conditions hereinafter set forth. -

Two hundred and fifty thousand tons to 300,000 tons of P1tts“ourgh No. 8
2 lump coal for shipment via water during the season of navigation 1920. .

Seventy-five thousand to 100,000 tons of either Pittsburgh No. 8 or Amster-
dam. Mine Run coal to be shipped via all rail between April 1, 1920 and March
31, 1921.

Price on the water coal to be $4.83 per net ton f.0.b. vessel, Lake Erie
ports, it being understood that this price is based on the present freight rate
of $1.83 per.net ton which is made up, as follows: freight $1.27, handling from

_ ear into vessel 6 cents. If there is any change in either the freight or handling
charges the price will be adjusted accordingly.

Price on the all rail coal is to be $3.25 per net ton for No. 8 Mine Run
and $3.50 per net ton for Amsterdam Mine Run.

All remittances are to be in United States funds at pm in Cleveland, Ohio.
Payments for water coal shall be made within sixty days from date of vessel
bill of lading and on the all rail coal by the 25th of each month for preceding
month’s shipments.

. On the water coal bill of lading weights shall govern all settlements and on
the all rail coal the actual railroad weights of the initial carrier at its scales
nearest the point of shipment shall govern all settlements.

The above prices are based on the present rate of miners’ wages in effect at
the mines from which the coal is to be shipped and will advance or decline the
amount of any advance or decline in such rates on all shipments made after the
same takes effect. Your company is to'pay all taxes or assessments which may
be levied by any duly constituted governmental authority on the mining or
shipping of the coal herein sold and to reimburse us, if it ie considered advis-
able for the convenience of handling of this coal for us to pay same.

If we are prevented from shipping or you.are prevented from receiving any
portion of the coal herein specified by reason of strikes, labour troubles, acei-
dents or other causes beyond the reasonable control of either of us, each shall be
excused from such performance during the continuance of such hindrances.

If the above agrees with your understanding of our arrangement your
acceptance of same is to constitute a binding contract between us.

Very truly yours.

THE YOUGHIOGHENY & OHIO COAL COMPANY.
(Sgd.) By H. L. FixpLAY,

Vice-President.

Accepted :
By THE CANADIAN NATIONAL RAILWAYS.

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. According to this contract, you ordered 400,000 tons of coal%—A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell me the amount delivered by this particular company that year #—

A. Between 225,000 and 250.000: approximately 250,000,

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. And the balance of the 1,000,000 odd tons purchased from the United States
was purchased from other companies?—A. Yes.

Q. Under similar contracts?—A. Yes. .

Q. How many mines have the Youghiogheny & Ohio Coal Company ?—A. They"
have a great many, but I could not tell you the number offhand; they have numerous =
mines in various fields.

Q. Some in Ohio and some in Pennsylvania’?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you a list of the other companies from whom you purchased?—A. Yes.
Was not that given before?

Q. Not in that year.

The CuARMAN: That is the year ending March 31, 19212

Mr. MacpoNALD: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, may I look over the letters to which reference has
been made while Mr. Macdonald is conducting his examination? .

The CHAmRMAN: Certainly.

Wirness: (Handing letters to Mr. Lewis) There are 'some of them. I got the
office on the phone two -or three times yesterday, and they said there were one or
two others which they could not find. (Documents not filed).

By Mr. Macdonald :

Q. This contract dated October 6, 1920, is with the Buffalo & Susquehanna Coal
& Coke Company, 1538 Marine Trust Bldg., Buffalo, N.Y., for 100 cars Run of Mine
-coal at $5 per net ton f.o.b. mines?%—A. Yes.

Q. Then F. J. McGuinness, Buffalo, N.Y., October 22, 1920, 500 cars Run of
Mine No. 8 coal at $6.25 per net ton f.o.b. mines; Warren Collieries Limited, Toronto,
April 20, 1920, 50,000 tons of Run of Mine coal at $3.80 per net ton f.o.b. mines; W.
H. Bradford & Company, Philadelphia, Pa., March 31, 1920, 40,000 tons Run of Mine
coal at $3.40 per net ton f.o.b. mines; Buffalo & Susquehanna Coal & Coke Company,
Buffalo, N.Y., July 26, 1920, 100 cars Run of Mine coal at $5 per net ton f.o.b.
mines; W. A. Marshall Company, New York City, N.Y., May 14, 1920, 50 cars of spot
coal at $6.15 per ton; Empire Coal Company, Limited, Montreal, Que., May 14, 1920,
50,000 tons Pittsburg No. 8% coal at $5.28 per net ton f.o.b. Vessel Lake Erie?—A. Yes.

Q. May 10, 1920, C. W. Young, Philadelphia, 100,000 tons run of mine ecoal
$4.25; Pittsburg Bessemer Coal Company, March 31, 1920, 100 cars of coal $3.50;
George Hall Coal Company of Canada, March 26, 1920, 100,000 tons run of mine
coal at $3.60 per ton; Dunlop Coal Company, December 6, 1920, 25,000 tons of coal,
$4.20 per net ton; Prudential Coal Company, November 5, 1920, 100 cars run of
mine coal, $5.25 per net ton; Dunlop Coal Company, October 28, 1920, 500 ecars
coal, 100 tons at $6, 300 at $6.25, 100 to apply on completion of contract $3.85 per
ton; Pittsburg Shawmut Coal Company, 100 cars run of mine coal, price not to
exceed $7.75 per met ton, June 18, 1920; July Tth, William MeGill Company, 50 cars
run of mine coal, $10.80 per ton. Those prices are all payable in American funds,
Mr. Vaughan, T see. I am not putting that in. They are all payable in American
funds?—A. Yes. They are all payable in American funds.

Q. Now the next thing T asked you was to get me the quantity of coal remaining
in stock March 31, 1921.—A. I have that here. I have not had it typewritten, but
it is all there for each section.

Q. Coal on hand March 31, 1921: Eastern section, 259,427 tons; Central section,
148,758 tons; Western section, 332,867 tons; dock 68,340, making a total of 809,392
tons in stock March 31, 1921.—A. Yes. I probably should explain there, Mr. Macdon-
ald, a good deal of that coal in the north has to be taken in during the summer to be
carried over during the winter to meet our requirements.

Q. I understand that. Mr. Vaughan, I sent you a note asking you to give me
the prices in 1922 of those?—A. Yes. I would prefer, Mr. Macdonald, if you did

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan] >
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: not ask me for that just at this stage, for this reason: we are negotiating now with

the coal companies to settle up what is to be paid on this award from January 1,
1920, and we are negotiating for our 1922 coal prices, but we have not made our
definite arrangements with them for these awards, as it is going to be applied back
to the 1st of January.

Q. Still you had contracts for that all made in March and April last year?—
A. We had contracts made effective as from the 1st of April, 1921.

" Q. At fixed prices?—A. At fixed prices.

Q. I don’t see how that would affect the question of what you would have to pay
them if the price was fixed. What differerice would it make if the price was fixed?—
A. Tt would all be adjusted on about the same basis. I thought on account of us
negotiating for the 1922 contracts, you could perhaps wait a little while to get our
negotiations ecompleted before the statement was put in.

Q. Can you tell me what the maximum price was?—A. Yes, it was for $6.35.

Q. Was that for the largest quantity —A. That was for the largest quantity.

Q. What was the minimum price?—A. T think the minimum price was about

The CrarRMAN: I don’t want to limit this. )

Sir Hexry Dravron: I am just waiting to see how far in our idea to assist the
business management of the railway this is going. We recognize we are in the
minority.

The CuARMAN: T have ruled and as a matter of fact I dont think that Mr. Mac-
donald is anxious to press this matter too far. I have ruled that anything that is in
the Auditor General’s report can be looked into and scrutinized right to the bottom.
I would rule, if I have to rule, but I have not been asked to rule yet, but if I am
asked to rule I will rule that unless the matters of inquiry come under this two
and a half million item, I will rule it out of order, because I do think when the man-
agement says, “ we are in negotiation of a contract: 4

Mr. Macpoxarp: I am not particular about it.

The CaamMaN: T understand that.

By Mr. Macdonald :
Q. I am dealing with this particular item. Let us pass on. I don’t want to take

" up too much time on these matters this morning. With regard to the $12 coal at

Montreal this year, do you remember Mr. Graburn told us that the $12 coal came
from the stock pile?—A. Yes.

Q. But the vouchers we have here showed that the $12 coal was charged from
coal that was delivered f.o.b. Montreal for various points, freight and duty added.—

. A. The explanation I have on that is this, that that coal came into Montreal and

there was a shortage of power at Montreal, that is on the C. N. Lines, so it was sent
down over the Intercolonial and across the bridge. That is the reason it was billed
out at $12 to the Intercolonial at Montreal. It went down over their lines from
Montreal.

Q. It did not come from any stock pile?—A. No. That was the average price
that the coal cost on cars at Montreal.

Q. The average price?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you got any vouchers indicating where you paid for it?—A. I have not
got exactly who supplied that coal, but I think it is there in some of those accounts
you have got.

Q. There is no $12 coal here. There is no $12 coal in these various items.—A.
That $12 would include freight and duty, everything of that kind paid up to
Montreal.

Q. What is that?®—A. It would include freight and duty.

Q. No it has not, because here—A. There is an item there for freight, Mr. Mac-

_ dogald, but that covers freight from Montreal to Quebec.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. Let us see now, the first item is January 1922, for coal delivered at the
the Quebec Bridge, 24.221 tons, $12, Montreal. Total $290,654.16. Freight, $47.2
There is nothing indicating you are charging freight on your own lines.—A. Nu,
the explanation I got of that was that that coal went over the—

Q. You are giving evidence under oath, but as a matter of fact, apparently
. don’t, of your own knowledge about that—A. That coal was all distributed

our General Fuel Agent, and I would rather give you an actual report on that.
Q. You don’t know of your own knowledge’—A. No. I cannot say off hand |
it was arrived at. Coal was coming in at large quantities at that time and we
short of power, and some of it moved over the C.N.R. from Montreal to Quebee.
some of it moved down over the C. G.R., but T would be very glad to write yon
explanation as to how it was arrived at.
Q. Who does know it if you don’t%~—A. Mr. Graburn has the information in
office. I was talking to his Chief Clerk on the long distance yesterday, and
said Mr. Graburn was handling that matter personally and he won’t be home un
Monday from Winnipeg.
Q. He won’t be home until Monday 7—A. No.
! Q. You of your own knowledge cannot give under oath any explanation of I
that price of $12 a ton for that 75,000 tons of coal contained in this statement Wi S |
charged f.o.b. Montreal?—A. No, T don’t think I can give you a satisfactory expls
tion for it here. - :
Q. There is no use your giving us any explanation unless you can give it of yous
own knowledge.—A. No. y

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. In looking over these reports that you have given to us, I notice that they
cover the period of the year 1920, but there are one or two instanees where,it seems’
that a discrimination has been made. For instance I understand that during this}
vear you bought stock coal for anywhere from $6.75 up to $11.75%—A. Yes. .

Q. And there seems to me two instances in the paper you gave to me where the’
mine owners wanted $6.25 but because the contract price in the first place was 85.25° =
and $5.75, you endeavoured to hold them to their original contract?—A. Yes. :

Q. And as a result of that they did not see fit to give you the quantity =—A. Yon, :

re talking about United States coal now. .

Q. No, I am talking about the Nova Scotia coal—A. Nova Secotia coal? yes.

Q To me it would seem that you have been justified in raising the price from ™
$5.25 and $5.75 to $6.25 and $6.75 if you could have gotten the coal, considering you
were paying in excess of that for spot coal in the United States—A. We had no
indication, Mr. Lewis ﬂmt we could get the coal down here at all. The price did not"
convey very much. The file of the Dominion Coal Company, from whom jwe have
to get our principal supply was put in some time ago, showing our correspondence
with them. It was not a question of price that was taken up with them. It was the'
question of not having the coal. -

Q. T notice one of the coal mines in Nova Scotia changed hands and they clalm
they were 1 nr responsible for the price that had been entered into by the old company
with the C.N.R. and they wished to raise the price?—A. Yes.

Q. 50 cents a ton?—A. Yes. e

Q. But Mr. Hanna replied he did not wish to confiscate the coal, that the mines™s
must necessarily fulfil the contract?—A. Yes. y

Q. Had the Government the power to confiscate the coal under the ongmal b
contract when the mine owners changed?—A. Any coal we felt was due us we took:
under legal advice. E

Q. On the other occasion on which they asked for a higher price, I notice on¥
December 10, 1920 they asked for $6.25. Had coal resumed its normal condition®™—"
A. Yes.

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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‘ aQ‘ So you dld not feal Justlﬁed——A We did not feel justified because all the
panies wanted to give us coal at that time. :
- Q. It did seem to me since you were buying coal to be taken at $7, $8 and $10
u could have conceded the point to the miners in Nova Scotia and given them the
ra 50 cents d ton.—A. As a rule, they did not ask for more money. It was a
estion of not being able to supply the coal.
Q. In the majority of cases it was absolutely impossible to pay more?—A. Yes.
Q. But in two instances I find they could have supplied you with coal at a higher
ce, or would have made an endeavour to do so.—A. The coal comsumption for two
years had been heavier than previously and the railways called on the coal
m any for more coal than the previous years probably. '
Q. How many coal companies are theve that you deal with in Nova Scotia or up
the Maritime Provinees?—A. I suppose there are twenty.
! Q. Of course those records which you gave to us only cover the larger mines.
‘They do not say anything about the smaller mines.—A. We could not get any coal
from the smaller mines at all. Our general Fuel Agent was down there.

The CuHamMAXN: If you want to listen to this, Mr. Gardiner, you better come
forward. -

Mr. GappiNer: I was going to say this is a great inquiry. The members cannot
hear anything at all.

The Cuairmaxn: I don’t think that is quite a fair remark, because all the gentle-
men at the back of the room have been talking to such an extent that they cannot .
hear. If they will keep silence and come forward, I will ask the witness to speak a

little louder. Will you speak a little louder? :

Wirness: Yes, I am sorry.

: Q. You say you dealt with about 20 coal companies in the Maritime Provinces?
- —A. Yes.
5 Q. And in the case of the smaller companies you' could not get any satisfactory
" evidence in 1920 that they could supply you with eoal?—A. No. T think I have a
" memorandum here of our contracts for 1920 which shows just exaétly twenty com-
panies that we placed orders with.
f Q. And the form of contract you have given us covers four of the larger ones?
E —A. Yes.

Q. Did they supply you with the amount of the original contract,—the smaller
companies’—A. They did, yes, pretty well; some did not. For instance, there was a
contract with the Port Hood Company for 60,000 tons and they gave us 15,000 tons
that year.

By Mr. Macdonald : 150
Q. They were in financial diffienlties?—A. Yes

By Mr. Lewis:

Q. I notice that apparently the Fuel Controller practlcally du,tatea the price to
the mines, in the letters I have just read?—A. The Fuel Controller did set a maximum
' price that vear.
it Q. When you send out tenders for original contracts, do you say what the price
s that you can pay?—A. In normal times we usually get quotations from these com-
pamea, and if we feel the quotations are too high, we make them an offer of what we
_consider a reasonable amount for the coal.
Q. And the coal companies could not possibly exist without they supplied coal
to the O.N.R.%—A. Some could and some could not.
Q. And you have to some extent a whiphand over those that could not?—A. T
‘Would not say that. ;
[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]
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Q. You take their normal supply, and if they do not supply you with coal at
$5 a ton you can get it somewhere else, possibly, and they have to come to your
terms ~—A. But consideration should be given to the fact that we buy from small
companies that have very inferior coal simply with the idea of giving them tonnage.n‘

Q. It is your policy to get as mugh Canadian coal as possible if the price mi
quality are right?%—A. Yes. 5

Q. None other than business considerations enter into the matter?—A. Abso- ‘
lutely not.

By the Chairman: ‘ .

Q. There is a little patriotic sentiment in your dealings, too?—A. Yes.
By Mr. Macdonald : . ,

Q. The situation is that there were 13 coal companies in Nova Scotia from whom
vou purchased, and 5 in New Brunswick ?—A. For 1922, T think?

Q. Yes?—A. T have a statement here for 1921, if you would like me to put it in?

Q. For 1920-217%—A. Yes.

'

Tonnage
Company Tonnage Rate | Shipped

Port Hoo® Collieries!l -, s b il Bt st 60,000 | $5.00f. 0. b Mines, el e 15,477
Mitord Mg Co.. 05 b5 v o sk 2 s o 30,000 5.25 Tracks, Coalburn...... 10,424
Intercolonial Coal Mining Co............. 125,000 5.6 £ e Westville...... 118,254
Maritime Coal, Railway and Power Co... 125,000 506,00 # Maceean....... 127,523
Mintdie Coal €0, 37 i Vi et g 1 | 5,000 5.5 o Macecan....... 322
Emmerson Coal Co. . 0 hveth Ll . 10,000 5500 % o Macean. ... ... ¥ 9,220
Anelo Coal o, i i i ad TR o 2,000 7.40 “  Souris or Georgetown. 1,660
Greenwood Coal ©olas. ien s oyl sl 50,000 6.00 “ Carsour tracks........ 41,038
Chimney Corner Coal Co.....c., cv:onvsa 5,000 740,545 s Daocks, Sonnis 015 k% 322
Lanark Engineering Co..............co... 20, 000 5.35. “ Mines, Thorburn....... 20,088
Indian Cove Coflli Co s iphd hng Lol 40,000 B o2bi Mines ................. 27,121
Aeadin ' Gaoal Coslr . i iosadobte L el 125, 000 875 - 5 MR, i e e 179,592
Dominion Coal €0, i it s st ham. o oo 300,000 6.00 “ Qpnnghlll or Sydney . . 277,239
Nova Scotia Steel and Coal Co........... 125, 000 85,50 iMinep. .. 0 134,112
Bras.d’Or Coal Go. s Uk i salniimats 30,000 BB Mimas.c . ol U S 26,922
New Jubilee Mine /o 8w S orlendin 00 2,500 B 505 T MACORI. i r Aireme e s Nil
The Marsh Mine Co.! 8. Sl s atie 1,000 BuGs. T Macean. ik ihs Lie v 553
DPominion Coal o =iy el s T it 100, 000 6.00 “ Springhill and Sydney. 111,692
EXport CoaliCo. ., (5 s me fe iz ala. selatis 20,000 o L R T SR 6,043
Inverness Railway and Coal Co.......... 5,000 6.00 “ Invernessdet.......... 5,040

1,180,500 1,112,642

By Mr. Macdonald : ;

Q. Mr. Graburn is not here?—A. No, and he is not in Toronto.

Q. Then we cannot get any explanation from you about this $12 coal?—A. T
would rather have Mr. Graburn make that explanation personally. He is the one
that has knowledge of it. He was distribvting the coal at that time.

Q. T understand your position is that you have no personal knowledge of the
facts %—A. No.

The CuamrMAax: Is it understood quite plainly that Mr. Vaughan will get from
Mr. Graburn a statement?

Mr. MacnoNaLp: No. If the House sits long enough I would like Mr. Graburn to
come before the Committee. The question as to how that $12 is made up is a very
vital one. Tf the House does not sit long enough to permit Mr. Graburn to come
before the Committee, we shall have to let the matter be closed and report on it as
it stands. Tt is not much use speculating ahout a matter of this kind. I would like
to have the man who knows about it come before the Committee and tell us what he
knows. 3

[Mr. R. C. Vaughan.]




raburr wﬂl not be back i Toronto untll Monday —A. No; he ‘has
n in Wim;ipeg for the last ten days.

Q. If we are sitting on Wed:nesday next I suppose we could have Mr. G*rabﬂrn
y ¢—A. Yes. ;

" By Mr. Lewzs : : o,
Q With regard to these coal contracts, I notice some at $5 and some as lngh as e
. Have you taken into consideration the extra freight?—A. They pay the boat
ht and land it at that pr1ce.
Q. But at the mines it is pretty muck all the samef—A. Yes. Of course, we buy
i »io the best advantage in every case; we always endeavour to negotiate the best price.
The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions? If not, we shall now adjourn
nnﬁl 10.80 o’clock tomorrow morning.

The Committee adjourned at 12.45 o’clock p.m., untll 10.30 o’clock a.m. on Friday,
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